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CHAPTER 1 – MAYOR’S FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

COMPONENT A: MAYOR’S  FOREWORD 

 

MAYOR’S FOREWORD 

 

 
 

 

Vision 

 

“To create a responsive and caring municipality for all who live in it” 

 

Mission  

 

To render Services effectively and efficiently in a sustainable manner to our community 

To promote developmental local government through community participation 
 
Foreword 

Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality is Category B municipality which is made up of two small towns 

namely, Christiana and Bloemhof towns. As a small municipality with small economic activities, it is 

common cause that our economic situation is still at a very low developmental state, characterized by 

high unemployment rate. 

The effect of the above is that a greater component of the municipality’s population is dependent on 

free basic services as offered by the state, thus being unable to adequately contribute on the overall 

progress of the Municipality. To this regard, it then became very imperative for the municipality to 

choose to work very close with both public and private sector investors. This is done in order to 

recognize and to enhance service delivery as integral to the new strategic posture and orientation of 

our approach to accelerate service delivery within the municipality characterized by the following 

values: 

More Activist-orientated and Responsive 



2 

 

On the Ground Solving Problems Directly in and with Communities 

From the past experiences and given the multiple challenges the municipality is facing, it is clear that 

we have no option but to also develop together with provincial government a radically new approach to 

restructure interface and further strengthen our relations by also adopting and aligning the 

municipality’s development agenda with the Provincial Government Development Goals. This is done 

in order to help accelerate service delivery, clear service delivery backlogs and improve turnaround 

times on attending to service delivery complaints including our intention to introduce a rapid response 

system towards service delivery, both proactive and reactive. 

The financial viability of the municipality as was assessed by the Auditor General is in a bad state and 

the financial indicators and the AGSA report the municipality is experiencing all kinds of financial 

constraints and is not in a healthy financial position. In addition to that AG has also drew attention to 

audited financial statements that disclose unauthorised, fruitless, wasteful and irregular expenditures, 

which he stressed must be investigated to determine if any official is liable for the losses incurred for 

such expenditure. It is in this instance that the municipality shall leave no stone unturned in order to 

ensure that disciplinary steps are taken against officials who caused or permitted such expenditures. 

Management has been urged to attend to key findings in terms of municipal services distribution 

losses as well as all issues raised regarding risks that require continuous monitoring.  

For this term, the Municipal Council has committed itself on ensuring that both the management, the 

political leadership and council are paying particular attention to a range of issues which among others 

include optimising income, drastically improving controls in all directorates, urgently formulating, 

approving and implementing a comprehensive and effectively capacitated performance management 

system, adopting revised and best practice ethics, anti-fraud and corruption policies and procedures, 

ruthless clamping down on deviations and other questionable supply chain practices whilst 

implementing effective consequence management and improving communication with and the public 

participation with our residents. 

 Despite the above and through the roll out of the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) and the 

Integrated National Electrification programmes, the Municipality is continuously providing basic 

services to it’s the community. Our chosen approach and strategy to work hand in hand with other 

spheres of government did not go unnoticed; a word of appreciation goes to the Honourable MEC for 

Local Government and Human Settlements together with her administration for having considered 

necessary to approve the housing development project in Boitumelong Extention 12, Bloemhof 

comprising of the installation of services and construction of a total of 1500 residential units as well as 

to the Hon. Minister for the Department of Energy for having approved a Grant allocation of R4 Million 
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to implement Energy Efficient and Demand Side Management Programme (EEDSM), first project 

of this kind within this municipality. Both of these injections alone, shall go a long way to resolve 

housing and electricity related challenges facing the municipality including promotion of a meaningful 

partnerships with business and community based stakeholders.        

Municipality remains committed on providing quality services to the entire community, now, I take this 

opportunity to extend a word of appreciation to our community, the political leadership from all parties 

represented in Council, the administration and every municipal employee who has dedicated their 

energies and worked hard to implement the decisions of Council and as contained in the IDP and 

SDBIPs. Lastly I invite all of us to join hands and work together in rebuilding our municipality and 

turning the Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality economy around. 

 

 
HONOURABLE MAYOR 

CLLR M. PILANE 
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COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW  

 

 

 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW 

 

This Annual Report comes soon after our Municipality joined a large number of South Africans to 

celebrate 25 years of democratic government. A considerable proportion of us underestimate our 

opportunity yet thousands relinquished their lives for us to be where we are today. It is currently the 

obligation of us all who are afforded a chance to serve the people of this country in all the spheres of 

government, to focus in and contribute benevolently to this current nation's enthusiasm to advance 

the National Democratic Revolution (NDR).  

There are innumerable stories to advice with respect to the inheritance of politically-sanctioned racial 

segregation. Since 1994, regardless of making a mammoth jump forward to lighten the awkward 

nature of the past, we despite everything have a long excursion to venture out to arrive at the apex of 

development. We are extremely glad that within a short space of time and despite seemingly 

insurmountable odds, we have in reality restored the pride of thousands of our residents. Economic 

challenges will continue to pressurize municipal revenue generation and collections in 2019/20, hence 

a conservative approach has been adopted when projecting expected revenues and receipts. Despite 

increasingly challenging circumstances, we continue to sustain service delivery by reprioritizing 

expenditure to ensure key objectives are achieved. 

The Municipality has delivered houses, electrified homes and brought life giving water to residents 

despite numerous challenges, including the poor growth of revenue and rapid townships expansions. 

We have committed as Municipal leadership to accelerate service delivery and ensure an improved 

quality of life for residents throughout the entire Lekwa-Teemane Municipal area. 
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In the last State of the Nation Address (SONA), the Head of State President Cyril Ramaphosa, gave 

us clear direction. The president issued a clear directive to the effect that we must unceasingly live up 

to our constitutional mandate of providing basic services to our people without fail. He urged us to 

aggressively do away with apartheid spatial planning which resulted in most of our people being 

pushed to the periphery of the core of economic activity. 

The development of the Annual Report represents a mechanism to assess good performance and 

identify areas and challenges that require intervention and mitigation. The process there affords the 

municipality an opportunity to undertake its own diagnosis on the relevance of its service delivery 

approaches and to utilize the same as an instrument to prioritize and move towards sharpening and 

molding its delivery arm so as continue to provide quality and sustainable services to its citizens.  

  

The report therefore is underpinned by the following two pillars informing the vision of the 

municipality’s leadership which also form the basis of the municipality’s Integrated Development Plan 

IDP: 

To render services effectively and efficiently in a sustainable manner to our community 

To promote developmental local government through community participation. 

 

Based on the above outcomes, the municipality need to consider formulating and implementing a 

comprehensive and effectively capacitated performance management system and develop systems 

to support and boost our local economic component as well as attraction of new investments to the 

municipality. Stimulating our economy and fusing the local economy with the external investors 

should remain the municipality’s top priority.  

Achieving success on the above mentioned socio-economic development aspects shall afford 

communities within our jurisdiction an opportunity and exposure to learn, share on the knowledge, 

skills and experience of well-established participants in respective fields of economic development, 

thereby gaining the necessary and required competencies to can be able to manage, grow and lead 

their respective economic establishments.  

Notwithstanding the above performance as reflected in this Annual Report which also shows that the 

municipality is still faced with various challenges and opportunities, corrective measures has been put 

in place through appointment of experienced and qualified managers and senior manager to lead and 

guide various directorates of the municipality. This alone is undertaken in order to ensure smooth 
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administration and acceleration of affordable and sustainable service delivery to our communities. 

In an effort to aid and intervene in the municipality, the North-West Provincial Government had since 

invoked section 139(1)(b) and placed the Municipality under administration since May 2019.   

Lastly, a word of appreciation is extended to the political leadership for their guidance and active 

participation in municipal activities and to the municipal officials for their service during the review 

period as well as community members and organization for their active participation and working 

together in the affairs of the municipality. For this purpose, I call upon all officials of the municipality to 

continue their dedication and hard work in order to provide effective change and development in the 

lives of all citizens of Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality. 

 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                 T .1  
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MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW 

 

INTRODUCTION TO BACKGROUND DATA 

 

As of 30th June, 2019, there were still 868 households in Christiana town and 90 in Bloemhof on the  

Vaal River banks which still rely on septic tanks for sewage disposal as they are not yet connected to 

the network. The municipality uses vacuum trucks to service these households on a daily basis, which 

is a major challenge often, leading to overflows into streets and in some cases, watercourses. 

 

Refuse removal has been a major success for the municipality albeit with the limited resources at our 

disposal. The percentage of households receiving weekly refuse removal is above 98%,as more areas 

are being formalised making it easier for access and do collection. The remaining households without 

refuse removal services are inaccessible new informal areas, which make it almost impossible for the 

municipality to provide the service. The available landfill sites have been for best practice 

environmental management systems as they are both located on major roads into and out of the major 

towns of Christiana and Bloemhof. 

 

Township establishment has become an annual exercise at Lekwa-Teemane, with this financial year 

seeing more than 500 fully subsidised units being completed in Bloemhof and Christiana on different 

projects. The areas of Geleksoord Ext 4 in Christiana , Bloemhof Ext 10 in Bloemhof have been 

completed. Bloemhof Ext 12 and 13 are earmarked for future development within the next 2 years. 

Besides the normal fully subsidised housing typology, the municipality is embarking on creating more 

housing opportunities. To this end, the municipality is looking into Restructuring zones and outright 

sale of municipal land for applicants who do not qualify for full subsidization, a process that started in 

late 2018. 

 

Town planning approvals have not caught up with new legislation, i.e The Spatial Planning and Land 

Use Management Act, 2013 resulting in the halting of approvals until such time that compliance is 

achieved. The municipality is working hard at complying with the provisions of this new legislation to 

speed up economic development and bring in much needed revenue. The municipality is poised to 

meet the deadline of complying with SPLUMA by 3 June 2020 as all internal processes have been 

completed. 

                                                                                                                                                  T. 2 
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Population Details 

                Population '000 

Age 
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Age: 0 - 4 3088 3142 6230  3225 3370  6595  3225 3370  6595 

Age: 5 - 9 2875 2822 5697  3693 3640  7333  3693 3640  7333 

Age: 10 - 19 5005 4952 9957  5018  5240 10258  5018  5240 10258 

Age: 20 - 29 4899 4473 9372  4308 4521  8829  4308 4521  8829 

Age: 30 - 39 3781 3514 7295  4400  4682 9082  4400  4682 9082 

Age: 40 - 49 2769 2769 5538 2876  2903 5779 2876  2903 5779 

Age: 50 - 59 2130 2183 4313  2260  2224 4484  2260  2224 4484 

Age: 60 - 69 1278 1491 2769  1163  529 1692  1163  529 1692 

Age: 70+ 852 1225 2077 1048  1354 2402 1048  1354 2402 

Source: Statistic South Africa 

 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Housing Backlog as 

proportion of current demand

Unemployment Rate Proportion of Households 

with no Income

Proportion of Population in 

Low-skilled Employment

HIV/AIDS Prevalence Illiterate people older than 14 

years

Socio Economic Status

Year -2

Year -1

Year 0

 
 

T. 3 

 



9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overview of Neighbourhoods within Lekwa-Teemane LM 

Settlement Type 

Towns 

Bloemhof 

Christiana 

Townships 

Coverdale 

Boitumelong 

Salamat 

Utlwanang 

Geluksoord 

Rural settlements 

Bloemhof Farms 

Christiana Farms 

Informal settlements 

Geluksoord Ext 4 

Geluksoord Ext 5 

Bloemhof Ext 11 

 

 

Natural Resources 

Major Natural Resource Relevance to Community 

Land 

Access to land 

High Agriculture Potential 

Food Production 

Water 
Access to water 

Food Production 

Mineral Resources: Diamond 
Job Creation 

Economic Development 

  T .4 
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COMMENT ON BACKGROUND DATA: 

The main road is the N12 highway, which is the tourist attraction as it passes along the Vaal River 

and Bloemhof dam. Other smaller feeder roads exist connecting villages to the main rural towns, for 

example Britten. However, most of these are not tarred and largely unusable during summer when 

occasional flooding occur making access between the villages and rural towns impossible. The major 

towns are Bloemhof and Christiana and these are predominantly farming towns, hence the major 

private sector employers are farmers. Both of these towns can be described as rural to semi-rural and 

spreads.  

 

Apart from these two rural towns most of the residents live in villages. This is an issue that needs to 

be addressed by the LTLMA. The revised Lekwa-Teemane Spatial Development Framework (draft, 

2006) discusses the municipality in two distinct levels where separate. 

T .5 

 

 

 

 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW 

 

SERVICE DELIVERY INTRODUCTION 

 

Overall the municipality is succeeding in meeting the Millennium Development Goals with regards to 

basic services delivery. The increase in the number of indigent households poses a major risk to the 

continued provision of basic services as there are fewer households able to pay for these services. Be 

that as it may, the municipality has endeavored to ensure that every household gets a minimum level 

of service. 

T.6 
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T.7 

 

 

COMMENT ON ACCESS TO BASIC SERVICES: 

 

A high staff shortage in some basic service provision departments is a major risk for the municipality 

as well as the lack of equipment. The current municipal fleet is constantly breaking down as most of it 

is old and cannot be serviced properly. Additions to the fleet were made in the previous financial year 

to supplement the ageing fleet which has assisted in ensuring that all households get attended to. 

 

T.8 



12 

 

 

FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 

 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

 

The Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality is dependent on rates and services income as well as grants 

income, which are core to the municipal income. The municipality’s sustainability is dependent on the 

effective management of its resources as well as the community’s effective contributions to and 

participation in the budgeting process as well as the payment of rates and services. Non-payment of 

rates and services is a national concern and the municipality is not free from the problem. The 

collection of outstanding debt remains a big challenge.  .  

T.9 

 

 

Financial Overview:  Year 2019/2020 
      R' 000 

Details Original budget Adjustment Budget Actual 

Income:    

Grants 73 208 83 208 81 149 

Taxes, Levies and tariffs 196 568 228 065 212 009 

Other 53 886 78 100 105 234 

Sub Total 323 662 389 373 398 392 

Less: Expenditure 345 923 290 582 464 887 

Net Total* (22 261) 98 791 (66 495) 

* Note:  surplus/(deficit)      T.10 

 

 

Operating Ratios 

Detail % 

Employee Cost 15 

Repairs & Maintenance 0.06 

Finance Charges & Impairment 7 

  T.11 

 

 

COMMENT ON OPERATING RATIOS: 

 

Expected norms for items identified in T 11 under Operating ratios are as follows: 

 

1 Employee Costs- approximately15 % to total operating cost 

2 Repairs and maintenance- approximately 0.06% to total operating cost 

3 Finance Charges and Depreciation- approximately 7% to total operating cost                   

                                                                                                                                                   T.12 
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Total Capital Expenditure: 2017 to 2020    

      R'000 

Detail 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

Original Budget 263 509 279 068 323 662 

Adjustment Budget 277 760 290 455 389 373 

Actual 323 067 304 993 398 392 

    T.13 

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                              

T.14 
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ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW 

 

 

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE 

 

The municipality has a total of 388 employees, inclusive of the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial 

Officer and 3 Directors. All the positions of Senior Managers are filled. 

 

The Municipality has filled all critical position such as PMS Manager, IDP Manager, SCM Manger, 

Budget & Reporting Managers and other Managers in finance department.  There are a huge number 

of Entry level vacant positions and this is due to financial constrained that the Municipality is 

experiencing. 

                                                                                                                                                          

The total number of positions in the Organisational Structure are 388, filled positions 169, vacant 

positions 219 and the vacant rate is sitting at 56% 

 

25 Positions filled i.e. 18 Permanent Post filled and 7 Contract positions filled during 2018/19 financial 

year and they are as follows:  Assistant Manager Legal & Labour Relations, Director Technical 

Services, Manager Technical Services, Accountant Budgeting, Accountant Financial Accounting, 

Accountant Credit Control and Debt Collection, 8 Drivers, Accountant Revenue & Billing, Accountant 

Demand and Acquisition Management & Reporting, Enquiry Clerk 

 

The Municipality is in the process of reviewing Organisational Structure, consultation with stakeholders 

in particular the Labour component has unfolded.  The purpose of reviewing Organisational Structure 

is to ensure that there is no duplication of functions in position and that the Structure addresses the 

vision and mission of the Municipality. 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                   T.15 

 

 

AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 

 

AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT: 2019/2020 

The Auditor General was unable to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate 

financial statements of the municipality. Because of the significance of the matters described 

in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of the auditor’s report, furthermore AGSA was 

unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion 

on these consolidated and separate financial statements 

                                                                                                                                         T.16 
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STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS 

 

No. Activity Timeframe 

1 

Consideration of next financial year’s Budget and IDP process plan. Except for 

the legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-year reporting formats 

to ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds seamlessly into the Annual Report 

process at the end of the Budget/IDP implementation period 

July 2 
Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP commences (In-

year financial reporting). 

3 Finalise the 4th quarter Report for previous financial year 

4 Submit draft 2018/19 Annual Report to Internal Audit and Auditor-General 

5 Municipal entities submit draft annual reports to MM  

6 
Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of municipality and 

entities (where relevant) 

August 

8 
Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report 

9 
Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated annual financial 

statements and performance report to Auditor General 

10 
Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be provided as 

input to the IDP Analysis Phase 

11 
Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual Financial 

Statements and Performance data 
September - 

October 

12 Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor General’s comments 

January 
13 

Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council 

complete with the Auditor- General’s Report  

14 Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited 

15 Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report 

16 Council adopts Oversight report 

March 17 
Oversight report is made public 

18 Oversight report is submitted to relevant provincial councils 

19 
Commencement of draft Budget/ IDP finalisation for next financial year. Annual 

Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input 
March 

                                                                                                                                                        T.17 
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CHAPTER 2 – GOVERNANCE 

 

POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 

 

INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 

 

 

Note: MFMA section 52 (a): The Mayor must provide general political guidance over the fiscal and financial affairs 

of the municipality 

 

 

Section 156 (2) of the Constitution provides that the legislative power of a Municipality vests 

exclusively in its Council.  The Municipal Council performance both legislative and Executive functions 

and focuses on legislative, oversight and participatory role. 

It has delegated its executive function to the Mayor.  Council’s primary role is to debate issues publicly 

and to facilitate political debate and discussion.  Apart from Council’s function as policy maker, 

Councillors are also actively involved in community work and the various social programmes in the 

Municipal area. 

T.18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Political Structure Functions 

Mayor/ Speaker 

CLLR M. Pilane 

The Mayor identifies the needs of the 

municipality, review and evaluate those needs, in 

order of priority, recommends to the municipal 

council strategies, programmes and services to 

address priority needs through the IDP and 

estimates the value of revenue and expenditure, 

taking into account any applicable national and 

provincial development plans and recommends 

and determines the best way to deliver strategies, 

programmes and services to maximum benefit of 

the community. The Mayor is also responsible for 

the approval of the Service Delivery and Budget 

Implementation Plan. 

The Speaker presides over the meetings of 

Council, and ensures that meetings are 

conducted according to rules of order of the 
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Council. 

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL 

 

Corporate Services and Finance- Cllr L.M Segola 

Community Services and LED- Cllr- L. Legabe 

Infrastructure Development and Town Planning- Cllr M. Majikela 

Municipal Public Accounts Committee- Cllr L. Duiker 

 

                                                                                                                                                         T.19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCILLORS 

 

The municipal council consists of sixteen members elected by mixed member proportional 

representation. Eight are elected past the post voting in eight wards, while the remaining eight are 

chosen form party lists so that the total number of party representatives is proportional to the number 

of votes received. 

T.20 
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2.2 ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

 

Note: MFMA section 60 (b): The Municipal Manager of a municipality is the accounting officer of the municipality 

for the purposes of this Act and must provide guidance on compliance with this Act to political structures; political 

office bearers, and officials of the municipality and any entity under the sole or shared control of the municipality. 

 

The Administration component of Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality is headed by the Municipal 

Manager, comprises of four (4) Directorates, headed by the Directors who report directly to the 

Municipal Manager in terms of Section 56 of Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000. 

The Managers Strategic Planning and Operations, Integrated Development Planning and 

Performance Management System (PMS) also report directly to the office of the Municipal Manager. 

 
Refer to Appendix C 

. 

TOP STRUCTURE 

Name Position Functions 

Nokuthula 

Mbonani 

Acting Municipal 

Manager 

As head of administration and Accounting Officer of 

the municipality the Municipal Manager is subject to 

the policy directions of the municipal Council and is 

responsible and accountable for duties and 

responsibilities outlined under Section 55 of the 

Local Government: MSA, Act 32 of 2000, as 

amended and any other relevant duties as may be 

delegated by the Mayor and Council. 

Mokgopane 

Thokoane 

CFO The CFO is responsible for ensuring effective and 

efficient strategic management of the finance 

department, which includes budgetary management, 

financial accounting management, SCM, Credit 

Control Management, investment and banking, 

treasury management and risk management. 

Thabo Mabula Director Community 

Services 

This Director Community Services is responsible for 

Parks, Cemeteries, Housing, Waste Collection and 

Traffic 

Nokuthula Director Corporate The Director Corporate Services is responsible for 
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TOP STRUCTURE 

Name Position Functions 

Mbonani Services establishing and maintaining structures, with the 

parameters of legality and good governance, that will 

provide Administration that is appropriately relevant, 

Legal Support, Human Resource Management and 

IT 

Themba Jona Acting Director Technical 

Services 

The Director Technical Services is responsible for 

Water, Sanitation, Electricity and Roads Services of 

the Municipality and the maintenance of 

infrastructure. 

 

 

 

COMPONENT B: INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 

INTRODUCTION TO CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 

Intergovernmental Relations assist sector stakeholders to ensure that planning is aligned. Promoting 

Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) helps to make everyone aware that there is one seamless 

government working together to serve the people. It builds teamwork within the various spheres of 

government and between all stakeholders.  

 

Intergovernmental Relations activities include:  

 

Planning and budgeting  

Consultations 

Dispute resolutions  

Reporting  

Feedback 

T.21 
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2.3 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

The primary purpose of the intergovernmental relations in the municipality is to enhance improve 

relations with other stakeholders by mobilizing resources and forging strategic partnerships which will 

ensure coordination of service delivery with other spheres of government. This is realized through 

coordination and management of all municipal relationships with other spheres of government and 

facilitation of information sharing through the intergovernmental relations at Lekwa-Teemane Local 

Municipality 

T.22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RELATIONSHIPS WITH MUNICIPAL ENTITITIES 

 

The municipality has 1 agency, Lekwa-Teemane Development Agency. The Agency is tasked and 

responsible for finding investors and ensuring that there is development within the municipality. The 

municipality is responsible for playing oversight over the Agency. 

T.23 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

 

OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

 

Note: MSA section 17 (2): requires a municipality to establish and organise its administration to facilitate a culture 

of accountability amongst its staff. Section 16 (1): states that a municipality must develop a system of municipal 

governance that compliments formal representative governance with a system of participatory governance. 

Section 18 (a) - (d): requires a municipality to supply its community with information concerning municipal 

governance, management and development.   
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The Council interacts with its stakeholders by means of ward committees, budget and Integrated 

Development Planning (IDP) meetings. Public and stakeholder engagements are on-going processes 

throughout the year. Public meetings include Council meetings, ward committee meetings and budget 

and IDP meetings.  

 

The Municipality ensures that these meetings are well attended by informing the public and 

stakeholders on time and in their local languages. This also ensures meaningful and constructive 

participation. Public meeting schedules are made public through being advertised in local newspapers 

and loud hailing.  

 

The Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) conducts public discussion as an oversight 

mechanism through which officials are called before the committee to give testimony on the key 

issues which are specific problem areas.  

 

Public involvement and media coverage play a key role where MPAC holds enquiries in a manner 

which allows public participation on the Annual Report. Submissions are also welcomed from the 

public and participants use this opportunity to get clarity and comments from responsible role players 

under the MFMA.  

 

It is in view of the above that the Oversight Report is thus clearly distinguished from the Annual 

Report, which supplies its community with information concerning municipal governance, 

management and development. 

T.24 
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2.4 PUBLIC MEETINGS 

COMMUNICATION, PARTICIPATION AND FORUMS 
 
Ward Committees have been established ward committees in all wards to ensure public 

participation and accountability. These are some of the mechanisms that the municipality 

uses to distribute information and address the challenges of the communities in an effective 

manner. The Ward Mass Meetings held also provide a platform for effective interaction and 

accountability for Council and the community.                                                                                                                                                     

 

                                                                                                                                              T.25 

 

 

WARD COMMITTEES 

 
The municipality has established eight Ward Committees, which drives information in terms 

of the needs of the communities. Ward six has not held any meetings as expected.          T.26 

 

 

NATURE 
AND 
PURPOSE 
OF 
MEETING 

DATE OF 
EVENT 

NUMBER OF 
PARTICIPATING 
MUNCIPAL 
COUNCIL 

NUMBER OF 
PARTICIPATING 
MUNCIPAL 
ADMINISTRATORS 

NUMBER OF 
COMMUNITY 
MEMBERS 
ATTENDING 

Ward 1 
Public 
Meetings 

None None None None 

Ward 2  
Public 
Meeting 

None None None None 

Ward 3 
Public 
Meetings 

None None None None. 
 

Ward 4 
Public 
Meetings 

22/07/2019 1 1 67 

Ward 5 
Public 
Meetings 

None None None None 

Ward  6 
Public 
Meetings 

None None None None 

Ward 7 
Public 
Meetings 
(EXT 2,3,7 
AND 8) 

13/08/2019 1 1 76 
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EXT 3 01/09/2019 1 0 28 

EXT 4 02/09/2019 1 0 91 

EXT 2 AND 3 16/12/2019 2 0 35 

Ward 8 None None None None 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PUBLIC MEETINGS HELD: 

 

The ward committees are fully functional except for ward 6, meetings are held on monthly basis and 

minutes and reports are submitted to the office of the Speaker. 

 

The challenges with Ward 6 have been escalated to the office of the Speaker to assist the Ward 

Councillor in resolving the matter.  

 

.  

 

T.27 
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2.5 IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT 

 

 

IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria* Yes/No 

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators? Yes 

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies? Yes 

Does the IDP have multi-year targets? Yes 

Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score? Yes 

Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 57 Managers Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Outcomes Yes 

Were the indicators communicated to the public?  Yes 

Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames? Yes 

* Section 26  Municipal Systems Act 2000 

T.28 

 

 

 

 

COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 

The scope of corporate governance includes political, administrative, inter-governmental governance 

and public accountability and participation to ensure that the municipality is managed to the desired 

requirements of the community and within the rules, processes and laws by which the municipality 

operates and is regulated and controlled 

T.29 
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2.6 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

To ensure that municipal complies with the requisite standards of corporate governance, the MFMA 

states that the accounting officer of a municipality has to ensure that the municipality has and 

maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal 

controls. The benefits that will accrue from having and maintain the systems will include inter alia: 

• Objectives are more likely to be achieved; 

• Damaging things will not happen or are less likely to happen; and 

• Beneficial things will be or are more likely to be achieved 

 

Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality has no capacity to carry this role internally. The internal audit and 

risk management units of the Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality offer this service to the 

municipality. 

 

After the assessment of the risk factors in the municipality – the Risk management unit lists the 

following as the top six risks to the municipality 

 

• Reliance on external resources to achieve internal objectives 

• Theft of municipal resources/property 

• External interference on decision-making 

• Revenue collection (or lack of) 

• Extreme overtime 

• Failure to maintain IT environment. 

T.30 

 

 

 

2.7 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

 

FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY 

 

The Anti-corruption Policy was developed by the Municipality and adopted by the Council on the 31st 

May 2018.  The workshop or in house training to employees was conducted by Corporate Services on 

the 11-13 March 2019. 

 

Meetings were held with representatives from Salga, Local Government and Premier Office to plan for 

Awareness Campaign to the Community. 

 

 

T.31                                                                                                                                                              
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2.8 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

 

OVERVIEW SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

 

The supply chain management aims at supporting the strategic decision of the Municipality thereby 

ensuring effective and efficient service delivery to its internal and external clients, also to ensure that 

purchasing and procurement of goods and services are done according to prescribed legislations and 

Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality Supply Chain Management Policy The municipality has 

established the following committees: Bid specification, Bid Evaluation and the Adjudication 

committees. The Municipality has supply management policy regulating the procurement process. 

 

T.32 

 

 

 

2.9 BY-LAWS 

 

By-laws Introduced during 2019/20 

Newly Developed Revised  Public 
Participation 

Conducted Prior 
to Adoption of 

By-Laws 
(Yes/No) 

Dates of 
Public 

Participation 

By-Laws 
Gazetted* 
(Yes/No) 

Date of 
Publication 

None None None None None None 

*Note: See MSA section 13. T.33 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON BY-LAWS: 

 

 

The municipal by-laws adopted in 2007 are still operational – due to capacity challenges the 

municipality has not been able to review most of the by-laws. It will be crucial that areas that need by-

laws to be developed should be identified and that all by-laws in existence should be reviewed. One of 

the key challenges experienced by the municipality is the capacity to enforce by-laws that are in place. 

It will be critical that the municipality should look at the enforcement capacity as and when decisions 

are taken to develop by-laws. 

 

It should be noted, however that by-laws have reviewed and gazetted on issues that are related to 

budget related policies – i.e. Credit Control Policy, Tariff Policy and Rates Policy. The Municipality also 

adopted the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management by-law during the year under review. 

 

T.34 
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COMMENT MUNICIPAL WEBSITE CONTENT AND ACCESS: 

 

The Municipality has planned to upgrade its Website, but it could not be implemented due to the cash-

flow challenges. External IT Support Services has been appointed to manage the Internet and 

Municipal Website and the information is submitted by the Municipality for advertisement. 

                                                                                                                                                            T.35 

 

 

 

2.11 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES 

 

PUBLIC SATISFCATION LEVELS 

 

Public satisfaction within the municipality is conducted in a form of Suggestion Boxes and a Complain 

Register. In areas where the community feels the municipality can improve, such inputs are registered 

in the Suggestion Box and attended. 

 

The Municipality makes use of Public Participation to communicate information to the Community and 

all issues raised by Communities are registered and channeled through the relevant departments for 

urgent attention.  Other complaints and complements are received in writing by the Community 

members and they are acknowledged and attended. 

T.36 

 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 3 – SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE (PERFORMANCE 

REPORT PART I) 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

Service Delivery is in terms of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Schedule 4, Part B 

determines the functions of the municipality and therefore its responsibility towards the community. In 

terms of the IDP and the strategic objectives of the Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality, certain issues 

are set out to be achieved during the financial year.                                                                          T.37 
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COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICES 

 

This component includes: water; waste water (sanitation); electricity; waste management; and housing 

services; and a summary of free basic services. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO BASIC SERVICES 

 

The following have been achieved during 2019/20 financial period: 

Provided 100% of registered and approved indigents earning less than R3, 500 per month (indigents) 

with access to free basic services 

 

• Access to basic water  

• Access to basic sanitation  

• Access to basic electricity  

• Access to basic refuse removal  

 

The above-mentioned achievements are part of municipal functions, as in terms of the Constitution of 

the Republic of South Africa, Schedule 4, and Part B Function. 

The following tables indicate the Municipality’s performance in terms of the National Key Performance 

Indicators required in terms of the Local Government: Municipal Planning and the Performance 

Management Regulations of 2001 and Section 43 of the MSA. 

These key performance indicators are linked to the National Key Performance Areas.                

                                                                                                                                                            T.38 
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3.1. WATER PROVISION 

 

INTRODUCTION TO WATER PROVISION 

 

Note: Recent legislation includes the Water Services Act 1997 and the General Enabling Act 2005 

 

The Municipality is a Water Service Provider (WSP) and Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District is a 

Water Service Authority (WSA). 87% of households within the Municipality has access to yard water 

connections. The Municipality has provided internal reticulation for 2,630 households in Geluksoord 2, 

3 and 4. The WSA is currently implementing a bulk water project which will be completed soon. The 

aim of the project is to connect the internal reticulation to the bulk infrastructure.  

 

The blue drop assessment was not carried by the Department of Water Affairs (DWA) - which is the 

custodian of the assessments. The assessments were not carried out owing to the financial distress 

experienced by the DWA. The Municipality continues to provide free basic water to indigents 

registered with the Municipality 

T.39 

 

 

Total Use of Water by Sector (cubic meters) 

  Agriculture Forestry Industrial Domestic 
Unaccountable 

water losses 

2017/18 Raw Water Raw Water 2538389 14384209 2177401 

2018/19 Raw Water Raw Water 2584903 14647794 2277301 

2019/20 Raw Water Raw Water 2584903 14647794 2277301 

        T.40 

T.41 
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WATER USE BY SECTOR: 

 

The Municipality purifies a total of 19,10 Megaliters (Ml) per day. This is made of 10,5Ml in Bloemhof 

and 8,60 Ml in Christiana. Water usage accounts for 13% of the water consumption. Unaccounted 

water accounts to an annual 12% loss of total production and the domestic usage accounts for the bulk 

of the usage at 75% of the annual production. 

T.42 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employees:  Water Services 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 5 10 5 5 50% 

4 - 6 15 20 15 5 25% 

16 - 18 2 2 2 0 0% 

Total 22 32 22 10 31% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                              
                                                                                                                                                                                             T.43 
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COMMENT ON WATER SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

 

The Municipal IDP prioritises the upgrading of the Christiana Water Purification Plant. The plant cannot 

cater for the current demand and has to be upgraded within the MTEF period. The town with the 

townships continues to expand as more areas are proclaimed and RDP houses are built.  

 

T.44 

 

 

 

3.2 WASTE WATER (SANITATION) PROVISION 

 

INTRODUCTION TO SANITATION PROVISION 

 

The Municipality has eradicated all bucket systems within the Municipality. 94% of households have 

access to waterborne sanitation and 6% makes use of sceptic tanks.  

 

The Municipality has provided internal sewer reticulation for 2,630 households. This was achieved in 

collaboration with the Department of Human Settlements (DHS). The bulk water project that was 

carried out by the district was completed on the year under review. We anticipate that these 

households would commence utilising flushing toilets in the next Financial Year (FY).  

 

In Christiana there  approximately 850 sceptic tanks which the municipality services using a vaccum 

truck and about 90 in Bloemhof in the Die Hoek area. These sceptic tanks have a significant impact on 

the operational costs as the Municipality makes use of honey suckers (suction trucks) to empty the 

tanks.  

 

The green drop assessment was not carried out by the Department of Water Affairs (DWA) - which is 

the custodian of the assessments. The assessments were not carried out owing to the financial 

distress experienced by the DWA. 

T.45 
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Employees:  Sanitation Services 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of 
total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 5 10 5 5 50% 

4 - 6 13 20 15 5 25% 

13 - 15 1 1 1 0 0% 

Total 19 31 21 10 32% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as 
at 30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents 
are calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post 
remains vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then 
dividing that total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                       T.47 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON SANITATION SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

 

The Municipality’s priority for the next 5 years is targeted at the upgrading of the waste water treatment 

plants. With the town and townships gradually expanding, the priority is to ensure the plants are able to 

accommodate the expected effluent. 

T.48 

 

 

 

ELECTRICITY 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY 

 

Note: Recent legislation includes the Electricity Amendment Acts 1989; 1994; 1995; and the Electricity 

Regulation Act 2006. 

 

The Municipality is a licence holder for provision of electricity to about 45% of households in Lekwa 

Teement Local Municipality. Access to electricity within the Municipality, including areas provided by 

Eskom, is 98%.  

 

The Municipality currently has a backlog of 205 households within the jurisdiction. The Municipality is 

also responsible for public lighting. There is a total of 51 high mast lights. The Municipality continues 

providing basic electricity to households registered as indigents.  

 

There were 750 electrical meters that were by-passed and a project was undertaken in the year under 

review, to replace those meters with split smart meters. Project was initially implemented in-house. 

Project will be completed by a service provider and it is expected to be completed in the next FY. 

T.49 
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T.50 

 

 

 

 

Description 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Actual Actual Actual 

No. No. No. 

Energy: (above minimum level) 
   Electricity (at least min.service level) 4 500 4 500 4 500 

Electricity - prepaid (min.service level) 13 074 13 524 13 524 

Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total 17 574 18 024 18 024 

Minimum Service Level and Above Percentage 97,5% 98,9% 98,9% 

Energy: (below minimum level) 
 

  

Electricity (< min.service level) 0 0 0 

Electricity - prepaid (< min. service level) 450 205 205 

Other energy sources 0 0 0 

Below Minimum Service Level sub-total 450 205 205 

Below Minimum Service Level Percentage 2,5% 1,1% 1,1% 

Total number of households 18 024 18 229 18 229 

  

T.51 
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Employees:  Electricity Services 

Job 
Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 2 8 2 6 75% 

4 - 6 4 15 4 11 73% 

16 - 18 1 1 1 1 0% 

Total 7 24 7 17 70% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 30 June. 
*Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are calculated by taking the 
total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains vacant and adding together all such 
days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that total by 250 to give the number of posts 
equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                T.52 

 

 

COMMENT ON ELECTRICITY SERVICES PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

 

The projects implememented in the under review includes upgrading the bulkline from Eskom 

switching station to the Municipality’s sub-station, and retrofitting of 575 streetlights in both towns 

(replacing old High Pressure Sodium [HPS] lights with new technology Light Emitting Diode [LED] to 

save energy used and operational costs on public lighting).  

 

The upgrading of the 11Kv bulk line from the Eskom switching station to the Municipality’s sub-station 

had a two fold intention. The first was to provide a ring-feed supply from Eskom to the Municipality. 

The second was to allow enhance the electrical supply to the industrial area. 

T.53 

 

3.4 WASTE MANAGEMENT (THIS SECTION TO INCLUDE: KERBSIDE COLLECTIONS, 

WASTE DISPOSAL, STREET CLEANING AND RECYCLING)  

 

INTRODUCTION TO WASTE MANAGEMENT 

 

Waste collection within the municipality is above 97% from every household. This figure also includes 

industrial and business collection points within the municipality. Collection is done diligently on a 

weekly basis per area. Street cleaning continues unabated on a weekly basis in both towns by staff 

from the waste and cleansing department. In other areas, the municipality makes use of Community 

Works Programme workers to provide this service. The acquisition of a new refuse removal truck in 

2018 has greatly improved the provision of this service. As communities expand, especially informal 

settlements, the municipality reacts by formalising these areas to ensure that they also receive service. 

The new informal settlement of Bloemhof Ext 12 is the latest such community with high numbers of 

indigent households who are now receiving basic refuse collection. 

  

T.54 
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  Households 

Description 
2016/2017 2017/2018 2019/20 

Actual Actual Actual 

  No. No. No. 

Solid Waste Removal: (Minimum level)      

Removed at least once a week 

16 233 
  

18 785 
  

18 785 
  

Minimum Service Level and Above sub-total 

Minimum Service Level and Above percentage 

Solid Waste Removal: (Below minimum level)  Supplied within minimum standards 
Supplied within minimum 
standards 

Supplied within 
minimum 
standards 

Removed less frequently than once a week       

Using communal refuse dump       

Using own refuse dump       

Other rubbish disposal 

  
  

    

No rubbish disposal 

    

Below Minimum Service Level sub-total 

Below Minimum Service Level percentage 

Total number of households                    16 233                    18785                    18785 

  T.55 

 

 

 

Employees:  Solid Waste Management Services 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 17 42 60 42 18 30% 

Total 42 60 42 18 30% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 30 June. *Posts 
must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are calculated by taking the total 
number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains vacant and adding together all such days lost 
by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the 
accumulated days.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                T.56 
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COMMENT ON WASTE MANGEMENT SERVICE PERFORMANCE OVERALL: 

 

The municipality currently operates 2 unlicensed landfill sites which were initially licensed to the Dr 

Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality. 2 new sites have been identified for dumping as soon 

as possible. The planning and licensing will commence in the near future as soon as the function is 

brought back to the municipality from the DRSM. 

                                                                                                                                                            T.57 

 

3.5 HOUSING 

 

INTRODUCTION TO HOUSING 

 

The municipality has made noticeable progress in the provision of housing in line with National housing 

standards and in most cases has performed above the provincial average. A number of township 

establishments have been undertaken in the municipality spread over multiple years. Along with that 

the municipality is now embarking on providing housing opportunities as opposed to concentrating only 

on fully subsidised housing. This entails creating a wider range of housing options for different markets 

ranging from rental units, fully subsidised units, Finance Linked Individual Subsidy Programme and 

Restructuring zones. 

 

On top of these formalised programmes, the municipality has been swift to intervene and provide basic 

services in a number of informal settlements which crop up unpredictably. The municipality has 

provided basic services such as water, cleansing and internal roads to such areas.  

T.58 

 

 

 

Percentage of households with access to basic housing 
Year end Total households  

(including in formal and informal 
settlements) 

Households in formal 
settlements 

Percentage of HHs in formal 
settlements 

2017/2018 16524 1000 6.1% 

2018/2019 20000 16950 84 

20019/20 20000 16950 84 

      T.59 
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Employees:  Housing Services 

Job Level 

2018/2019 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of 
total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 17 1 5 1 4 80% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                                                                                                                                              
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE HOUSING SERVICE OVERALL: 

 

For the 3 period from 2016 to 2019, the municipality is undertook 3 major projects in both Christiana 

and Bloemhof Ext 10. The budget from the Department of Local Government Human Settlements was 

R138 million to include just over 3220 fully subsidized units. The municipality is not a housing 

implementing agent but rather makes municipal land available for the development of social housing. 

The funding was  provided by the provincial Department of Local Government and Human Settlements 

thus all the expenditure on housing does not reflect on the municipal balance sheet. Every aspect of 

housing projects excluding land availability is provided for within the housing subsidy provided and 

managed by the above-mentioned department. 

T.61 
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3.6 FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT 

 

INTRODUCTION TO FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT 

 

Section 194 of the Constitution provides the Objects of Local Government, its existence and mandate. 

Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality provides free basic services to its residents as per the Indigent 

Register. 

T.62 

 

Free Basic Services To Low Income Households 

  

Number of households 

 
Total 

Households earning less than R1,100 per month 

  Free Basic Water Free Basic Sanitation Free Basic Electricity Free Basic Refuse 

Total  Access  %   Access  %   Access  %   Access  %  

2017/18 18,500 18,000 12,000 67% 10,000 56% 13,000 72% 7,000 39% 

2018/19 18,500 18,500 13,000 70% 11,000 59% 14,500 78% 8,000 43% 

2019/20 18,500 18,500 13,000 70% 11,000 59% 14,500 78% 8,000 43% 

                  T.63 

 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON FREE BASIC SERVICES AND INDIGENT SUPPORT: 

 

The municipality provide free basic services to all indigents that have been registered on the indigent 

register. The municipality also provide paupers funerals for famalies who cannot bury their loved ones. 

T.64 

 

 

 

 

COMPONENT B: ROAD TRANSPORT   

 

3.7 ROADS 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ROAD TRANSPORT 

 

The Municipality’s road network has a total length of 120km. Of that, 57km has an acceptable wearing 

course – that is, asphalt, chip and spray, paving, etc. The other 63km is gravel roads and taken as a 

backlog.  

                                                                                                                                                            T.65 
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Gravel Road Infrastructure 

    

Kilometres 

 

Total gravel roads New gravel roads 
constructed 

Gravel roads upgraded 
to tar/paving 

Gravel roads 
graded/maintained 

2017/18 65 0 2 65 

2018/19 63 3 2 63 

2019/20 63 0 0 3 

    

T.66 

 

Tarred Road Infrastructure 

Kilometers 

 

Total tarred/paved 
roads 

New tar/paved roads 
Existing tar roads re-

tarred 
Existing tar roads 

re-sheeted 
Tar roads 

maintained 

2017/18 55 2 0 0 3 

2018/19 57 2 0 0 3 

2019/20 

57 1 0 0 6 

     

T.67 

 

 

Cost of Construction/Maintenance 

R' 000 

 

Gravel Tar/Paved 

New 
Gravel - 

Tar/Paved 
Maintained New Re-worked Maintained 

2017/18 0,00 7 700 000,00 2 971 000,00 7 700 000,00 0,00 6 120 000,00 

2018/19 
0.00 10 400 000.00 3 150 000.00 10 400 000.00 0.00 6 450 000.00 

2019/20 

0.00 0.00 200 000 0 0.00 50 000 

      
T.68 
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Employees: Road Services 

Job 
Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 6 10 6 4 40% 

4 - 6 6 10 6 4 40% 

16 - 18 2 2 2 0 0% 

Total 14 22 14 8 36% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 30 
June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are calculated 
by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains vacant and adding 
together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that total by 250 to give the 
number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                                      T.69 
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Capital Expenditure 2019/20: Roads and Stormwater 

R' 000 

Capital Projects 

2019/20 

Budget Adjustment  
Budget 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance from 
original 
budget 

Total Project 
Value 

Total All  10 400 0 10 400 0%  

 

     

Project A 4 600 0 4 600 0% 4 600 

Project B 3 100 0 3 100 0% 3 100 

Project C 2 700 0 2 700 0% 2 700 

Project D 0 0 0 0% 0 

Total project value represents the estimated cost of the project on approval by council (including past and future 
expenditure as appropriate. T.70 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF ROADS OVERALL: 

A total length of 300 meters of road in Kukama street was paved in the year under review. The gravel 

roads were provided with a wearing course (paving blocks). 

T.71 
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3.9 WASTE WATER (STORMWATER DRAINAGE) 

 

INTRODUCTION TO STORMWATER DRAINAGE 

 

Storm water drainage is classified as a functional area of Municipalities under Schedule 5B of the 

Constitution.  

 

Key objectives for continued maintenance are: 

 

- Assets are maintained to perform at optimum levels during their life cycle – reducing service 

disruptions; 

- Critical areas are identified early and managed; 

- Performance of assets is reviewed to suit service delivery and to ensure assets are fit for purpose; 

- The costs of maintaining the assets over their life cycle is quantified and justified; 

- Information is gathered to assist future decision-making and budgeting; 

 

The maintenance includes the following: 

 

- Removal of silt in the storm water channels; 

- Weed control (encroachment) in the storm water channels; 

- Removal of silt in the storm water culverts; 

- Removal of debris in the storm water culverts; 

.  

                                                                                                                            

T.72 

 

 

Stormwater Infrastructure 

Kilometers 

 

Total Stormwater 
measures 

New stormwater 
measures 

Stormwater measures 
upgraded 

Stormwater measures 
maintained 

2017/18 55 2 0 6 

2018/19 
57 2 0 5 

2019/20 

57 1 0 4 

    

T.73 
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Employees: Stormwater Services 

Job 
Level 

2017/18 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 6 10 6 4 40% 

4 - 6 6 10 6 4 40% 

16 - 18 2 2 2 0 0% 

Total 14 22 14 8 36% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 30 
June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are calculated 
by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains vacant and adding 
together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that total by 250 to give the 
number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                                                                   T.75 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF STORM WATER DRAINAGE OVERALL: 

 

New lined (concrete) storm water was constructed in  Kukama Street(Boitumelong).  

- Construction of paved roads and storm water in Boitumelong; 

 

                                                                                                                                                      T.76 

 

 

 

 

 

Cost of Construction/Maintenance 

R' 000 

 

Stormwater Measures 

 

New Upgraded Maintained 

2017/18 7 700 000 0 6 120 000 

2018/19 10 400 0 5 900 

2019/20 0 0 50000 

   
T.74 
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COMPONENT C: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT  

 

This component includes: planning; and local economic development. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

Economic development is dependent on sound town planning frameworks and legislation being in 

place within a municipality. Clear town planning policies have a direct bearing on investor confidence 

within a municipality. The town planning legislation is in place but may be outdated and not in line with 

new national legislation as well keeping up with other legislation such as the Local Government: 

Municipal Systems Act, 2000. 

 

T.77 

 

 

 

3.10 PLANNING 

 

INTRODUCTION TO PLANNING 

The Lekwa-Teemane Land Use Scheme was last updated in 2015 as well as the Spatial Development 

Framework. These two form the backbone of municipal planning. Besides the outdated legislation, the 

municipality has never had a town planning staff complement since amalgamation in 2000. All town 

planning applications were handled by external consultants with approval given by Council. This 

arrangement worked well in terms of the old town planning ordinances dating back to 1986. The 

introduction of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act, 2013 changed the town planning 

landscape. This change in legislation has placed planning approvals in limbo within the municipality as 

there was no structure to approve planning applications. The absence of the Municipal Planning 

Tribunal effectively meant that the municipality was not able to approve any planning applications for a 

very long time. 

 

With the intervention of the Department of Rural Development and Land Affairs, the Lekwa-Teemane 

Spatial Development Framework was updated in the 2018-19 financial year to bring it up to date with 

new legislation and development trends. The Lekwa-Teemane Land Use Scheme is also currently 

under review with assistance from Department of Rural Development and Land Affairs . Finally, the 

municipality has made great progress in establishing the Municipal Planning Tribunal which has begun 

processing planning applications. 

T.78 
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Applications for Land Use Development 
Detail Formalisation of Townships Rezoning Built Environment 

2018/2019 2019/2020 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 

Planning application received 0 0 20 5 0 54 

Determination made in year of receipt 1 0 0 0 0 54 

Determination made in following year 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Applications withdrawn 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Applications outstanding at year end 0 0 19 5 0 0 

            T.79 

 

 

COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF PHYSICAL PLANNING OVERALL: 

 

Geluksoord Ext 2 and 3 Township development. Bloemhof Ext 12 township development. These were 

for subsidised housing with a total output of 3000 units. 

T.80 

 

 

3.11 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (INCLUDING TOURISM AND MARKET 

PLACES) 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ECONOMIC DEVLOPMENT 

 

The municipality gives support to emerging SMMEs through infrastructure projects i.e Water Pipeline 

to Schweizer-Reneke, rebuilding of the N12 within Bloemhof Town, Bloemhof Dam Development 

Project etc. The municipality was unable to review the LED Strategy due to lack of capacity. An 

intervention was sourced from Finance Economy and Enterprise Development Dpartment (FEED). A 

commitment was made by FEED to assist the municipality to review the LED Strategy in the 

2018/2019 financial  year though this has not materialised mainly due to budgetray constraints.  

T.81 

 

 

 

Economic Activity by Sector 
R '000 

Sector 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Agric, forestry and fishing  1.5 1.5 

Mining and quarrying  5 2 

Manufacturing  58 63 

Wholesale and retail trade  51 52 

Finance, property, etc.  48 52 

Govt, community and social services  25 25 

Infrastructure services  38 41 

Total  226.5 236.5 

     T.81 
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COMMENT ON LOCAL JOB OPPORTUNITIES: 

 

The municipality has Economic Development Plan, which aims to attract investors and create an 

environment for meaningful participation of SMMEs 

 

Jobs Created during 2019/20 by LED Initiatives (Excluding EPWP projects) 
Total Jobs 

created / Top 3 
initiatives 

Jobs created  Jobs 
lost/displaced 

by other 
initiatives 

Net total jobs 
created in 

year 

Method of validating jobs 
created/lost 

No. No. No.   

Total  (all 
initiatives)       

 2017/18 100 None No Information  N/A 

2018/19 20 None 20 Service Provider 

2019/20 0 0 0 0 

                                                     T 82 
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Job creation through EPWP* projects 

Details 

EPWP Projects  Jobs created through EPWP projects  

No. No. 

2017/18 1 103 

2018/19 1 200 

2019/20 1 200 

* - Extended Public Works Programme   T.83 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employees: Local Economic Development Services 

Job Level 

2017/18 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total 
posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

13 - 15 0 2 0 2 

66% 16 - 18 1 1 1 0 

Total 19 3 1 2  

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                                T.84 
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COMPONENT D: COMMUNITY & SOCIAL SERVICES  

 

This component includes: libraries and archives; museums arts and galleries; community halls; 

cemeteries and crematoria; child care; aged care; social programmes, theatres. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 

 

The municipality not only provides basic services to its residents, but has a number of compliementary 

social services which are meant to enhance the life experience of its residents. These services are 

meant to complement the other main services offered by the municipality to uplift communities 

especially those that may not afford private leisure and entertainment. To this end the municiaplity 

maintains a number of facilities such as play parks, libraries and stadiums. 

T.85 

 

3.12 LIBRARIES AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

 

INTRODUCTION TO LIBRARIES AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

 

In the 2017-2018 financial year, The Boitumelong Stadium was constructed at a fully funded cost of 

R11 million with a seating capacity of 1000 people. This facility has a soccer field, a track field, tennis 

court and a basketball court. The Coverdale Sports Ground also has a seating capacity of 1000 and 

caters for the community of Coverdale in Bloemhof. In Christiana there is the Geluksoord Stadium also 

with a seating capacity of 1000.  

 

Besides the sports facilities, there are libraries in Bloemhof, Christiana and Coverdale (Bloemhof 

township). The third library in Boitumelong (Bloemhof was burnt a few years back during protests) 

 

The sportsgrounds and libraries are complimented by an array of public open spaces and play parks 

scattered around the municipality, mostly in township areas where t the majority of the population is 

based.  

T.86 

 

Employees:  Libraries 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 0 0 0 0 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                      T.87 
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COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF LIBRARIES; ARCHIVES; MUSEUMS; GALLERIES; 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES; OTHER (THEATRES, ZOOS, ETC) OVERALL: 

 

The two new stadiums, namely the Geluksoord and Boitumelong stadiums were fully funded by the 

Department of Culture, Arts and Traditional Affairs (North West). The operating costs have been 

integrated into the operations of the Sports and Recreation Section within the municipality as we use 

the same personnel in the maintenance of the facilities.  

T.88 

 

 

 

 

3.13 CEMETORIES 

 

INTRODUCTION TO CEMETORIES 

 

The municipality maintains 5 cemeteries between Christiana and Bloemhof with no known 

crematorium services provided in the municipality. The current cemeteries available are sufficient to 

sustain burial service for the next few years.                                                                                      T.89 

 

Employees:  Cemeteries 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                     T.90 

 

 

 COMMENT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF CEMETORIES: 

No capital projects have been planned or completed in the last few years in this section.  

                                                                                                                                                            T.91 
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COMPONENT I: CORPORATE POLICY OFFICES AND OTHER SERVICES 

 

This component includes: corporate policy offices, financial services, human resource services, ICT 

services, property services. 

 

INTRODUCTION TO CORPORATE POLICY OFFICES 

 

Chapter 7 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa states that a municipality comprises 

councillors, officials and the community. In order for the municipality to govern its affairs correctly it 

must consult with the community to ensure that needs are correctly determined, explained and 

included in the IDP for Service Delivery purposes.  

 

Policies must be put in place which will address the needs of the community in terms of how service 

delivery matters will be addressed.  

 

In order for the municipality to be able to address service delivery matters, the municipality must within 

limits approve a budget that will be commensurate with the needs/projects identified for the particular 

year. This budget must also address staff matters and this can only be achieved through a costed 

organogram that must be cost-effective but that also provides sufficient management and other 

positions in order for the municipality to be able to render effective and satisfactory services.  

 

Management must ensure that tools of the trade are made available to staff. This includes ICT 

services and networks, including the necessary licenses.  

 

In order for the municipality to finance service delivery it must ensure that the budgetary expenditure 

will be redeemed through cash collection that will be generated by payment for services. Payment for 

services will be covered by payment for rates and taxes and will include proper and sufficient municipal 

service delivery network such as water pipes and reservoirs as well as sewer and electrical networks 

and plant and equipment. 

T.92 

 

3.24 EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 

 

This component includes: Executive office (mayor; councilors; and municipal manager). 

 

INTRODUCTION TO EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 

 

 

In terms of chapter 7 section 151 (2) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 101 of 1996, 

the executive and legislative authority of a municipality is vested in its municipal council.  

 

The municipal Council of Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality recognised as a municipality with 

Speaker/Mayor which is combined with a ward participatory system in terms of chapter 12 of the 

Municipal Structures Act, 117 of 1998. Section 152 of the Constitution categorically and clearly spells 

out the objectives of local government and the powers and functions of municipalities are determined 

in section 156 of the Constitution.  
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The executive authority of the Council vested with the Speaker/Mayor, who must however report to 

Council and is assisted by Councillors established for Portfolio and who may make decisions. 

However, there are certain matters on which the Speaker/Mayor as the head of the municipality cannot 

make decisions i.e. the approval of budget and IDP and bylaws, as these matters cannot be delegated 

and must be approved by Council.  

 

In terms of delegation of powers certain matters may be delegated by Council to the Mayor, who will in 

turn subdelegate to the Municipal Manager. The Municipal Manager may also sub-delegate to 

Directors, who may in turn further sub-delegate to other officials. 

T.93 

 

 

 

3.26 HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 

 

Employees: Human Resource Services 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of total 
posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 74 169 76 93 82% 

4 - 6 50 102 50 52 51% 

7 - 9 6 32 6 26 81% 

10 - 12 18 56 18 38 68% 

13 - 15 2 3 2 2 100% 

16 - 18 14 20 16 4 25% 

19 - 20 5 6 5 1 20% 

Total 169 388 173 215 80% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                      T.94 
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3.27 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (ICT) SERVICES 

 

This component includes: Information and Communication Technology (ICT) services. 

 

Employees: ICT Services 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies (fulltime 
equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % of 
total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 20 1 1 1 1 100% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                      T.95 

 

3.28 PROPERTY; LEGAL; RISK MANAGEMENT AND PROCUREMENT SERVICES 

 

This component includes: property; legal; risk management and procurement services. 

Employees: Property; Legal; Risk Management; and Procurement Services 

Job Level 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Posts Employees Vacancies 
(fulltime 

equivalents) 

Vacancies (as a % 
of total posts) 

No. No. No. No. % 

0 - 3 0 0 0 0 0 

4 - 6 0 2 0 2       100%   

7 - 9 0 0 0 0 0 

10 – 12 1 1 1 0 0 

13 - 15 2 2 2 0 0 

16 - 18 0 0 0 0 0 

19 - 20 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 3 5 3 2 40% 

Totals should equate to those included in the Chapter 4 total employee schedule. Employees and Posts numbers are as at 
30 June. *Posts must be established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget. Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public holidays) while a post remains 
vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that 
total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days.                                                                     T .96 
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COMPONENT K: ORGANISATIONAL PERFOMANCE SCORECARD 

 

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 1: SERVICE DELIVERY AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

  Number of 

households 

with basic 

waste 

collection. 

KPI.1 

 C.S 

Weekly 
Collection 
of refuse 

16 524 

househol

ds 

receive 

basic 

weekly 

waste 

collection 

Opex 19500 

households 

with basic 

waste 

collection by 

end June 

2020 

 Achieved 

18524  

households 

with basic 

waste 

collection by 

end June 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

 

Employees 

went on strike 

in the last 2 

weeks of the 

quarter 

Waste 

collection 

will resume 

after strike 

is over 

The 

backlog 

was 

cleared 

through 

over time 

and 

extended 

shifts 

Schedules 
containing Maps 
& Time sheets 

 No of 

landfill sites 

General 

maintenanc

e of landfill 

Weekly 

cleaning/

sorting 

Opex 2 landfill 

sites 

maintained 

Achieved 

2 landfill 

Not 

Achieved 

There is only 
one Grader in 
the whole 
municipality 

Budget for 

grader for 

Bloemhof 

Maintenance 
reports and 
photos 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

maintained 

KPI.2 

C.S 

 

sites as 

required by 

the 

National 

Environme

ntal 

Manageme

nt Waste 

Act, 2008.  

and 

upkeep 

of site. 

monthly by 

end June 

2020 

sites 

maintained 

monthly by 

end June 

2019 

 and it’s 
inconvenient 
to move the 
Grader 
between two 
towns which 
are 60 KM 
apart 

in the next 

financial 

year 

 Number of 

sports 

facilities 

maintained 

KPI.3 

C.S 

 

Quarterly 
maintenanc
e of 2 
existing 
sports 
facilities in 
Coverdale 
and 
Geluksoord  
Cleaning 
grass, 
cutting,  
irrigation,  
weed 

control  

2 sports 

facilities 

maintain

ed 

monthly 

Opex 3 sports 

facilities 

maintained 

on a monthly 

basis by end 

June 2020 

Achieved 

3 sports 

facilities 

maintained 

on a monthly 

basis by end 

June 2019 

 

Achieved   Maintenance 
reports and 
photos 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

 Number of 

municipal 

park and 

gardens 

maintained  

KPI.4 

 C.S 

Quarterly 
maintenanc
e of 2 
existing 
Geluksoord 
parks 
Maintance 
includes 
cleaning,  
irrigation,gr
ass 
cutting,wee
d  

Monthly 

maintena

nce of 

municipal 

park(gras

s cutting, 

removal 

of weeds, 

watering 

of plants, 

removal 

of waste) 

Opex 2 municipal 
parks and 
gardens 
maintained 
monthly by 
end June 
2020 

Achieved 

2 municipal 

parks and 

gardens 

maintained 

monthly by 

end June 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

 

Equipment not 

functional( 

Tractor or 

Slasher broke 

water pipes 

broken for 

prolonged 

period 

Fix 

equipment 

once we 

have funds 

and 

commence 

with 

programm

e 

Received 

help from 

department 

of public 

works 

Maintenance 
reports and 
photos 

 Number of 
signboards 
of illegal  
dumping 

erected 

KPI.5 

 C.S 

Erection of 
No 
Dumping 
Sites Signs 
on 
identified 
sites  
 

Illegal 

dumping 

Opex 20 

signboards 

of illegal 

dumping 

erected by 

end June 

2020 

Not 

Achieved 

0 signboards 

of illegal 

dumping 

erected by 

end June 

2019 

Not 
Achieved 
 

Cashflow 
Problems 

There is no 
cure for 
cashflow 
problems 
at this 
stage 

Approved 
Budget 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

 

 Number of 
cemeteries 
fenced 
 

KPI.6 

 C.S 

 

Perimeter 
fencing of 
available 
cemeteries 
with access 
control 
mechanism 
in place 

None 
existence 
of 
fencing 
around 
cemetrie
s-As of 
June 
2018, 
there are 
no 
fences 
around 
the 
available 
cemeteri
es. 

Opex 3 cemeteries 

fenced by 

end June 

2020 

Not achieved 

0 cemeteries 

fenced by 

end June 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

 

No funds Put in the 

next 

budget and 

hope funds 

will be 

available 

Approved 
Budget 

Service 

Delivery 

and 

Infrastructur

e 

Developme

Number of 

High Mast 

lights to be 

repaired/ma

intained in 

(Bloemhom 

Replaceme

nt of 

broken 

bulbs 

54 High 

mast 

lights 

 16 High 

Mast lights 

to be 

repaired/mai

ntained in 

(Bloemhof 

New KPI Achieved   Job cards 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

nt and 

Christiana) 

KPI.7 

T.S  

and 

Christiana) 

by end June 

2020 

 Number of 

highmast 

lights 

upgraded to 

LED 

luminaries 

KPI.8  

T.S  

Changing 

of 

400Watts 

HPS lights 

to 

279Watts 

LED lights. 

The 

municipality 

has 32 

highmast 

lights in 

Bloemhof 

and 22 

highmast 

lights in 

Chriatiana 

54 total 

number 

of 

municipal 

highmast 

lights 

4 000 

000 

24 highmast 

lights 

upgraded to 

LED 

luminaries 

by end June 

2020 

New KPI Achieved   Tender advert, 
Appointment 
letter, 
Progress report, 
& 1 project 
close-out report. 
Completion 
certificate 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

 Number of 

highmast 

lights 

installed 

KPI.9 

T.S 

 

Installation 

of highmast 

lights in 

Boitumelon

g,Coverdal

e, Ext 10, 

Utlwanang 

and 

Geluksood 

66 total 

number 

of 

municipal 

highmast 

lights in 

Bloemhof 

R41997

18 

4 highmast 

lights in 

Boitumelong, 

Coverdale 

and Ext 10 

by end June 

2020 

New KPI Achieved   Tender advert, 
Appointment 
letter, Progress 
reports & 1 X 
Project Close-
out report. 
Completion 
certificate  
 

ROADS AND STORMWATER 

 KM of 

municipal 

roads 

maintained 

KPI.10 

T.S 

 

Patching of 

potholes, 

cleaning 

and road 

markings  

Bloemhof 

Christiana 

Boitumelon

gUtlwanan

g 

Geluksoord 

Coverdale 

Salamat  

Pothole 

riddled 

roads 

Opex 2 KM of 

municipal 

roads 

maintained 

by end June 

2020 

Achieved Not 

Achieved 

Lack of fleet, 

material and 

personnel 

Appoint 

staff, 

procure 

materials 

and 

purchase 

vehicles 

Report and  
Photos  
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

 KMs of 

storm water 

drainage 

maintained  

KPI.11 

T.S 

Cleaning of 

storm water 

drainage 

system 

10km 

stormwat

er 

drainage 

R3 

00 000.

00 

5 km of 

storm water 

drainage 

maintained 

by end June 

2020 

Achieved 

5.10 Km of 

storm water 

drainage 

maintained 

by end June 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

Lack of fleet, 
material and 
personnel. 

Appoint 
staff, 
procure 
materials 
and 
purchase 
vehicles. 

Report and  

Photos 

 Km of 

municipal 

internal 

roads 

paved 

KPI.12 

T.S 

Constructio

n of paved 

roads and 

stormwater 

in Mosiwa 

Street 

Gravel 

Road 

R2 799 

532.52 

500m of 

municipal 

internal 

roads paved 

by end June 

2020 

Achieved 

1.6 Km of 

municipal 

internal 

roads paved 

by end June 

2020 

Not 
Achieved 

Allocation for 
the 2019/20 
FY was for the 
designs and 
not 
construction.    

Designs 
complete – 
project 
may be 
implement
ed in 19/20 
FY should 
LTLM 
receive 
MIG 
additional 
funding.  

Tender advert, 
Appointment 
letter, Progress 
reports & 1 X 
Project Close-
out report.  
Completion 
certificate 
 

 KMs of 

municipal 

internal 

roads 

paved 

Constructio

n of paved 

roads and 

stormwater 

in 

Boitumelon

Gravel 

Road 

R7 054 

100.41 

1.2km of 

municipal 

internal 

roads paved 

by end June 

Achieved 

1.6 Km of 

municipal 

internal 

roads paved 

Not 

Achieved 

No progress 

recorded 

owing to Covid 

19 delays and 

Non payment 

Work will 

resume 

after 

relaxation 

of 

regulation 

Tender advert, 
Appointment 
letter, Progress 
reports & 1 X 
Project Close-
out report.  
Completion 



 

61 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performanc

e Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason For 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

KPI.13 

T.S 

 

g 2020 by end June 

2020 

to contractor and 

payment is 

effected 

certificate 
 

WATER AND SANITATION 

  Number of 

Water 

Meters 

replaced in 

Bloemhof 

and 

Christiana 

KPI.14 

T.S 

 

Replaceme

nt of faulty 

200 water 

meters in 

Christiana 

and 200 

water 

meters in 

Bloemhof 

14 230 

total 

municipal 

water 

meters 

 400 Water 

Meters 

replaced in 

Christiana 

and 

Bloemhof by 

end June 

2020 

New KPI Not 

Achieved 

 

Lack of fleet, 
material and 
personnel. 

Appoint 
staff, 
procure 
materials 
and 
purchase 
vehicles. 

Report and 
Photos 
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KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 2: LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

IDP Objective Objective  Key Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Strengthening 

the enabling 

environment 

through more 

flexible 

regulations, 

better access 

to finance 

and markets, 

improved 

infrastructure 

facilities and 

business 

support 

Local 

Economic 

Developmen

t 

LED Strategy 

aligned to the 

Provincial and 

National LED 

Strategy/Framewor

k developed  

KPI.15 

MO C.S 

 

 

LED Strategy that 

is going to assist 

in identifying the 

potential investors 

Outdated 

LED strategy 

Opex Review and 

alignment of LED 

strategy to 

National and 

Provincial 

strategies by end 

June 2019 

Not 

Achieved 

1 Letter of 

request to 

review LED 

Strategy and 

discuss 

Lekwa 

Teemane 

Projects and 

Programmes 

Not 

Achieved 

No Funds Budget 

for in the 

next 

financial 

year and 

hope 

funds will 

be 

available 

Approve

d 

Budget  

Local 

Economic 

Developmen

t 

Number of 

municipal LED 

intergovernmental 

platforms 

convened.   

KPI.16 

LED 

Intergovernmental 

platforms that 

allows for 

information 

sharing on 

opportunities 

Inconsistent 

LED 

engagements 

Opex 4 LED 

intergovernmental 

platforms 

convened by 

June 2020 

 

Achieved 

4 LED 

intergovern

mental 

platform 

convened by 

Not 

Achieved 

Covid 19 

prevented 

gatherings 

Work will 

resume 

when the 

Country 

moves to 

better 

Covid 

Regulati

on 
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MO C.S 

 

 

existing in sector 

departments 

end June 

2019 

levels 

Local 

Economic 

Developmen

t 

Number of work 

opportunities 

created through 

CWP.  

KPI.17 

MO C.S 

 

Employment 

opportunities 

created through 

CWP 

350 work 

opportunities 

Opex 500 work 

opportunities 

created through 

CWP by June 

2020 

Achieved 

518 work 

opportunities 

created 

through 

CWP by end 

June 2019 

Achieved   Appoint

ment 

contract

s 

Local 

Economic 

Developmen

t 

Number of jobs 

created through the 

municipality’s local 

economic 

development 

initiatives including 

capital projects  

KPI.18 

MO C.S 

 

   100 Jobs created 

through the 

municipality’s 

local economic 

development 

initiatives 

including capital 

projects by end 

June 2020 

Achieved 

100 created 

through the 

municipality’

s local 

economic 

development 

initiatives 

including 

capital 

projects by 

end June 

2019 

Achieved 

 

  Appoint

ment 

letter 
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    KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 3: MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND MANAGEMENT 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Build and 

strengthe

Municipal 

Financial 

Number 

of 

Finance 
policies 

Finance 
policies 

Ope 10 

reviewed 

Achieved Achieved   Attach the 

policies 

 Local 

Economic 

Developmen

t 

Number of work 

opportunities 

created through 

EPWP 

KPI.19 

MO C.S 

 

  Opex 80 work 

opportunities 

created through 

EPWP by end 

June 2020 

New KPI Achieved   EPWP 
Appoint
ment 
Letters 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

n the 

financial 

manage

ment of 

the 

municipa

lity to 

enhance 

service 

delivery 

and 

achieve 

clean 

audit by 

2019 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

financial 

policies 

reviewed 

adopted 

by 

council  

KPI.2

0 

BTO 

  
1. Credit 
Control 
debts 
collection, 
2. Asset 
managem
ent policy,  
3. Indigent 
policy, 4. 
Property 
Rates 
policy  
, 5. Supply 
Chain 
Managem
ent Policy,  
6. Tariff 
policy, 7. 
Cash 
Managem
ent policy, 
8. Budget 
Policy 9. 
Borrowing 
policy.  
10. Cost 

  
1. Credit 
Control 
debts 
collection
, 2. Asset 
manage
ment 
policy,  
3. 
Indigent 
policy, 4. 
Property 
Rates 
policy  
, 5. 
Supply 
Chain 
Manage
ment 
Policy,  
6. Tariff 
policy, 7. 
Cash 
Manage
ment 
policy, 8. 

x and 

approved 

financial 

policies 

by end 

June 

2020 

10 

reviewed 

and 

approved 

financial 

policies 

by end 

June 

2019 

reviewed, 

Council 

Resolution  
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Containm
ent Policy 
- Review 3 

policies 

per 

quarter 

and if 

changes 

adopted 

by council.  

Budget 
Policy 9. 
Borrowin
g policy.  
- Review 
3 policies 
per 
quarter 
and if 
changes 
adopted 
by 
council. 
10. Cost 
Contain
ment 
Policy 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Number 

of reports 

on 

effective 

revenue 

manage

ment 

submitte

d by end 

Reports 

on 

debtors’ 

reconciliati

ons, how 

many 

household

s have 

been 

Reports 

on 

Revenue 

Manage

ment 

Ope

x 

12 

reports 

on 

effective 

revenue 

manage

ment 

submitte

d by end 

Achieved 

12 

reports 

on 

effective 

revenue 

manage

ment 

Not 

Achieved 

Because of 

the 

financial 

system set 

up, we 

can’t run 

the report 

Service 

Provider to 

set up the 

system, so 

that we can 

run the report 

and do the 

analysis 

Reports 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

June 

2020 

KPI.2

1 

BTO 

billed and 

how much 

has been 

collected 

June 

2020 

submitte

d by end 

June 

2019 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Number 

of reports 

on 

expendit

ure 

manage

ment 

submitte

d  

KPI.2

2 

BTO 

Reports 

on 

creditors 

reconciliati

ons, 

reports on 

and 

withdrawal

s 

Reports 

on 

Expendit

ure 

Manage

ment 

Ope

x 

12 

reports 

on 

expendit

ure 

manage

ment 

submitte

d by end 

June 

2020 

Achieved 

12 

reports 

on 

expendit

ure 

manage

ment 

submitte

d by end 

June 

2019 

Achieved   Reports 

Municipal 

Financial 

Number 

of reports 

Expenditur

e reports 

Condition Ope 12 

reports 

Achieved Achieved   Report 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

on the 

Condition

al Grants 

spending 

in 

accordan

ce with 

DoRA 

and 

Grant 

Framewo

rks by 

end June 

2019 

KPI.2

3 

BTO 

on 

conditional 

Grants 

al Grants x on the 

Condition

al Grants 

spending 

in 

accordan

ce with 

DoRA 

and 

Grant 

Framewo

rks by 

end June 

2020 

12 

reports 

on the 

Condition

al Grants 

spending 

in 

accordan

ce with 

DoRA 

and 

Grant 

Framewo

rks by 

end June 

2019 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Number 

of SCM 

complian

ce 

Quarterly 
report on  
1 Contract 
managem
ent,  

4 SCM 
complian
ce 
reports to 
be 

Ope

x 

4 SCM 

complian

ce 

reports 

Achieved 

4 SCM 

complian

ce report 

Achieved   Attach 

Quarterly 

reports  
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Manage

ment 

reports 

submitte

d by end 

June 

2020 

KPI.2

4 

BTO 

2. 
Deviation 
report, 3. 
Bid 
awarded 
above R 
200 000.  
4. Number 

of 

quotations 

5. Repairs 

and 

Maintenan

ce 

6. UIF&W 

submitte
d  
 

submitte

d by end 

June 

2020 

submitte

d by end 

June 

2019 

 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Financial 

viability 

as 

expresse

d by the 

ratios 

(debt 

coverage 

Financial 
viability as 
expressed 
by the 
ratios 
(debt 
coverage 
ratio = 4 : 
1, 

12 
Financial 
Viability 
Reports 
Expresse
d in 
Ratios  
 

Ope
x 

4 

Financial 

viability 

ratios 

report by 

end of 

each 

Not 

Achieved 

4 

Financial 

viability 

ratios 

report by 

Not 

Achieved 

The 

debtors 

and 

creditors 

report were 

not 

accurate 

due to 

The debtors 

information as 

contained in 

the section 71 

reports will be 

used to 

compile the 

ratio per 

Attach 

Financial 

viability 

ratios report. 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

ratio, 

outstandi

ng 

service 

debtors 

to 

revenue, 

Cost 

coverage 

ratio) 

KPI.2

5 

BTO 

outstandin
g service 
debtors to 
revenue = 
3:1, Cost 
coverage 
age = 3:1)  
 

quarterly end of 

each 

quarterly 

system 

errors and 

the ratio 

comparison 

were noty 

done on 

monthly or 

uartely 

basis but 

only at the 

end of the 

financial 

yaer. 

quarter  

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Number 

of 

Indigents  

househol

ds 

receiving  

Free 

Free basic 
services 
provided 
to 
household 
earning 
less than 
R3500. 
Benefits 
that are 

7116 

indigents 

currently 

receiving 

free 

basic 

services 

Ope

x 

10 000 

Indigents  

househol

ds 

receiving  

Free 

Basic 

Not 

Achieved 

7259 

Indigents  

househol

ds 

Not 

Achieved 

 

Campaign 

organised 

by the 

municipality 

not 

attracting 

people to 

register. A 

Conduct the 

indigent 

registration 

campaign with 

the assistance 

of the 

councillors 

and ward 

Indigent 

Register 



 

71 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Basic 

Services 

 

KPI.2

6 

BTO 

provided.  
1. 6klm 
Water  
2. 50 klw 
electricity  
3. Other 

services at 

100% 

Services 

by end 

June 

2020 

 

receiving  

Free 

Basic 

Services 

by end 

June 

2019 

 

campaign 

was done 

in quarter 

that was 

not 

successful 

committee 

members. 

Doing a door 

to door 

campaign to 

reach all the 

household per 

section. 

 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Percenta

ge (%) 

collection 

of 

revenue 

achieved 

 

KPI.2

7 

BTO 

Quarterly 
revenue 
collected 
against 
the actual 
billing  
 

59% 

Collectio

n rate 

Ope

x 

80% 

collection 

of 

revenue 

achieved 

by the 

end June 

2020 

Not 

Achieved 

61% 

collection 

of 

revenue 

achieved 

by the 

end June 

2019 

Not 
achieved 
 

Accounts 
not posted 
or not 
posted on 
time. 
 
Culture of 
none 
payment by 
debtors. 
 
High rate of 
unemploym
ent and  
 

Ensure that 
accounts are 
posted on 
time  
 
Encourage 
consumers to 
pay and 
implement the 
credit control 
and debt 
collection 
policy. 
 
Local 

Attach 

progress 

report and 

Schedule C 

MFMA 

Section 71 

Reports  

 



 

72 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

75% of our 
consumers 
are 
indigent. 
 
 

Economic 
Development 
must come up 
with strategies 
on how to 
improve the 
local 
economy. 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Percenta

ge of 

municipal

ity’s 

budget 

actually 

spent on 

impleme

nting its 

workplac

e Skills 

Plan 

KPI.2

8 

The 

budgeted 

amount for 

WSP per 

Vote 

WSP  100%  of 

municipal

ity’s 

budget 

actually 

spent on 

impleme

nting its 

workplac

e skills 

plan by 

end June 

2020 

Not 

Achieved 

0% 

Quarterly 

report on 

budget 

actually 

spent on 

impleme

nting its 

workplac

e skills 

plan by 

end June 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

Cash flow  

Constraints 

Funding from 
Donors & 
Improvement 
in Cashflow 

Attach 

monthly 

report 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

BTO 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Percenta

ge of a 

municipal

ity’s 

capital 

budget 

actually 

spent on 

capital 

projects 

identified 

for a 

particular 

financial 

year in 

terms of 

the 

municipal

ity’s 

integrate

d 

develop

Report on 

actual 

spending 

on MIG 

and INEP 

capital 

expenditur

e 

2018/19 

Expendit

ure 

Ope

x 

100% of 

municipal

ity’s 

capital 

budget 

actually 

spent on 

capital 

projects 

identified 

for a 

particular 

financial 

year in 

terms of 

the 

municipal

ity’s 

integrate

d 

develop

ment 

Achieved 

100% 

Quarterly 

report on 

budget 

actually 

spent on 

Capital 

projects 

identified 

by end 

June 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

The 

municipality 

received 

additional 

allocation 

on the MIG 

due to 

good 

performanc

e and the 

COVID 

restriction 

delayed the 

implementa

tion of the 

projects. 

The proper 

planning 

including 

advertising 

the projects 

before the 

financial year 

and aligning 

the Rwork to 

be done with 

the realistic 

cash flows 

from National 

Government 

and other 

spheres  

Capex 

Project 

Report 

Attach 

Quarterly 

Reports 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

ment 

plan 

KPI.2

9 

BTO 

plan 

submitte

d  by end 

June 

2020 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Timeous 

submissi

on of 

2018/19 

Annual 

Financial 

Statemen

ts to 

Auditor 

General 

 

KPI.3

0 

Submissio

n of 

Annual 

Financial 

Statement

s to AGSA 

Timeous 

submissi

on of 

Draft 

consolida

ted 

2018/19 

Annual 

Report to 

Internal 

Audit 

Committ

ee & 

Auditor 

General   

by 31 

Ópe

x  

Timeous 

submissi

on of 

2017/18 

Annual 

Financial 

Statemen

ts to 

Auditor 

General 

by end 

August 

2019 

Achieved 

Timeous 

submissi

on of 

2018/19 

Annual 

Financial 

Statemen

ts to 

Auditor 

General 

by end 

August 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

The  

infrastructu

re assets 

for the 3 

previous 

years were 

not 

unbundled 

by the 

previous 

service 

provider. 

Proper 

reconciliati

ons were 

not done at 

the 

migration of 

Completed 

assets will be 

unbundled as 

an when they 

are completed 

to avoid 

delays in 

capitalization. 

Ensure that 

the take on 

balances are 

fixedretrospec

tively. 

Prepare the 

Interim 

Financial 

Statements. 

 

Attach 

acknowledg

ement of 

receipts of 

AFS  
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performa

nce 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Bud

get 

Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performa

nce 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

BTO August 

2019 

 the 

system.(Ta

ke on 

balances 

not 

properly 

supported) 

 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

and 

Manage

ment 

Percenta

ge of 

audit 

findings 

addresse

d 

KPI.3

1 

BTO 

Audit 

findings 

addressed 

as 

contained 

in the post 

audit 

action 

plan 

Post 

Audit 

Action 

Plan 

Ope

x 

100% of  

audit 

findings 

addresse

d by end 

June 

2020 

Not 

Achieved 

88%  of  

audit 

findings 

addresse

d by end 

June  

2019 

Not 

Achieved 
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KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 4: INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRANSFORMATION 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

To provide 

the 

necessary 

strategic 

support for 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

Number of posts 

filled as per the 

approved 

funded structure  

Filling of 

12 critical 

posts that 

are 

provided 

20 Posts 

filled 

Opex 12 posts filled 

as per the 

approved 

funded structure 

by end June 

Achieved 

26 posts filled 

as per the 

approved 

Achieved   Adv

erts, 

Inter

view 

& 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

the 

implementati

on of the 

SDBIP 

mation KPI.32 

CP.S 

for in the 

Organisati

onal 

Structure 

in line with 

request by 

various 

Directorate

s and 

allocated 

funds in 

the budget. 

2020  

 

funded 

structure by 

end June 2019  

 

App

oint

men

t 

lette

rs 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

employees 

employed in 

accordance with 

the Employment 

Equity Plan 

 

KPI.33 

CP.S 

In terms of 

Employme

nt Equity 

Plan target 

groups 

include 

disabled 

and 

women.  

These 

groups to 

be 

considered 

8 

Employe

es 

employe

d 

accordin

g to EEP. 

Opex 2  employees 

employed in 

accordance with 

the Employment 

Equity Plan by 

end June 2020 

Achieved 

5 Employee 

employed in 

accordance 

with 

Employment 

Equity Plan by 

end June 2019 

Achieved   Attendanc

e 

Registers; 

Training 

Report 



 

78 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

during the 

recruitment 

and 

selection 

process. 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

officials 

capacitated in 

terms of the 

workplace Skills 

Plan 

KPI.34 

CP.S 

Officials of 

the 

municipalit

y to be 

capacitate

d with skills 

as 

provided 

for in the 

WSP 

 

50 

officials 

trained 

during 

2017/18 

Financial 

year. 

Opex 10 officials 

capacitated in 

terms of the 

workplace Skills 

Plan by end 

June 2019 

Not Achieved 

14 officials 

capacitated in 

terms of the 

workplace 

Skills Plan by 

end June 2019 

Not Achieved Covid 19 

affected 

performanc

e 

Training 

will rolled 

over to the 

net 

financial 

year 

Attendan

ce 

register 

& 

Training 

Report 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

councillors 

trained  

 

KPI.35 

Councilors 

capacitate

d in line 

with skills 

provided 

for in the 

WSP 

 14 

Councillo

rs 

Trained 

in 17/18 

Opex 16 Councillors 

trained by end 

June 2020 

Not Achieved 

6 Councillors 

trained by end 

June 2019 

Not Achieved Covid 19 

affected 

performanc

e 

Training 

will rolled 

over to the 

net 

financial 

year 

Attendanc

e 

Registers 

& Training 

Reports 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

CP.S 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

learnership 

opportunities 

created  

 

KPI.36 

CP.S 

Unemploye

d youth 

and 

employees 

enrolled in 

the learner 

ships in 

line with 

the WSP 

113 

learners 

enrolled 

on 

Learner 

ship 

opportuni

ties 

created 

in 

2017/18 

Funded 

by 

LGSET

A 

 10 learner ship 

opportunities 

created by end 

June 2020 

Achieved 

7 

interns/learner 

appointed 

Achieved   Appoint
ment 
letters/co
ntract 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

reports on the 

workplace skills 

plan submitted 

to LGSETA  

 

KPI.37 

CP.S 

A plan for 

skills 

developme

nt to be 

developed 

in 

consultatio

n with 

employees 

and 

organized 

labour. 

WSP 

approved 

and 

submitte

d to 

LGSETA 

before 

end of 

April 

2019 

Opex 1 report on the 

workplace skills 

plan submitted 

to LGSETA by 

April 2020 

Achieved 

WSP Report 

submitted to 

LGSETA in 

April 2019 

Achieved   Approved 

WSP, Skill 

Audit 

Report 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of   

Local Labour 

Forum meetings 

held 

KPI.38 

CP.S 

LLF 

meetings 

to be held 

in line with 

agreed 

meeting 

schedule. 

5 Local 

Labour 

Forum 

meetings 

held. 

 Opex 4 Local Labour 

Forum meetings  

held by end 

June 2020 

Achieved 

12 Local 

Labour Forum 

meetings  held 

by end June 

2019 

Achieved Covid 19 

pandemic 

contributed 

significantl

y to non 

achieveme

nt of this 

target 

Convene 

LLF and 

observe 

Covid 19 

protocols 

Notice/Min

utes/Atten

dance 

Register. 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

SDBIP quarterly 

performance 

reports 

generated  

 

KPI.39 

MM 

Performan

ce reported 

on 

quarterly 

basis 

4 SDBIP 

quarterly 

performa

nce 

report 

submitte

d. 

Opex 4 SDBIP 

quarterly 

performance 

reports  

generated by 

end June 2020 

Achieved 

4 SDBIP 

Quarterly 

Performance 

Report 

generated by 

end June 2019 

Achieved   Institutiona

l Quarterly 

Report 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

Number of 

annual 

municipal 

performance 

reports 

developed in 

Annual 

Municipal 

performanc

e 

developed 

to measure 

Annual 

Report 

submitte

d. 

Opex 1 annual 

municipal 

performance 

report 

developed in 

compliance with 

Achieved 
 
1 annual 

municipal 

performance 

report 

Achieved   Copy of 
Annual 
Report 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

mation compliance with 

section 46  

 

KPI.40 

MM 

Institutional 

performanc

e. 

section 46  

by end August 

2019 

developed in 

compliance 

with section 46  

by end August 
2019 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Municipal 

oversight report 

submitted to 

Council  

 

KPI.41 

MM 

1 Municipal 

oversight 

report  

submitted 

to Council 

by end 

March 

2020 

Municipal 

Council 

Oversight 

report 

submitte

d. 

Opex 1 Municipal 

oversight report 

submitted to 

Council by end 

March 2020 

Achieved 
1 Municipal 
oversight 
report 
submitted to 
Council by end 
March 2019 

Not achieved Delay in 
finalising 
audit and 
tabling of 
Annual 
Report 

Continue 
to urge 
Council to 
table 
Annual 
Report 

Copy of 
Ovsersigh
t Report 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

signed 

performance 

agreements by 

MM and Section 

56 employees  

5 signed 

performanc

e 

agreement

s by MM 

and 

Section 56 

employees 

3 

Performa

nce 

Agreeme

nts 

signed. 

Opex 5 signed 

performance 

agreements by 

MM and Section 

56 employees 

by  July 2019 

Achieved 
Performance 
Agreements 
signed 

Achieved   Signed 
Copies of 
performa
nce 
Agreeme
nts 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

 

KPI.42 

MM 

by end  

July 2018 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Mid-Term 

performance 

assessment 

conducted  

 

KPI.43 

MM 

Performan

ce report 

detailing 

the 

performanc

e of the 

municipalit

y for the 1st 

half of the 

financial 

year 

2018/201

9 Mid-

Term 

report 

Opex 1 Mid-Term 

performance 

assessment 

conducted by 25 

January 2020 

Achieved 

1 Mid Term 

Performance 

Assessment 

Report 

submitted 

Achieved   Mid Term 
Report 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Approved 

SDBIP  

 

KPI.44 

MM 

1 

Approved 

SDBIP 

aligned to 

IDPs and 

budget. 

SDBIP 

for 

Corporat

e 

Services 

submitte

d. 

Opex 1 Approved 

SDBIP by end 

June 2020 

Achieved 

SDBIP 

Approved 

Achieved   Approved 
SDBIP 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 

reports on the 

implementation 

of Occupational 

Health Safety 

policy  

 

KPI.45 

CP.S 

Complianc

e with OHS 

ACT 

1 report 

submitte

d on 

impleme

ntation of 

OHS. 

Opex 2 reports on the 

implementation 

of Occupational 

Health Safety 

policy by end 

June 2020 

Not Achieved 

 

Achieved   OHS 

Reports, 

Attendanc

e Register 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of 
reports  
submitted 
to   council     
on   disciplinary  
cases 

KPI.46 

CP.S 

Compilatio

n of Labour 

Reports on 

quarterly 

basis.  

4 

Reports 

Submitte

d to 

Council 

on 

Labour 

cases 

referred 

to 

Bargainin

g 

R000.0

0 

2 Reports 

submitted to 

council  

on 

Labour cases 

referred to  

Bargaining 

Council by end 

June 2020 

Not Achieved 

Only one 

report 

submitted 

Not Achieved 

 

There were 

no cases 

referred to 

the 

Bargaining 

Council 

As and 
when 
cases are 
filed, report 
will be 
tabled in 
Council 

N/A 
Council 
Report 
attached 
with 
Referral 
forms and 
notices of 
set down 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual Target Annual Actual 

Performance 

2018/19 

Annual Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Institution

al 

Develop

ment and 

Transfor

mation 

Number of IDP 

Representative 

Meetings Held 

KPI.47 

MM 

IDP 

meetings 

held for 

public 

participatio

n. 

2 IDP 

Represe

ntative 

meetings 

held. 

 2 IDP  

Representative 

meetings  

Held by end 

June 2020 

 

Not Achieved Not Achieved 

 

The 

meeting 

was 

arranged 

but 

stakeholde

r did not 

attend and 

it was 

resolved 

that it be 

scheduled 

for 

February 

 

The 

indicator is 

misplaced, 

Corporate 

Services 

department 

is 

responsibl

e for the 

coordinatio

n of IDP 

Public 

Participatio

n not 

arrangeme

nt of 

meetings 
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KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 5: GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performan

ce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

To ensure 

good 

governanc

e 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

% council 

resolutions 

implemented  

KPI.48 

CP.S 

To ensure 

effective and 

efficient 

secretarial 

services  

4 matrix 

Resolution 

Register 

Developed   

Opex 100% 

impleme

ntation of 

Council 

resolutio

ns by 

end June 

2020 

Achieved 

100% 

implement

ation of 

Council 

resolutions 

by end 

June 2019 

Not 

Achieved 

Covid 19 

affected 

performa

nce 

It will be 

done in the 

next 

financial 

year 

100% Update 

the Resolution 

Register 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Number of   

section 79 and 

80 committee 

Provide 

support to 

Council and its 

Schedule of 

Portfolio 

Committee 

Opex 4 Section 

79 and 

80 

Achieved 

11 Section 

Not 

Achieved 

No 

gathering 

allowed 

It will be 

done after 

Covid 19 

Minutes/Attenda

nce 

Registers/Minut
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performan

ce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Public 

Participatio

n 

meetings held. 

KPI.49 

CP.S 

committees  sittings 

developed  

committe

e 

meetings 

held by 

end June 

2020 

79  & 80 

meeting 

held by 

end June 

2019 

during 

regulatio

n 5 

regulations 

are relaxed 

es 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Number of 

Ward 

committee 

meetings held 

KPI.50 

CP.S M.O 

Provide 

support to 

Council and its 

committees 

96 

Committee 

meetings 

held. 

Opex 96 Ward 

committe

e 

meetings 

held by 

end June 

2020 

Not 

Achieved 

60 Ward 

Committee 

meetings 

held by 

end June 

2019 

Not 

Achieved 

No 

gathering 

allowed 

during 

regulatio

n 5 

Ward 6 is 
not 
holding 
meetings 
 

 

It will be 

done after 

Covid 19 

regulations 

are relaxed 

Urgent 
Interventio
n by 
Speaker 
office to 
address 
the matter 
with the 
Ward 
Council for 
Ward 6. 
 

Minutes/Attenda

nce 

Registers/Minut

es 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performan

ce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Anti-corruption 

strategy 

implemented 

 

KPI.51 

CP.S 

Implementatio

n of approved 

anti-corruption 

strategy to 

minimise 

corruption. 

Policy 

Developed 

and adopted 

by Council, 

Workshop 

attended in 

the District. 

Opex Impleme

ntation of 

approved 

anti-

corruptio

n 

strategy 

by end 

June 

2020 

 

Achieved 

Implement

ation of 

approved 

anti-

corruption 

strategy by 

end June 

2019 

 

Not 

Achieved 

No 

gathering 

allowed 

during 

regulatio

n 5 

 

It will be 

done after 

Covid 19 

regulations 

are relaxed 

 

N/A Attendance 

Registers 

Report 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Information 

and 

Communicatio

n Technology 

Governance 

policy 

implemented 

 

KPI.52 

The ICT 

Governance 

Policy be 

developed and 

submitted to 

Council for 

approval and 

must be in line 

with Provincial 

framework. 

ICT 

Governance 

Policy 

developed  

Opex Informati

on and 

Communi

cation 

Technolo

gy 

Governa

nce 

policy 

impleme

nted by 

Achieved 

Developed 

and 

Stakeholde

rs 

workshopp

ed 

Not 
Achieved 

No 

gathering 

allowed 

during 

regulatio

n 5 

 

It will be 

done after 

Covid 19 

regulations 

are relaxed 

 

Report 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performan

ce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

CP.S end June 

2020 

 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Number of 

council public 

participation 

programmes 

conducted  

KPI.53 

CP.S M.O 

Meetings and 

Activities to be 

convened on 

the five 

concretes as 

adopted by 

Council. 

12 Council 

public 

participation 

programmes 

conducted. 

Opex 3 Council 

public 

participati

on 

program

mes 

conducte

d by end 

June 

2020 

Achieved 

13 Council 

public 

participatio

n 

programm

es 

conducted 

by end 

June 2019 

Not 

Achieved 

No 

gathering 

allowed 

during 

regulatio

n 5 

 

It will be 

done after 

Covid 19 

regulations 

are relaxed 

 

Notice/Attendan

ce Register. 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Number of 

Public Ward 

committee 

meetings held 

KPI.54 

CP.S M.O 

Provide 

support to 

Council and its 

committees 

96 

Committee 

meetings 

held. 

Opex 32 of 

Public 

Ward 

committe

e 

meetings 

held by 

end June 

Not 

Achieved 

60 of 

Public 

Ward 

committee 

meetings 

Not 

Achieved 

Most of 
the Ward 
Councillo
rs are not 
holding 
Public 
Ward 
Committe
e 

Urgent 
Interventio
n by 
Speaker 
office to 
address 
the matter 
with the 
Ward 

Minutes/Attenda

nce 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performan

ce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

2020 held by 

end June 

2019 

meetings
. 
No 

gathering 

allowed 

during 

regulatio

n 5 

 

Council for 
Ward 6. 
It will be 

done after 

Covid 19 

regulations 

are relaxed 

 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Communicatio

n strategy 

implemented 

KPI.55 

CP.S M.O 

Communicatio

n Strategy to 

be developed 

and submitted 

to Council for 

approval. 

Inputs 

submitted for 

Communicati

on Strategy 

and the 

Workshop 

conducted. 

Opex Communi

cation 

strategy 

impleme

nted by 

end June 

2020 

Achieved 

Communic

ation 

strategy 

developed 

by end 

June 2019 

Not 

Achieved 

Covid 19 

affected 

the 

process 

The target 

will be 

achieved in 

the net 

financial 

year 

Approved 

Communication 

Policy/Attendan

ce 

Register/Trainin

g Report 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

Number of 

Newsletters 

produced 

KPI.56 

Newsletters 

produced to 

distributed to 

members of 

the community  

New KPI Opex 2 

Newslett

ers 

produced 

by end 

June 

New KPI Not 

Achieved 

Covid 19 

affected 

the 

process 

The target 

will be 

achieved in 

the net 

financial 

Newsletters 



 

90 

 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performan

ce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

n CP.S 2020 year 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Updated 

municipal 

website 

KPI.57 

CP.S 

  Opex Updated 

municipal 

website 

by end 

June 

2020 

New KPI  Achieved   4  report on the 

updated website 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Number of By-

laws reviewed  

KPI.58 

CP.S 

All Municipal 

By-laws to be 

reviewed and 

submitted to 

Council for 

approval. 

 

1 By law 

reviewed. 

Opex 10 By-

laws 

reviewed 

by end 

June 

2020 

 

Not 
Achieved 

Not 
Achieved 

By Laws 
were 
identified 
but the 
process 
of but 
tabling to 
Council 
and 
Public 
participati
on is not 
yet done 

The 
process 
will be 
done in the 
next 
financial 
year 

Draft By 
Laws/Council 
Resolution, 
Attendance 
Register/Notice 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Implementatio

n and 

Monitoring of 

Assessment 

and 

continuous 

General 

information 

on municipal 

R1376 

884.00 

100% 

impleme

ntation of 

Achieved 

100% 

implement

Not 

Achieved 

Environment

By-Laws 

are 

drafted 

Public 

participatio

n and 

Reports of EHP 

and Covid 19 

Report 
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IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

Annual 

Actual 

Performan

ce 

2018/19 

Annual 

Actual 

Performance 

2019/20 

Reason 

for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

Public 

Participatio

n 

municipal by-

laws on a daily 

basis 

KPI.59 

C.S  

monitoring of 

municipal by-

laws. 

by-laws in 

place: Noise 

Control, 

Dumping, 

Land Use 

Scheme. 

municipal 

by-laws 

by end 

June 

2020 

ation of 

municipal 

by-laws by 

end June 

2019 

al & Covid 

19 related by 

laws were 

done 

still to be 

approved 

by 

Council 

for public 

participati

on 

implement

ation will 

be done in 

the next 

financial 

year 

Good 

Governanc

e and 

Public 

Participatio

n 

Number of risk 

registers 

updated 

KPI.60 

MM 

An updated 

risk register, 

reflecting the 

risks within the 

municipality 

Risk 

Registers 

R000.00 3 risk 

registers 

updated 

by end 

June 

2020 

Achieved 

3 risk 

register 

updated by 

end June 

2019 

Achieved   Updated Risk 

Register for the 

department. 
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KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 6: SPATIAL RATIONALE 

IDP 

Objective 

Objective  Key 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicator 

Definition 

Baseline Budget Annual 

Target 

 Actual 

Annual 

Performance 

Reason for 

Deviation 

Remedial 

Action 

POE 

 To ensure 

good 

governance 

Spatial 

Development 

Framework 

aligned with 

IDP 

developed 

KPI.61 

MM 

Development 

of a Spatial 

Development 

Framework 

Old Spatial 

Development 

Framework 

R000.00 Spatial 

Development 

Framework 

aligned with 

IDP 

developed 

by end June 

2020 

Achieved   Spatial 

Development 

Framework 

 To ensure 

good 

governance 

IDP adopted 

by council 

 

KPI.62 

MM 

Adoption of 

the IDP 

aligned to 

District, 

provincial 

and national 

plan 

2018/19 IDP R000.00 IDP adopted 

by council by 

end May 

2020 

 

 

Not 

Achieved 

Covid 19 

has 

affected 

process of 

public 

participation 

Conduct 

public 

meetings 

utilizing 

Virtual 

System or 

limit 

participants 

to fifty 

people in 

line with 

Covid 19 

regulations 

Approved 

IDP 
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SUMMARY OF ANNUAL ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL KPIs                     =62 

TOTAL ACHIEVED          =29 

TOTAL NOT ACHIEVED =33 
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EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDER’S INFORMATION 

Project Description Contractor Name Start Date End Date Progress 

Appointment for the 
provision of the 
security  MEG Security  05/07/2018 30/06/2021 

Still on Terms 

Professional VAT 
Recovery  CCG Systems  05/07/2018 06/2021 

Still on Terms 

Panel of attorneys • 1. De Swartdt Vegel  
• 2. FK Nemaname  
• 3. Kgomo Attorneys 
Inc  
• 4. KNT Attorneys  
• 5. Leepile Attorneys IN  
• 6. Lizel Venter 
Attorneys  
• 7. Modiboa Attorneys  
• 8. Russia Langa 
Attorneys  
• 9. T Makoko Attorneys 
Inc  
• 10. TJ Fiduli Trading 
Enterprise 05/07/2018 06/2021 

Still on Terms 

Supply and Delivery of 
Cold Asphalt and 
SS60 Drums as and 
when needed for the 
period of 36 months 

• 1. EK Construction  
• 2. TT Resources • 05/10/2020 

• 18/10/2020 09/2021 

Still on Terms 

Appointment for the 
supply and delivery of 

• 1. Zela Holdings (Pty) 
Ltd  

30/11/2018 
31/10/2019 

Still on Terms 
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Cleaning Materials as 
and when needed for 
the period of 12 
months. 

• 2. Velezwine (Pty) Ltd  
• 3. Ikgo Logistics (Pty) 
Ltd  
• 4. Gotsilemang 
General Sales 

Appointment for the 
supply ad delivery of 
Stationery for the 
period of 36 months as 
and when needed 

• 1. EK Construction 
and All General Trading  
• 2. Gotsilemang 
General Sales  
• 3. Matlosana Books 
and Stationery  
• 4. Zela Holdings (Pty) 
Ltd  
• 5. L. Benjamin Trading 
• 6. Ikgo Logistics (Pty) 
Ltd 30/11/2018 11/2021 

Still on Terms 

Appointment of a 
Service Provider for 
the rendering of a 
complete turnkey 
solution for the 
provision of revenue 
enhancement service, 
online and real time 
electricity vending, 
revenue protection, 
ICT backend and 
metering for the period 
of 36 months- 

Cigicell 

18/02/2019 01/2022 

Dispute 

Appointment of a panel 
Service Provider: 
Supply and delivery of 
sanitation and water 
materials for the period 
of 24 Months 

• Ek Construction and 
all general trading 
• Seiteo Trading 
enterprise (Pty) Ltd 
• NRB Pipping System 
(Pty) Ltd 

28/03/2019 

03/2021 

Still on Terms 
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• L Benjamin Trading  
• DSH Holdings (Pty) 
Ltd 

Appointment of a panel 
of Consultants for Civil, 
Structural and 
Electrical for the period 
of 36 months  

Civil and Structural 
• KIPP Consultants 
• Calliper consulting 
Engineering  
• Pule Ramasimong 
Development 
• MDCC (Pty) Ltd 
• Engineering Aces 
Electrical Consultants 
• Motla Consulting 
• Korone Engineering 15/04/2019 03/2022 

Still on Terms 

Appointment of a 
Service Provider for 
the Procurement of 
Turnkey Solution of 
ICT Infrastructure for a 
period 3 years. 

Khanya Africa Networks  

04/03/2020 02/2023 

Still on Terms 

Retrofitting 203(160W) 
High Pressure sodium 
(HPS) street lights & 
297 (400W) HPS Mast 
Luminaries with 70W 
(Streetlights) and 
279W (High Mast 
Luminaries) Light 
Emitting Diode (LED) 
lights 

RJJ Project 
management (Pty) Ltd 

23/07/2019 Completed 

Completed 

Bloemhof: 
Construction of paved 
internal roads and 
stormwater in 
Boitumelong 

Momotheka Trading  
Gaberton Investments 

18/07/2018 31/07/2020 

 80% Progress 
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Christiana: Installation 
of high mast lights in 
Geluksoord and 
Utlwanang 

Tshikamota 
Trading/Bokamoso 
Training JV  

05/09/2018 18/12/2019 

Completed 

Bloemhof: Installation 
of high mast lights in 
Salamat, Coverdale 
and Boitumelong 

RJJ Project 
Management; 

24/08/218 31/07/2020 

87% Progress 

Christiana: 
Construction of paved 
roads and stormwater 
in Mosiwa Street 

Momotrade Trading 
(Earthworks) 

25/02/2019 30/11/2020 

25% Progress 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 4 – ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE  
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(PERFORMANCE REPORT PART II)  

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

In terms of the approved organizational structure the Municipality consists of the Office of the Municipal Manager and (4) Departments, 

namely Corporate Services, Technical Services, Community Services and Budget and Treasury Office. The function of Strategic 

Planning, Monitoring and Control reside in the Office of the Municipal Manager. The Municipality has an approved complement of 388 on 

the organizational structure 205 posts are filled and 197 are vacant (47% vacancy rate) 

 

 

COMPONENT A: INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL PERSONNEL 

 

 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES 

 

 

 

 

Employees 

Description 

2018/19 2019/20 

Employees Approved Posts Employees Vacancies Vacancies 

  No. No. No. No. % 

Waste Water (Sanitation) 24 46 24 22 48% 

Electricity 7 22 7 15 68% 

Waste Management 26 43 26 17 39% 

Housing 1 4 1 3 75% 

Waste Water (Stormwater Drainage) 9 28 9 19 68% 

Roads 
 

    

Local Economic Development 1 5 1 4 80% 

Planning (Strategic &Regulatary) 1 1 1 0 0 
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Corporate Services 26 42 26 16 38% 

Totals 

95 191 95 96 50% 

 

        T.97 

 

 

 

 

 

Vacancy Rate: 2019/20 
Designations *Total Approved Posts *Vacancies            (Total 

time that vacancies exist 
using fulltime equivalents) 

*Vacancies  
(as a proportion of total 
posts in each category) 

  No. No. % 

Municipal Manager  1 1 100% 

CFO 1 0 0 

Other S56 Managers (excluding Finance Posts) 3 1 33% 

Other Managers (Finance posts) 5 1 20% 

Other Managers (Corporate Services) 3 0 0 

Other Managers (Community Services) 5 0 0 

Other Managers (Technical Services) 3 0 0 

Other Managers (Office of the Mayor) 1 0 0 

Highly skilled supervision: levels 9-12 (excluding Finance posts) 51  35   31% 

Highly skilled supervision: levels 9-12  (Finance posts) 16  0 0 

Total 89  39  44% 
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Note: *For posts which are established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments budget (where changes in employee provision 
have been made). Full-time equivalents are calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public 
holidays) while a post remains vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then 
dividing that total by 250 to give the number of posts equivalent to the accumulated days. 

T.98 

 

 

Turn-over Rate 

Details 

Total Appointments as of beginning of 
Financial Year 

Terminations during the Financial Year 

Turn-over Rate* 

No. No. 

2017/18 150 13 9% 

2018/19 188 4 2.1% 

2019/20 188 1  

* Divide the number of employees who have left the organisation within a year, by total number of employees who 
occupied posts at the beginning of the year 

T.99 

 

 

COMMENT ON VACANCIES AND TURNOVER: 

 

The table above shows the turn over-rate in the Municipality for the current and previous years.  The 

total vacancy rate for the financial year under review is 47% vacancy rate. 

. T.100 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

101 

 

COMPONENT B: MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

 

INTRODUCTION TO MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE MANAGEMENT 

 

Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality acknowledges that its most important assets are its employees.  It is therefore responsible to ensure 

that these assets are developed, maintained and motivated to ensure that the Municipal workforce services are sustained. 

Municipal workforce management is achieved through the HR Strategy, adherence to and compliance with applicable legislation and 

reviewing policies, procedures and processes aimed at regulating the workplace. 

 

The Municipality has its policies which is aimed at ensuring that all processes are followed and implemented.  Policies and plans provide 

guidance for fair and consistent staff treatment and a consistent approach to the managing of staff. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                 T.101 
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 POLICIES 

 

HR Policies and Plans 

  

Name of Policy Completed  Reviewed Date adopted by council or comment on 
failure to adopt 

    %  % 

1 Affirmative Action 90% None The Policy is covered under Employment Equity 
is existing and under review. 

2 Attraction and Retention 0%  90% Policy is developed and not yet adopted by 
Council. 

3 Code of Conduct for employees 100%  None Existing 

4 Delegations, Authorisation & Responsibility 100% None It awaits adoption by the Council. 

5 Disciplinary Code and Procedures  90%  90% The Municipality is utilities the Collective 
Agreement.  The policy is developed and it is still 
a draft. 

6 Essential Services 100%  None The policy is existing. 

7 Employee Assistance / Wellness 90%  90% Policy developed still a draft 

8 Employment Equity 100%  None Policy existing 

9 Exit Management 100%  None Policy existing 

10 Grievance Procedures 90%  90% Policy developed and it is still a draft. 

11 HIV/Aids 90%  90% Policy developed and it is still a draft. 

12 Human Resource and Development 100%  None Policy existing 

13 Information Technology 100%  None Policy existing 

14 Job Evaluation 90%  90% Policy developed and it is still a draft. 

15 Leave 100%  None Policy existing 

16 Occupational Health and Safety 100%  None Policy existing 

17 Official Housing 50%  50% Policy is in a developing stage 



 

103 

 

HR Policies and Plans 

  

Name of Policy Completed  Reviewed Date adopted by council or comment on 
failure to adopt 

    %  % 

18 Official Journeys 100%  None Policy existing 

19 Official transport to attend Funerals 90%  90% Policy developed and it is still a draft. 

20 Official Working Hours and Overtime 100%  90% Policy existing and under review 

21 Organisational Rights 100%  None Policy existing 

22 Payroll Deductions 100%  None Policy existing 

23 Performance Management and Development 90%  90% Policy developed and it is still a draft. 

24 Recruitment, Selection and Appointments 100%  90% Policy existing and under review 

25 Remuneration Scales and Allowances 100%  None Policy existing 

26 Resettlement 0%  None Policy is not existing 

27 Sexual Harassment 100%  None Policy existing 

28 Skills Development 100%  None Policy existing 

29 Smoking 90%  90% Policy is not existing 

30 Special Skills 0.00%  0% Policy is not existing 

31 Work Organisation 100%  None Policy existing 

32 Uniforms and Protective Clothing 100%  None Policy existing 

33 Other:       

Use name of local policies if different from above and at any other HR policies not listed. 

T.102 

 

COMMENT ON WORKFORCE POLICY DEVELOPMENT: 

 

Human Resource maintains and develops policies and procedure which comply with applicable legislation and provide necessary 

guidelines and awareness among employees on issues related to the workplace.  The Municipality has reviewed its policies during this 

reporting year and the process is still on consultation stage. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                 T.103 
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INJURIES, SICKNESS AND SUSPENSIONS 

 

 

Number of days and Cost of Sick Leave (excluding injuries on duty) 2019/20 

Salary band 

Total sick leave Proportion of sick 
leave without 

medical 
certification 

Employees using 
sick leave 

Total employees 
in post* 

*Average sick 
leave per 

Employees 

Estimated 
cost 

Days % No. No. Days R' 000 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0% 0 0 0 R0.00  

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 110 6% 10 72 7.4 R 92 273.85  

Highly skilled production (levels 6-
8) 

20 12% 6 43 19 R 21 977.73 

Highly skilled supervision (levels 
9-12) 

21 7% 3 22 7.5 R 155 912 

MM and S57 0 0 0 0 0 R 0.00 

Total 746 7.1% 68 147 33.9 R270 163.58 

* - Number of employees in post at the beginning of the year 

T.104 *Average is calculated by taking sick leave in column 2 divided by total employees in column 5 
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0.15

0.26

0.88

0.04

1.48

0.42

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Lower skilled (Levels 1-

2)

Skilled (Levels 3-5) Highly skilled 

production (levels 6-8)

Highly skilled 

supervision (levels 9-12)

Senior management 

(Levels 13-15)

MM and S57

Average Number of Days Sick Leave (excluding IOD)

 
                                                                                                                                                                               

 

COMMENT ON INJURY AND SICK LEAVE: 

 

The Human Resource unit deals with sick leave efficiently and the capturing of sick leave days has improved a lot.  The general sick 

leave pattern is seasonal especially in winter.  Managers are monitoring sick leaves in their sections and departments. 

 

There was no injury on duty reported in 2018/19 financial year. 

T.105 

 

Number and Period of Suspensions 2019/20 
 Position Nature of Alleged Misconduct Date of 

Suspension 
Details of Disciplinary Action taken 
or Status of Case and Reasons why 

not Finalised 

Date Finalised 

Manager:  Parks, Recreation and 
Cleansing  Gross Insubordination 19-Apr-18 Dismissed December 2018 
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        T106 

 

 

Disciplinary Action Taken on Cases of Financial Misconduct 2019/20 
 Position Nature of Alleged Misconduct and Rand value of 

any loss to the municipality 
Disciplinary action taken Date 

Finalised 

None None None None 

      T.107 

 

 

COMMENT ON SUSPENSIONS AND CASES OF FINANCIAL MISCONDUCT: 

 

There were no financial misconduct cases reported during 2018/19 financial year 

T108 

 

4.4 PERFORMANCE REWARDS 

 

COMMENT ON PERFORMANCE REWARDS: 

 

No performance rewards were provided for financial year 2019/20 

T .109 
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COMPONENT C: CAPACITATING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

 

INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT 

 

The municipality reviewed HR policies and the policies are awaiting approval.   

T.110 

4.5 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 

 

 

 Financial Competency Development:  Progress Report* 

Description A.  
Total number of 
officials employed  
by municipality 
(Regulation 14(4)(a) 
and (c)) 

B.  
Total number of 
officials employed by 
municipal entities 
(Regulation 14(4)(a) 
and (c) 

Consolidated: Total 
of A and B 

Consolidated: 
Competency 
assessments 
completed for A and 
B (Regulation 
14(4)(b) and (d)) 

Consolidated: Total number 
of officials whose 
performance agreements 
comply with Regulation 16 
(Regulation 14(4)(f)) 

Consolidated: Total number of 
officials that meet prescribed 
competency levels (Regulation 
14(4)(e)) 

Financial Officials             

Accounting officer 1 0 1 1 1 1 

Chief financial officer 1 0 1 1 1 1 

Senior managers 3 0 3 3 3 3 

Any other financial officials 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Supply Chain Management 
Officials 

            

Heads of supply chain 
management units 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Supply chain management 
senior managers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 5 0 5 5 5 5 

* This is a statutory report under the National Treasury: Local Government: MFMA Competency Regulations (June 2007) 
T.111 
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COMMENT ON SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND RELATED EXPENDITURE AND ON THE FINANCIAL COMPETENCY REGULATIONS: 

In terms of the Skill Development Act (1998 and Municipal Systems Act (2000) employers are obliged to provide employees with 

necessary Skill/training to develop their human resource capacity.  It is stated in Section 55 (1) that the Municipal Manager as the head of 

administration must ensure that employees are trained to be able to be effective on their day to day activities. 

 

80% of Councillors and 50% of Employees were capacitated.  90% of finance officials meet the competency requirements stipulated by 

the legislation i.e. National Treasury Regulations.  The remaining 20% of finance employees will be registered in the next financial year 

(2018/19).                                                                                                                                                                                                T.112 

 

 

 

COMPONENT D: MANAGING THE WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE  

 

INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE 

 

Workforce expenditure is how municipality seeks to obtain value for money from work force expenditure.  There is a strong national drive 

for creating employment and municipalities are one arm of government that normally feel the pressure to create new jobs in its sphere.  

Although the Municipality is depending on its financial viability to support the creation of employment.  The creation and the filing of posts 

are budgeted for and measured against the approved budget and operational requirements. 

The remuneration part of employment costs is determined through the bargaining Council.  Salary wage increments are also determined 

by bargaining Council and implemented as prescribed.                                                                                                                      T.113 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 EMPLOYEE EXPENDITURE 
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19,000 

20,000 

21,000 

22,000 

23,000 

24,000 

25,000 

26,000 

Year -3 Year -2 Year -1 Year 0

Workforce Expenditure Trends (R' 000)

 
Source: MBRR SA22                                     

 

COMMENT ON WORKFORCE EXPENDITURE: 

 

Effective Management of employee expenditure is achieved by applying sound management principles and the continuous revision and 

application of policies and procedures. 

The purpose of the Task Job Evaluation system is to achieve uniform norms and standards in the description of similar jobs and their 

grading and to underpin job comparison.  Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality has evaluated all the positions in the Organisational 

Structure and the process was finalised.  70% of the positions in the Organisational Structure were upgraded and increase in salaries 

through Job Evaluation Process. 

T.114 

 

 

Number Of Employees Whose Salaries Were Increased  Due To Their Positions Being Upgraded 
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Beneficiaries Gender Total 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 
Female 0 

Male 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 
Female 0 

Male 0 

Highly skilled production Female 7 

(Levels 6-8) Male 6 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels9-12) 
Female 2 

Male 9 

Senior management (Levels13-16) 
Female 2 

Male 12 

MM and S 57 
Female 0 

Male 0 

Total 38 

Those with disability are shown in brackets '(x)' in the 'Number of beneficiaries' column as well as in the numbers at the right hand side of the 
column (as illustrated above). 

T.115 

 

 

 

Employees Whose Salary Levels Exceed The Grade Determined By Job Evaluation 

Occupation 
Number of 
employees 

Job evaluation level Remuneration level Reason for deviation 

None None None None None 

        T.116 
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Employees appointed to posts not approved 

Department Level Date of Appointment No. appointed 
Reason for appointment when no established post 
exist 

None None None None None 

        T.117 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS 

 

In terms of the requirements of the Local Government:  Municipal Performance Regulations for Municipal Managers and Managers 

directly accountable to Municipal Managers, disclosures were made by Councillors, Senior Managers and Middle Managers concerning 

their financial interest                                                                                                                                                                        
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CHAPTER 5 – FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

5. AN ASSESSMENT BY THE MUNICIPALITY’S ACCOUNTING OFFICER OF ARREARS ON 

MUNICIPAL TAXES AND SERVICE CHARGES 

 

Current 30 Days 60 Days 90 Days 120 Days+ Balance

Contribution per 

Service Type

Property Rates 3,759,950.36R     1,306,000.72R     1,252,720.42R     2,996,852.32R     51,736,465.53R     61,051,989.35R     9%

Water 3,753,751.45R     1,926,726.58R     2,221,194.49R     5,451,566.63R     287,780,840.41R   301,134,079.56R   42%

Electricity 9,634,141.97R     4,282,203.91R     3,888,652.64R     5,362,125.68R     39,066,558.33R     62,233,682.53R     9%

Sewer 2,235,123.51R     1,011,073.68R     994,330.67R        4,291,625.20R     110,532,167.92R   119,064,320.98R   17%

Refuse Removal 1,755,804.07R     794,112.23R        776,948.99R        3,479,704.03R     83,796,704.61R     90,603,273.93R     13%

Interest on outstanding debtors 12,767,144.85R   6,195,385.20R     6,039,802.55R     11,678,149.54R   34,445,814.45R     71,126,296.59R     10%

Other 1,384,336.73R     80,892.24R           109,218.48R        303,587.21R        8,658,090.60R       10,536,125.26R     1%

35,290,252.94R  15,596,394.56R  15,282,868.24R  33,563,610.61R  616,016,641.85R  715,749,768.20R  

5% 2% 2% 5% 86% 1  
 

 

 

 

The municipality rates and taxes accounts have grown to R715 749 768 over the years and 

this is really great concern to the Municipality. The age analysis above indicates that the 

greater portion of the monies that are owed to the municipality are older than 120 days and 

more which cast doubt on the collectability of the amounts. The Municipality will be 

embarking on strategies to reduce the debtor book of the municipality. The strategies include 

the following  

 Writing off the irrecoverable debts  

 Providing incentive to consumers to pay their accounts timeously 

 

 Converting the prepaid conventional meters to prepaid meters 

 Registering of the indigents. 

 Performing data cleansing on the debtor’s book of the Municipality 
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5.1 CONSOLIDATE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
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CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS 

 

6.1. AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 

 

 

 

Report of the auditor-general to the North West provincial 
legislature and the council on the Lekwa-Teemane Local 
Municipality 

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements 

Disclaimer of opinion 

1. I was engaged to audit the consolidated and separate financial statements of the 
Lekwa- Teemane Local Municipality and its subsidiary (the group) set out on pages 113 
to 226, which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of financial position as 
at 30 June 2020, the consolidated and separate statement of financial performance, 
consolidated and separate statement of changes in net assets, consolidated and 
separate cash flow statement and the consolidated and separate statement of 
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes 
to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 

2. I do not express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements of 
the municipality. Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for 
disclaimer of opinion section of this auditor’s report, I have not been able to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these 
consolidated and separate financial statements. 
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion 

Preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements 

3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the accounting officer 
has fulfilled her responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with the Standards of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP), as written 
representations in this respect were not provided. I was also unable to obtain written 
representations from the accounting officer that I had been provided with all the 
relevant information and access as agreed in terms of the audit engagement, and that 
all transactions had been recorded and were reflected in the consolidated and separate 
financial statements. I could not determine the effect of the lack of such representations 
on the financial position of the municipality and the group as at 30 June 2020 or the 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. 

Property, plant and equipment 

4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, plant and 
equipment due to differences between the financial statements and the underlying 
accounting records and non-submission of information relating to work in progress, 
disposals of assets as well as restatements to the corresponding figures. I was unable 
to confirm the property, plant and equipment by alternative means. In addition, the 
municipality did not do an assessment of the remaining useful lives and residual values 
or indicators of impairment as required by GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment 
and GRAP 21, Impairment of non-cash generating assets and some completed 
infrastructure assets were not unbundled to ensure that significant items are 
depreciated separately. I was unable to quantify the resultant misstatement of 
property, plant and equipment as it was impracticable to do so. Consequently, I was 
unable to confirm whether any further adjustments to property, plant and equipment of 
R358 044 878 (2019: R378 998 989) and R357 972 740 (2019: R378 895 862) as 
disclosed in note 5 or the depreciation expense of R20 880 709 (2019: R22 723 943) 
and R20 849 124 (2019: R22 668 866) as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated and 
separate financial statements respectively were necessary. 

Investment property 

5.  I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for investment property for 
the current year and prior year due to inability of management to provide reliable 
information for the fair value adjustment to these properties. I could not confirm the fair 
value adjustment by alternative means. In addition, the municipality incorrectly 
recognised some land as investment property without having control of the land in 
accordance with GRAP 16, Investment property and IGRAP 18, Recognition and 
derecognition of land. As a result, investment property and the accumulated surplus is 
overstated by R70 667 829 in both the consolidated and separate financial statements. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustments to the 
investment property of R144 268 680 (2019: R139 668 889) disclosed in note 4 to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements or the fair value adjustments of R4 599 
790 (2019: R5 539 963) presented in the consolidated and separate statement of 
financial performance were necessary. 
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Long term receivables 

6.  I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for long term receivables as 
the municipality did not have adequate systems to maintain records to support financial 
information for long term receivables. I was unable to confirm these receivables by 
alternative means. In addition, the municipality did not disclose the current portion of long 
term receivables as required by GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements. I was 
unable to quantify the resultant misstatement of long-term receivables as it was 
impracticable to do so.Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further 
adjustment to long term receivables of R6 317 958 (2019: R7 547 700) as presented in 
the consolidated and separate statement of financial position was necessary. 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

7.  I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for receivables from 
exchange transactions due to a lack of proper record keeping and lack of reconciliation 
of control accounts by the municipality. I could not confirm the receivables from 
exchange transactions by  alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustment to receivables from exchange transactions of              
R9 882 506 (2019: R4 200 034) as disclosed in note 11 to the consolidated and separate 
financial statements was necessary. 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for receivables from non-
exchange transaction due to poor status of accounting records and differences 
between the financial statements and the accounting records. I could not confirm the 
receivables from non-exchange transactions by alternative means. In addition, the 
municipality did not disclose receivables relating to assessment rates and traffic fines 
as required by GRAP 108, Statutory receivables. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any further adjustment to the receivables from non exchange 
transactions of R24 744 364 (2019: R12 382 419) and R24 744 364 (2019: R12 382 
419) as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated and separate financial statements 
respectively was necessary. 
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Consumer debtors 

   9.   I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for consumer debtors as the 
municipality did not have adequate systems to maintain records to support financial 
information and differences between the consolidated and separate financial statements 
and the accounting records. I could not confirm the consumer debtors by alternative 
means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to consumer 
debtors of R109 486 177 (2019: R89 465 516) as disclosed in note 13 to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary. 

Employee benefit obligation 

10.   I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had 
properly accounted for the employee benefit obligations due to the status of the 
accounting records and non-submission of information in support of the employee 
benefit obligation. I was unable to confirm this employee benefit obligation by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments 
to employee benefit obligation of R24 948 238 as disclosed in note 20 to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements and the actuarial gains of R4 241 713 
as presented in the consolidated and separate statement of financial performance were 
necessary. 

Provisions 

   11.    I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had 
properly accounted for the environmental rehabilitation provisions due to the status of 
the accounting records and non-submission of information in support of these 
provisions. I was unable to confirm these provisions by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to the environmental 
rehabilitation provision of R9  929 124 included in provisions as disclosed in note 19 to 
the consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary. 

Payables from exchange transactions 

    12.  I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from exchange 
transactions due to differences between the financial statements and the accounting 
records and non-submission of information relating to the restatement of the 
corresponding figure. I was unable to confirm these payables from exchange 
transactions by alternative means. In addition, the municipality incorrectly classified 
items that met the definition of contingent liabilities in accordance with GRAP 19, 
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets as payables from exchange 
transactions resulting in payables from exchange transactions as disclosed in note 21 
to the consolidated and separate financial statements being overstated by R173 884 
237 and the accumulated surplus understated by R173 884 237. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any further adjustment to payables from exchange 
transactions of R437 540 193 (2019: R349 679 097) and R435 672 364 (2019: 
R349 259 261) as disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated and separate financial 
statements respectively was necessary. 
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VAT payable 

      13.   I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the VAT payable due to 
differences between the financial statements and the accounting records and non-
submission of information relating to the restatement of the corresponding figure. I was 
unable to confirm the VAT payable by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustment to the VAT payable of R23 334 962 (2019: 
R10 350 739) as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated and separate financial  
statements was necessary. 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

     14.  I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for revenue from service       
charges for the current year and the previous year, due to poor status of accounting and  
differences between the financial statements and the accounting records. I was unable to 
confirm this revenue from service charges by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to service charges revenue of R185 
267 178 (2019: R130 760 179) as disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated and separate 
financial statements was necessary. 

    15.   I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for interest earned on trade   
receivables as the municipality did not have adequate systems to maintain records to 
support financial information on which interest earned on trade receivables is calculated. 
I was unable to confirm the interest earned on trade receivables by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to interest earned of 
R90 347 612 (2019: R70 065  327) and R90 346 019 (2019: R70 047 178) as disclosed 
in note 27 to the consolidated and separate financial statements respectively was 
necessary. 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

16.  I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for revenue from property 
rates as the municipality did not maintain adequate accounting records. I was unable to 
confirm this revenue by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustment relating to property rates of R26 741 890 as disclosed in note 28 
to the consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary. 

Bulk purchases 

17.  During 2019, the municipality did not correctly account for bulk purchases as required by 
GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements as these expenses were recognised 
inclusive of VAT. Bulk purchases and the VAT payables was overstated by R5 838 701. 
My audit opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements for the period 
ended 30 June 2019 was modified accordingly. As this misstatement was still not correct, 
my opinion on the current year consolidated and separate financial statements was also 
modified because of the effect of this matter on the comparability of the current period’s 
figures. 

Finance costs 

18. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for finance costs due to the 
status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm the finance costs by alternative 
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means. In addition, the municipality incorrectly calculated the finance charges on 
financial liabilities contrary to the requirements of GRAP 104, Financial instruments by 
applying the incorrect rate resulting in financial liabilities and finance costs for both 
consolidated and separate financial statements being overstated by R7 919 548 (2019: 
R1 042 053). Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustment to 
finance costs of R12 370 929 (2019: R9 229 333) and R12 705 402 (2019: R9 218 839)     
as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated and separate financial statements was 
necessary. 

Expenditure 

19. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for expenditure due to the 
cumulative effect of individually immaterial limitations in general expenses, 
consumables, and contracted services as supporting evidence was not provided for 
certain expenses. I was unable to confirm the expenses by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustment to total 
expenditure of R466 255 289 (2019: R320 129 610) and R464 888 783 (2019: R318 
883 562) in the consolidated and separate financial statements respectively was 
necessary. 
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Debt impairment 

20. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for debt impairment as the 
municipality did not have adequate systems to maintain records to support financial 
information. I could not confirm the debt impairment by alternative means. In addition, 
the municipality did not calculate the provision for impairment of receivables in 
accordance with the GRAP 104, Financial Instruments as the municipality applied a 
general rate for all the receivables and did not assess the credit risk for a group or 
subgroup of debtors. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether further 
adjustments to debt impairment expenses of R199 897 219 (2019: R76 207 047) as 
disclosed in note 35. 

Cash flow statement 

21. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the calculation of the 
net cash flows from operating activities, net cash flows from investing activities and net 
cash flows from financing activities for both current and prior periods appropriately 
accounted for cash and non-cash items as required by GRAP 2, Cash flow statements, 
due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm these cash flows by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments 
to the amounts presented in the cash flow statement and the notes thereto as disclosed 
in the consolidated and separate financial statements were necessary. 

Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts 

22. GRAP 24, Presentation of budget information in the financial statements requires the 
presentation of the budget information including a statement of comparing the budget 
and actual amounts as well as reasons for variances. The municipality did not disclose 
reasons for some material differences between the actual and final budget amounts; 
and the approved and final budget amounts. In addition, the original budget amount for 
accumulated surplus, included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts did not agree to the approved original budget amount of R25 173 292.  

Distribution losses 

23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the electricity and water 
distribution losses as the municipality did not have adequate systems to record these 
losses. I was unable to confirm these distribution losses by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to the distributions 
losses as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements was necessary. 

Commitments 

24. I was unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for the commitments 
for the current year and prior year due to the inability of management to provide reliable 
information used to disclose commitments. I could not confirm the commitments by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to 
commitments of R34 653 647 (2019: R73 342 717) as disclosed in note 41 to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary. 
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Unauthorised expenditure 

25. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for unauthorised 
expenditure due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm 
unauthorised expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any further adjustment to unauthorised expenditure of               
R286 614 021 (2019: R113 759 735) as disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated and 
separate financial statements was necessary. 

Irregular expenditure 

26. Section 125 of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 
56 of 2003) (MFMA) requires the disclosure of irregular expenditure incurred. The 
municipality did not include payments R9 005 656 made in contravention of the supply 
chain management (SCM) requirements in irregular expenditure disclosed. In addition, I 
was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for irregular expenditure due 
to differences between the financial statements and underlying accounting records and 
non-submission of information. I was unable to confirm the irregular expenditure by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further 
adjustment to irregular expenditure of R98 360 602 (2019: R88 057 868) as disclosed 
in note 51 to the consolidated and separate financial statements was required. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

27. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure due to differences between the financial statements and underlying 
accounting records and non- submission of information. I was unable to confirm the 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine if any adjustment to the fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R44 460 350 
(2019: R38 523 540) and R44 418 759 (2019: R38 507 440) as disclosed in note 50 to 
the consolidated and separate financial statements respectively was necessary. 

Prior-year adjustments 

28. The municipality did not disclose all adjustments made to address all prior period errors 
as required by GRAP 3, Accounting policies, estimates and errors. The amount of the 
correction for each financial statement item affected and the amount of the correction at 
the beginning of the earliest previous period were not disclosed. In addition,  I was 
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the adjustments made due to 
the status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm these disclosure of prior-
year adjustments by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any further adjustment to the prior year adjustment as disclosed in note 44 to 
the consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary. 

Related parties 

29. The municipality did not disclose related parties, transactions and balances in 
accordance with GRAP 20, Related party disclosures as the municipality disclosed 
transactions and balances for parties which  the municipality is not related. This resulted 
in overstatement of related party balances of loan accounts owing to Dr Ruth Mompati 
District Municipality (DRMDM) by R3 000 000 (2019: R3 000 000), traffic fines 
receivables from Department of Transport by R81 525 306 (2019: R80 008 739), traffic 
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agency receivables from Department of Public Safety by R5 407 739 (2019: R3 064 
664), provision for doubtful debts related to outstanding balances for Department of 
Transport by R81 525 306 (2019: R79 774 530) and overstatement of related party 
transactions of traffic fines from Department of Transport by R1 785 604 (2019: R590 
820), licences and permits from Department of Public Safety by R2 343 075 (2019: R2 
578 211). In addition, the municipality did not disclose all the transactions and balances 
between the municipality and Lekwa-Teemane Development Agency. I was unable to 
quantify the misstatement of the non-disclosure amount due to the poor status of the 
accounting records. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further 
adjustment to related parties, transactions and balances as disclosed in note 43 to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements was necessary. 

Financial instruments 

30. The risk management disclosure in note 45 and 46 to the consolidated and separate 
financial statements, did not disclose the changes in exposure to risks from prior year 
and its significant concentrations of credit risk and there is no disclosure of the financial 
assets that are either past due or impaired as required by GRAP 104, Financial 
Instruments. I was unable to determine the extent and nature of the disclosures omitted 
as it was impracticable to do so. 

Material uncertainty relating to going concern 

31. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

32. As disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, which indicates that the group had 
a loss for the year of R67 862 130 (2019: R14 978 352), this poses a greater doubt on 
the municipality's ability to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal 
course of business. In addition, note 47 and 48 in the financial statements, deals with 
the impact of COVID-19 and its effects on the current and future implications on the 
municipality’s performance. These events or conditions indicate that a material 
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the municipality’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. 

Emphasis of matter 

33. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Material uncertainties 

34. I draw attention to note 42 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, which 
indicates that the municipality is the defendant in various lawsuits. The outcome of 
these matters could not be determined and reliably measured therefore, no provision for 
any liabilities that may result was made in the financial statements. 

Other matters 

35. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Unaudited disclosure notes 

36. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the municipality is required to disclose 
particulars of non-compliance with the MFMA. This disclosure requirement did not form 
part of the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements and accordingly I 
do not express an opinion thereon. 

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements 

37. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with the Standards of 
GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and the Division of Revenue Act of South 
Africa, 2019 (Act No. 16 of 2019) (DoRA) and for such internal control as the 
accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

38. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for 
assessing the municipality’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the 
municipality or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

39. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and to issue 
an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters described in the basis for 
disclaimer of opinion section of this auditor’s, I was not able to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial 
statements. 

40. I am independent of the municipality in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional 
accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code), as well 
as the other ethical requirements that relevant to my audit of the consolidated and 
separate financial statements in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. 

Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

Introduction and scope 

41. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 
(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof. I have a responsibility to report 
material findings on the reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected key performance areas presented in the annual performance 
report. I was engaged to perform procedures to raise findings but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance. 
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42. I was engaged to evaluate the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance         
information in accordance with the criteria developed from the performance 
management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the 
following selected key performance area presented in the annual performance report of 
the municipality for the year ended 30 June 2020: 

Key performance area 
Pages in the annual 
performance report 

KPA1: Basic Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development 54 – 61 

43. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected key 
performance area are as follows: 

KPA 1: Basic service delivery and infrastructure development 

IDP Objective: To deliver sustainable essential services such as water, sanitation, 
electricity, and roads for the Lekwa- Teemane communities 

44. The integrated development plan (IDP) objective included in the annual performance 
report was not reported in the manner consistent with the planned IDP objective 
included in the service delivery and budget implementation plan (SDBIP). 

Objective as per the SDBIP IDP Objective as per the APR 

To deliver sustainable essential services such 
as water, sanitation, electricity, and roads for 
the Lekwa- Teemane communities 

None documented on Page 54 of the APR 

Various indicators 

45. The source information, evidence, and method of calculation for measuring the planned 
indicators was not clearly defined and related systems and processes were not 
adequate to enable consistent measurement and reliable reporting of performance 
against the predetermined indicator definitions. In addition, the reported achievements 
included in the annual performance report were not reported in the manner consistent 
with the planned indicators and targets. As a result, limitations were placed on the 
scope of my work and I was unable to audit the reliability of the achievements as the 
actual level of achievement for the year was not quantified. Consequently, I was unable 
to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievements for 
the following indicators; 

Indicator description Planned target Reported achievement 

KMs of storm water drainage 
maintained 

5 km of storm water drainage 
maintained by end June 2020 

Not Achieved 

Number of Water Meters replaced 
in Bloemhof and Christiana 

400 Water Meters replaced in 
Christiana and Bloemhof by end 
June 2020 

Not Achieved 

 46. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the related measures 
taken to improve performance as reported in the annual performance report for the 
indicators listed below. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement and the 
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reported measures taken by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported measures taken to 
improve performance for the following indicators: 

Indicator description Planned target Reported 
achievement 

Remedial Action 

KMs of storm water 
drainage maintained 

5 km of storm water 
drainage maintained by end 
June 2020 

Not Achieved Appoint staff, procure 
materials and purchase 
vehicles 

Number of Water Meters 
replaced in Bloemhof and 
Christiana 

400 Water Meters replaced 
in Christiana and Bloemhof 
by end June 2020 

Not Achieved Appoint staff, procure 
materials and purchase 
vehicles 

Other matter 

47. I draw attention to the matter below. 

Achievement of planned targets 

48. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 60 to 98 for information on the 
achievement of planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in 
the context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information in paragraphs 44 to 46 of this report. 

Report on audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 

49. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 
responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the municipality with 
specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 
gather evidance to express assurance. 

50. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as 
follows: 

Financial statements 

51.  financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in 
accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. Material 
misstatements identified by the auditors in the submitted consolidated and separate 
financial statements were not adequately corrected and the supporting records could 
not be provided subsequently, which resulted in the consolidated and separate financial 
statements receiving a disclaimer audit opinion. 

Strategic planning and performance management 

52. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained to confirm that the SDBIP 
revised during the year was with the approval of the council following approval of an 
adjustments budget, as required by section 54(1)(c) of the MFMA. 
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53. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained to confirm that a 
performance management system was adopted, as required by municipal planning and 
performance management regulation 8. 

54. The performance management system and related controls were inadequate as it did 
not describe how the performance measurement, reporting and improvement 
processes should be organised and managed, as required by municipal planning and 
performance management regulation 7(1). 

55. Annual performance objectives and indicators were not included in Lekwa-Teemane 
Development Agency's multi-year business plan, as required by section 93B(a) of the 
Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA). 

56. The IDP did not reflect a financial plan as required by sections 26(h) of the MSA and 
municipal planning and performance management regulation 2(3)(a). 

Expenditure management 

57. Money owed by the municipality was not always paid within 30 days, as required by 
section 65(2)(e) of the MFMA. 

58. Payments were made from the municipality’s bank account without the approval of a 
properly authorised official, as required by section 11(1) of the MFMA. 

59. Reasonable steps were not taken to ensure that the municipality implements and 
maintains an effective system of expenditure control, including procedures for the 
approval of funds, as required by section 65(2)(a) of the MFMA. 

60. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by 
section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the irregular expenditure could not be 
quantified as indicated in the basis for disclaimer paragraph. The majority of the 
disclosed irregular expenditure was caused by non-compliance with SCM regulation 
22(1)(b)(i) and regulation 29(2). 

61. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as 
required by section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure could not be quantified as indicated in the basis for disclaimer paragraph. 
The majority of the disclosed fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused by interest 
and penalties. 

62. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure, as required by 
section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the unauthorised expenditure could not 
be quantified as indicated in the basis for disclaimer paragraph. The majority of the 
disclosed unauthorised expenditure was caused by spending in excess of the budget 
operational expenditure. 

Procurement and contract management 

63. Some of the goods and services with a transaction value of below R200 000 were 
procured without obtaining the required price quotations, in contravention of SCM 
regulation 17(1)(a) and (c). Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year. 

64. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained to confirm whether 
contracts were awarded to bidders who submitted a declaration on whether they were 
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employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state as required 
by regulation 13(c). Similar non- compliance was also reported in the prior year. 

65. Some of the quotations were accepted from bidders and sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence could not be obtained that contract were only awarded to providers whose tax 
matters had been declared by the South African Revenue Service to be in order, as 
required by SCM regulation 43. 

66. Some of the goods and services with a transaction value of above R200 000  were 
procured without inviting competitive bids, as required by SCM regulation 19(a). 
Deviations were approved by the accounting officer even though it was not impractical 
to invite competitive bids, in contravention of SCM regulation 36(1). 

67. Invitations for competitive bidding were not advertised for a required minimum period of 
days, in contravention of SCM 22(1) and 22(2). 

68. Some of the invitations for competitive bids were adjudicated by a bid adjudication 
committee that was not composed in accordance with SCM regulation 29(2). 

69. Some of the contracts were not awarded in an economical manner and the prices of 
the goods or services were not reasonable as required by MFMA section 62(1)(a). 

70. The preference points system was not applied for procurement of goods and services 
above R30 000 as required by section 2(1)(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy 
Framework Act. 

71. The performance of contractors or service providers were not monitored on a monthly 
basis as required by section 116(2)(b) of the MFMA. Similar non-compliance was 
reported in the prior year. 

72. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that, the contract 
performance monitoring measures and methods were sufficient to ensure effective 
contract management as required by section 116(2)(c) of the MFMA. Similar non-
compliance was reported in the prior year. 

73. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that persons in the service 
of the municipality and persons in service of the municipality whose close family 
members had a private or business interest in contracts awarded by the municipality 
disclosed such interest, as required by SCM regulation 46(2)(e). 

74. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the SCM officials/other 
SCM role players whose close family member/partners/associates had business 
interest in contracts awarded by the municipality did not participate in the process 
relating to contracts as required by SCM regulation 46(2)(f). 

Assets management 

75. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for 
assets was not in place, as required by section 63(2)(a) of the MFMA. 

Consequence management 

76. Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by the 
municipality was not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, 
as required by section 32(2)(a) of the MFMA. 
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Revenue management 

77. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for 
revenue, debtors and receipts of revenue was not in place, as required by section 
64(2)(e) of the MFMA. 

78. An effective system of internal control for debtors and revenue was not in place, as 
required by section 64(2)(f) of the MFMA. 

79. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that revenue due to the 
municipality was calculated on a monthly basis, as required by section 64(2)(b) of the 
MFMA. 

80. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that accounts for property 
rates and service charges were prepared on a monthly basis, as required by section 
64(2)(c) of the MFMA. 

Internal control deficiencies 

81. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 
objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported 
below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis 
for disclaimer of opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings 
on compliance with legislation included in this report: 

 The accounting officer and senior management did not exercise oversight 
responsibility to review and monitor financial and performance reporting and 
compliance management as well  as related internal controls. Furthermore, action 
plan to address identified control deficiencies was not properly implemented and 
monitored closely. In addition, the accounting officer did not implement effective 
human resource management to ensure that adequate resources are in place 
and that there is no over-reliance on the use of consultants. 

 Senior management lacked the necessary control disciplines over financial and 
performance reporting and compliance with key legislation. As a result, there was 
no implementation of the effective record keeping and processes to monitor and 
review consolidated and separate financial statements and performance reports 
to ensure that they are accurate, complete, and supported by valid evidence. 

 The audit committee did not ensure that it promotes accountability through the 
evaluation and monitoring responses to risks and providing oversight over the 
effectiveness of the internal control environment including financial, performance 
reporting and compliance with legislation. In addition, the internal audit identified 
internal control deficiencies that were not addressed through effective and timely 
implementation of the appropriate corrective actions. 
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Other reports 

82. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or 
could have, an impact on the matters reported in the municipality’s financial statements, 
reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other 
related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the consolidated and 
separate financial statements or my findings on the reported performance information 
or compliance with legislation. 

Investigations 

83. The Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation conducted an investigation into fraud 
and corruption relating to the construction of Utlwanang community library and the 
investigation and the report was handed over to the Director of Public Prosecution for 
final decision. 

84. The Public Protector and the Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation is currently 
investigating allegations of maladministration and tender irregularities relating to the 
appointment of a service provider awarded a revenue enhancement management 
contract. The investigation was still ongoing at date of this report. 

85. The Directorate for Priority Crime Investigation is currently investigating allegations of 
irregular sale and disposal of municipal immovable property. The investigation was still 
ongoing at date of this report. 

86. An investigation by a legal firm was conducted into allegations of fraud and corruption 
relating to monies collected at the traffic department of the municipality. The 
investigation commenced after year-end and was still ongoing at date of this report. 

 

 

 

Rustenburg 

 
30 April 2021 
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GLOSSARY 

 

Accessibility 

indicators 

Explore whether the intended beneficiaries are able to access services 

or outputs.  

Accountability 

documents 

Documents used by executive authorities to give “full and regular” 

reports on the matters under their control to Parliament and provincial 

legislatures as prescribed by the Constitution. This includes plans, 

budgets, in-year and Annual Reports.  

Activities The processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the 

desired outputs and ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities 

describe "what we do". 

Adequacy 

indicators 

The quantity of input or output relative to the need or demand. 

Annual Report A report to be prepared and submitted annually based on the 

regulations set out in Section 121 of the Municipal Finance 

Management Act. Such a report must include annual financial 

statements as submitted to and approved by the Auditor-General. 

Approved Budget The annual financial statements of a municipality as audited by the 

Auditor General and approved by council or a provincial or national 

executive.  

Baseline Current level of performance that a municipality aims to improve when 

setting performance targets. The baseline relates to the level of 

performance recorded in a year prior to the planning period. 

Basic municipal 

service 

A municipal service that is necessary to ensure an acceptable and 

reasonable quality of life to citizens within that particular area. If not 

provided it may endanger the public health and safety or the 

environment.  

Budget year The financial year for which an annual budget is to be approved – 

means a year ending on 30 June.  

Cost indicators The overall cost or expenditure of producing a specified quantity of 

outputs.  

Distribution 

indicators 

The distribution of capacity to deliver services.  

 

Financial 

Statements 

Includes at least a statement of financial position, statement of 

financial performance, cash-flow statement, notes to these statements 

and any other statements that may be prescribed. 

General Key 

performance 

After consultation with MECs for local government, the Minister may 

prescribe general key performance indicators that are appropriate and 
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indicators applicable to local government generally.  

 

Impact The results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing poverty 

and creating jobs. 

Inputs All the resources that contribute to the production and delivery of 

outputs. Inputs are "what we use to do the work". They include 

finances, personnel, equipment and buildings. 

Integrated 

Development Plan 

(IDP) 

Set out municipal goals and development plans.  

National Key 

performance areas 

• Service delivery & infrastructure 

• Economic development  

• Municipal transformation and institutional development  

• Financial viability and management 

• Good governance and community participation 

Outcomes The medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the 

consequence of achieving specific outputs. Outcomes should relate 

clearly to an institution's strategic goals and objectives set out in its 

plans. Outcomes are "what we wish to achieve". 

 

Outputs The final products, or goods and services produced for delivery. 

Outputs may be defined as "what we produce or deliver". An output is 

a concrete achievement (i.e. a product such as a passport, an action 

such as a presentation or immunization, or a service such as 

processing an application) that contributes to the achievement of a 

Key Result Area. 

Performance 

Indicator 

Indicators should be specified to measure performance in relation to 

input, activities, outputs, outcomes and impacts.  An indicator is a type 

of information used to gauge the extent to 

which an output has been achieved (policy developed, presentation 

delivered, service rendered) 

Performance 

Information 

Generic term for non-financial information about municipal services 

and activities. Can also be used interchangeably with performance 

measure.  

 

Performance 

Standards: 

The minimum acceptable level of performance or the level of 

performance that is generally accepted. Standards are informed by 

legislative requirements and service-level agreements. Performance 

standards are mutually agreed criteria to describe how well work must 

be done in terms of quantity and/or quality and timeliness, to clarify the 

outputs and related activities of a job by describing what the required 

result should be. In this EPMDS performance standards are divided 
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into indicators and the time factor. 

 

Performance 

Targets: 

The level of performance that municipalities and its employees strive 

to achieve. Performance Targets relate to current baselines and 

express a specific level of performance that a municipality aims to 

achieve within a given time period.  

 

Service Delivery 

Budget 

Implementation 

Plan 

Detailed plan approved by the mayor for implementing the 

municipality’s delivery of services; including projections of the revenue 

collected and operational and capital expenditure by vote for each 

month. Service delivery targets and performance indicators must also 

be included.  

 

Vote: One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is 

divided for appropriation of money for the different departments or 

functional areas of the municipality. The Vote specifies the total 

amount that is appropriated for the purpose of a specific department or 

functional area.  

Section 1 of the MFMA defines a “vote” as: 

a) one of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is 

divided for the appropriation of money for the different departments or 

functional areas of the municipality; and 

b) which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the 

purposes of the department or functional area concerned 

 



 

246 

 

APPENDICES 
 

APPENDIX A – COUNCILLORS; COMMITTEE ALLOCATION AND COUNCIL 

ATTENDANCE 

 

 

Councillors, Committees Allocated and Council Attendance 

Council Members Full Time / Part 
Time 

Committees Allocated *Ward and/ or Party Represented Percentage 
Council 

Meetings 
Attendance 

Percentage 
Apologies for 

non-attendance 

  

FT/PT 

% % 

 Cllr Pilane   FT  Mayor/ Speaker   PR:  African National Congress   99% 1% 

 Cllr M Majikela FT  MPAC  Ward 2 : African National Congress  91.7% 
 

 8.3% 

 Cllr SK Majahe FT  Finance & Corporate (Chair) 
Community Services  & LED, 
Infrastructure Development & 
Town Planning 

 PR African National Congress  99%  1% 

 Cllr L. Segola FT  Community Services  & 
LED(Chair)  

 PR African National Congress  99%  1% 

 Cllr K.N.G. Palagangwe   FT He was not allocated in 
Committees 

 Ward 5 : PR African National 
Congress 

91.7% 8.3% 

 Cllr T. Gerber  PT   Finance & Corporate, 
Community Services  & LED 

 Ward 6 : Democratic Alliance  91.7%  8.3% 

 Cllr S. Fortuin PT   Community Services  & LED  PR : Democratic Alliance  91.7%  8.3% 

Cllr L. Duiker  PT  Finance & Corporate, 
Community Services  & LED, 
Infrastructure Development & 
Town Planning  

Ward : African National Congress 99% 1% 

Cllr L. Tshweu PT  Finance & Corporate. 
Community Services  & LED  

Ward 1 : PR African National 
Congress 

99% 1% 

Cllr L. Legabe PT He was not allocated in 
Committees 

PR : Forum For Service Delivery 81.8% 18.2% 

Cllr M. Mabote PT She was not allocated in 
Committees 

PR : Forum For Service Delivery 91.7% 8.3% 

Cllr J. Dabampe PT He was not allocated in 
Committees 

PR : Economic Freedom Front  58% 42% 

Cllr E. Van Biljon PT Infrastructure Development & 
Town Planning 

PR : Democratic Alliance 91.7% 8.3% 

Cllr J. Joseph  PT  Finance & Corporate, 
Community Services  & LED 

Ward African National Congress 100% 0% 

Cllr M. Moseswa PT  Finance & Corporate, 
Community Services  & LED, 
Infrastructure Development & 

Ward 8 : African National Congress 91.7% 8.3% 
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Councillors, Committees Allocated and Council Attendance 

Council Members Full Time / Part 
Time 

Committees Allocated *Ward and/ or Party Represented Percentage 
Council 

Meetings 
Attendance 

Percentage 
Apologies for 

non-attendance 

  

FT/PT 

% % 

Town Planning 

Cllr E R kwena  PT  Ward 7 African National Congress 91.7% 8.3% 

Note: * Councillors appointed on a proportional basis do not have wards allocated to them T A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B – COMMITTEES AND COMMITTEE PURPOSES  

 

Committees (other than Mayoral / Executive Committee) and Purposes of Committees 

Municipal Committees Purpose of Committee 

  

Corporate Services and 
Finance Portfolio 

 Corporate Services and Finance Portfolio Committee considers and makes recommendations to the Council 
with regard to the matter delegated to it, which includes but not limited to 

 Municipal Land and Property Management 
 Staff establishment and Organisational Structure 
 Development and Review of System Delegation 
 Municipal Administration 
 Human Resources Development 
 Bargaining Council Agreements 
 Security 
 Public Participation of Communities in municipal matters 
 Financial Management of the Municipality 
 MFMA Implementation 
 Financial Viability Assessment 
 Risk Management and Assessment 

Infrastructure, Development 
and Town Planning Portfolio 

 The Infrastructure, Development and Town Planning Portfolio Committee considers and makes 
recommendations to Council with regard to matters delegated to it, which includes but not limited to 
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Committee  
 Building Regulations 
 Trading Regulations 
 Licensing of Dogs 
 Amusement Facilities 
 Local Roads and Streets 
 Local Amenities 
 Storm Water Management Systems in build-up areas 

Community Services and 
LED Portfolio Committee 

The Community Services and LED Portfolio Committee considers and makes recommendations to Council with 
regard to matters delegated to it, which includes but not limited to 
 

 Cemeteries, funeral parlours and crematoria serving the area of the municipality 
 Cleansing 
 Refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal sites serving the area of the municipality 
 Municipal Parks and Recreation 
 Local Economic Development 
 Markets serving the area of the municipality 

Municipal Public Accounts 
Committee 

The main purpose of MPAC is to exercise oversight over the executive functionaries of Council and to ensure 
good governance on the municipality. This will include oversight over municipal entities. 
 

 The MPAC interrogates various aspects of the municipal financial reporting and performance 
reporting as provided for in the MFMA 

 MPAC also have responsibility over matters delegated to it by Council  

    T B 
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APPENDIX C –THIRD TIER ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE   

 

Third Tier Structure 

Directorate Director/Manager (State title and name) 

Office of the Municipal Manager Ms Nokuthula Mbonani 

Corporate Services Ms Nokuthula Mbonani 

Community Services Mr Thabo Mabula  

Finance Mr Mokgopane Thokoane (CFO) 

Technical Services Mr Themba Jona (Technical Services) 

Use as a spill-over schedule if top 3 tiers cannot be 
accomodated in chapter 2 (T2.2.2). T C 
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APPENDIX D – FUNCTIONS OF MUNICIPALITY / ENTITY  

 

MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS

Function 

Applicable to 

Municipality (Yes / 

No)*

Function Applicable 

to Entity                 

(Yes / No)

Constitution Schedule 4, Part B functions:

Air pollution YES NO

Building regulations YES YES

Child care facilities NO YES

Electricity and gas reticulation YES NO

Firefighting services NO YES

Local tourism NO YES

Municipal airports NO YES

Municipal planning YES NO

Municipal health services YES YES

Municipal public transport NO YES

Municipal public works only in respect of the needs of municipalities in the discharge of their responsibilities to administer 

functions specifically assigned to them under this Constitution or any other law
YES NO

Pontoons, ferries, jetties, piers and harbours, excluding the regulation of international and national shipping and matters 

related thereto
NO NO

Stormwater management systems in built-up areas YES NO

Trading regulations YES NO

Water and sanitation services limited to potable water supply systems and domestic waste-water and sewage disposal 

systems
YES NO

Beaches and amusement facilities NO YES

Billboards and the display of advertisements in public places YES NO

Cemeteries, funeral parlours and crematoria YES NO

Cleansing YES NO

Control of public nuisances NO YES

Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public NO YES

Facilities for the accommodation, care and burial of animals NO YES

Fencing and fences YES NO

Licensing of dogs YES NO

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the public YES NO

Local amenities YES NO

Local sport facilities YES NO

Markets NO YES

Municipal abattoirs NO YES

Municipal parks and recreation YES NO

Municipal roads YES NO

Noise pollution YES NO

Pounds YES NO

Public places YES NO

Refuse removal, refuse dumps and solid waste disposal YES NO

Street trading YES NO

Street lighting YES NO

Traffic and parking YES NO

T D

Municipal / Entity Functions

* If municipality: indicate (yes or No); * If entity: Provide name of entity  
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APPENDIX E – WARD REPORTING 

 

Functionality of Ward Committees 

Ward 
Name 

(Number) 

Name of Ward 
Councillor and elected 

Ward committee 
members 

Committee 
established  
(Yes / No) 

Number of 
monthly 

Committee 
meetings held 
during the year 

Number of monthly 
reports submitted 
to Speakers Office 

on time 

Number of 
quarterly public 
ward meetings 

held during year 

 Ward 1   Cllr Tshweu  
1. D. Thupaekae 
2. M. Thapo 
3. O. Snoek 
4. T. Khene 
5. P. Ntsaku 
6. T. Komane 
7. B. Sebekedi 
8. O. Sephetlho 
9. W. Seretsi 
10. S. Mateise  

  
Yes  

 12  12  4 

 Ward 2 Cllr Majikela  
1. F. Motsomi 
2. M. Sibeya 
3. L. Ngesi 
4. B. Motshabi 
5. M. Kobedi  
6. S. Motlhamme  
7. Mrs Monoko  
8. Mr Mokgobo  

 Yes  12  12  4 

 Ward 3 Cllr Duiker  
1. I. Nakedi 
2. A. Pholoholo 
3. L. Brits 
4. B. Maarman 
5. J. Phakedi 
6. J. Moabi  
7. A. Rens 
8. I. Ndovu 
9. M. Motsebe 
10. K. Oganne  

 Yes  12 12 4 
 
 

 Ward 4 Cllr Joseph 
1. S. Marumo 
2. J. Lings 
3. H. Matheuws 
4. S.A. Marumo 
5. B. Masere 
6. W. Itumeleng 
7. T. Polori  
8. S. Nakedi  
9. D. Seeber 
10. B. Zacheus 

 

 Yes  11  11  3 
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Functionality of Ward Committees 

Ward 
Name 

(Number) 

Name of Ward 
Councillor and elected 

Ward committee 
members 

Committee 
established  
(Yes / No) 

Number of 
monthly 

Committee 
meetings held 
during the year 

Number of monthly 
reports submitted 
to Speakers Office 

on time 

Number of 
quarterly public 
ward meetings 

held during year 

 Ward 5  Cllr Pilane   
1. T. Seneke 
2. K. Kgabo 
3. M. Letebele 
4. N. Moselane 
5. S. Koboekae 
6. T. Molehe 
7. I. Shomoleile  
8. N. Ntshinga. 
9. P. Phepheng 
10. J. Modibedi  

 Yes  12 12 4 

 Ward 6  Cllr Gerber  
1. M. Coetzee 
2. T. Gerber. 
3. C. Cronje 
4. T. Knicklebein 
5. C. Faure  
6. M. Segalo 
7. F. Cotzee 
8. H. Bardenhorst 
2 resigned  

 Yes  1  1   

 Ward 7  Cllr Pencil  
1. B. Shaw 
2. K. Mokhako 
3. N. Moroke 
4. M. Boikanyo 
5. T. Kgomogadi 
6. B. Buffel 
7. M. Mongale 
8. L. Tlhobolo 
9. B. Sekori  
10. J. Makuapane  

  
 
 
 
Yes 

  
 
 
 
4 
 
 

  
 
 
 
4 

  
 
 
 
2 
 

 Ward 8   Cllr Moseswa  
1. N. Olifant 
2. F. Mokgethi 
3. P. Maleke  
4. J. Kolasi 
5. P. Eltho 
6. A. August 
7. O. Koboekae 
8. E. Tau  
9. P. Senatle 
10. P. Sentsetse  

 Yes  2  2 3 
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APPENDIX G – RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL AUDIT COMMITTEE  

 

Disclosures of Financial Interests 

2019/20 

Position Name Description of Financial interests* 
(Nil / Or details) 

(Executive) Mayor M. Pilane None 

Member of MayCo / Exco 
KS Majahe None 

  SL Segola None 

  EM Majikela  100% Qatari Bokans (PTY) LTD 

Councillor  J Joseph None 

   LD Legabe None  

  LW Tshweu None 

  S Fortuin None 

  JM Dabampe None 

  KL Duiker None  

  RM Mabote None  

 T Gerber None 

Acting Municipal 
Manager N Mbonani None  

Chief Financial Officer 
 M Thokoane None  

Other S57 Officials  NT Mbonani None  

   PT Mabula None  

   T    Jona None  

* Financial intersests to be disclosed even if they incurred for only part of the year. See MBRR SA34A                                                                                                    
T J 
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LEKWA TEEMANE LOCAL MUNICPALITY 

 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2020 

 

1. Legislative requirements 

 

The purpose of this report is to communicate to the council the audit and performance committee’s 

(APC) progress to date in carrying out its oversight responsibilities in terms of section 166 of the 

Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003, as amended) (MFMA), read with 

circular 65 published by the National Treasury for the year ended 30 June 2020.  

The MFMA obliges every municipality to establish an independent audit committee, which must 

advise the municipal council, political office-bearers, accounting officer and management staff of the 

municipality as well as the accounting officer and the management staff of the municipal entity, on 

matters relating to internal financial controls and internal audits, risk management, accounting 

policies, the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial reporting and information, performance 

management, effective governance, compliance with the MFMA, the annual Division of Revenue Act 

(DoRA) and any other applicable legislation, and any other issues referred to it by the municipality.  

The audit committee is governed by formal terms of reference, which are regularly reviewed and 

approved by the council. The committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 

30 June 2019. 

2. Audit committee members and attendance  

 

The audit committee was established in accordance with section 166 of the MFMA read with MFMA 

Circular 65 issued by the National Treasury; and it requires that the audit committee comprise of at 

least of three members and with appropriate experience, of whom the majority must not be in the 

employ of the municipality or municipal entity.  

The APC comprises six members, including the chair, Mrs F Mudau.  During the year, one member Mr 

J Lesolang resigned in January 2020. In terms of section 166(4) (b) of the MFMA, the audit committee 

must meet at least four times a year. During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the audit 
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committee met on seven occasions including special audit committee meetings.  The table below 

shows the attendance of these meetings: 

 

 

 

 

Name 
Date of 

appointment 
Qualifications 

Number of 

meetings 

scheduled 

Number of 

meetings 

attended 

Mrs Fikile Mudau 01 March 2018 

 B Com Degree (Univen) 

 Studying towards LLB Degree - 
Unisa 

 Local Government Finance 

 Government Finance Certificate- 
School of Government Finance 
India 

 Certificate Programme in 
municipal finance – WITS 
Business School 

 Grade 12 

06 06 

Ms Mpho Masete 01 March 2018  CIA ( IIASA) 

 Unisa –HONS B Compt 

 Rhodes University –B comm 

 Grade 12 
 

06 06 

Ms Mmabagaki 

Mothelesi 

01 March 2018  B comm Accounting  (NWU) 

 B Comm Auditing – Unisa 

 Honours : B comm Auditing 

 Currently studying MBA 

 Grade 12 

06 07 

Mr Josias Lesolang 01 March 2018 

and resigned 31 

January 2020 

 National Diploma : Internal 
Auditing  TUT 

 B-Tech Internal Auditing  (Unisa) 

 MBA : NWU 

 CIA (IIASA) 

 Grade 12 
 

06 04 

Mr Letlhogonolo 

Berend 

01 March 2018  LLB (Bachelor of Laws) WITS 

 Currently studying MBA 

06 05 
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The members of the audit committee held meetings with the municipal manager as the accounting 

officer, council of the municipal entity, the chairperson of risk, senior management of the 

municipality, the internal audit function and the Auditor General, collectively and individually, on 

matters related to governance, internal control and risk in the municipality, throughout the reporting 

period. The committee also held a meeting with the honourable mayor and the executive committee 

of the council to report on governance, internal control, risk, performance and financial information 

and other relevant matters concerning the municipality. 

3. Audit committee’s responsibility 

 

The audit committee has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 166 of the MFMA read 

with MFMA Circular 65, and reports that it operated in terms of the audit committee charter read in 

conjunction with the internal audit charter. 

4. Effectiveness of internal 

control

 
The audit committee acknowledges management’s efforts to strengthen internal controls in the 

municipality. The audit committee is concerned that in certain instances the matters reported by the 

Auditor General and the internal audit function in prior years have not been fully and satisfactorily 

addressed. Management has given assurance that effective corrective action will be implemented in 

respect of all internal control weaknesses, and the APC committee will monitor these going forward. 

 Grade 12 

Mr Ernest Van 

Rensburg 

01 March 2018  Baccalaureus Commercial  (UOFS) 

 Honours – Baccalaureus 
Computations 

 Certificate in theory accounting  
(Unisa) 

 Advanced Certificate in Auditing  

 Accountant Pubic Practice   

 Independent Reviewer – SAIPA 

 Grade 12 

06 06 
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Vacancies undermine the effective functioning of the system of internal control and it is imperative 

that management reviews its recruitment procedures and processes to ensure that vacancies are 

filled expeditiously with properly qualified, skilled and experienced personnel.  The position of the 

CAE has been vacant since 01st September 2018 till November 2020; and the department has been 

operating on 03 Acting CAE’s. For the month of October to November 2020, the department had no 

CAE or Acting CAE in place. However, the work of Internal Audit continued irrespective of the 

circumstances without any extra remuneration to the existing managers.  

 

The effectiveness and efficiency of Internal Audit is dependent on the strategic leadership of the 

department. The department was disadvantaged by the vacant post of the Chief Audit Executive.  

The Internal Department has however managed to perform its work satisfactorily during the year 

irrespective of this vacancy by achieving 50% of the planned audits for the year. The remaining 

percentage was affected by the unforeseen covid 19 pandemic which was not planned for. However 

an audit strategy was developed and approved by the audit committee to address this challenge in 

future so that the work of internal audit is not compromised. 

 

Due to the strategic importance of, and investment in, the modernisation of information and 

communication technology (ICT) in the municipality, the audit committee has monitored the risk 

register and progress reports on the respective action plans during the year under review. The audit 

committee remains concerned that not all ICT risks are being addressed or mitigated, in 

implementing the new systems. The audit committee was also concerned about the implementation 

of ICT systems that were not put in place on time during the National Covid 19 lockdown which was 

declared in March 2020. 

 

5. The quality of monthly and quarterly reports submitted in terms of the MFMA and DORA 

 

The APC remains dissatisfied, as the monthly financial reports were not prepared due to mSCOA 

challenges reported by management. Therefore, the municipality has not complied with the 

requirements of Section 71 and 52 (d) of the MFMA for the entire year.  
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The APC were not given the opportunity to review the reports that should be issued to National 

Treasury and the Transferring Officer in terms of the Division of Revenue Act due to the challenge 

indicated earlier and is not comfortable that the Municipality is meeting its obligation in terms of 

DORA and has recognised revenue to the extent that conditions have been met. 

 

The reports on performance information were reviewed and APC has engaged with management to 

remedy shortcomings, especially relating to the reports on performance against predetermined 

objectives. The committee has recommended that specific process be implemented to ensure that 

the information reported is both useful and reliable in terms of the applicable reporting framework. 

The APC has recommended that the service provider in charge of preparation of the AFS for the 

municipality prepare financial statements that comply with Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP), which could assist in performing reconciliations timeously as well as in 

eliminating year-end adjustments. 

 

 

 

6. Internal audit function  

 

The accounting officer is obliged, in terms of section 165 of the MFMA, to ensure that the entity has a 

system of internal audit under the control and direction of the audit committee. The audit committee 

is satisfied that the internal audit function has properly discharged its functions and responsibilities 

during the year under review. 

The APC is not satisfied with the capacity of the internal audit function due to the vacancy of the 

positon of the CAE and 01 Internal Auditor. The internal audit staff have been going through various 

trainings, and the service offered was redesigned through the elimination of 01 municipality that has 

established its own Internal Control Structures of Internal. The audit committee expects these 

initiatives to contribute to the internal audit function becoming more efficient, more responsive to 

challenges and better able to provide audit reports of a high quality to management and the 

committee on a timely basis. The audit committee supports the direction that the internal audit 
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function is adopting in providing the necessary skills and agility required for the function to respond 

quickly and effectively to the demands for internal audit across the municipality’s various locations.  

In terms of the risk-based audit plan approved by the APC, the internal audit function has 50% of the 

audits planned for the year. The remaining audits were affected by the National Covid 19 lockdown 

which could not be performed The internal audit function found that the control environment as a 

whole was effective; however, some specific control weaknesses were identified in other areas of 

audit activities that were performed such as SCM, performance, Capital Projects Management and 

Creditors Control Management, for which recommendations were made for improvement.  

The internal audit function was assessed by the Provincial Treasury on its effectiveness previously and 

thus far no major findings were found. The outcome of this assessment was never communicated and 

at present our shortcomings are not known. The audit committee recommends Peer quality reviews 

from similar municipalities to be performed at our Internal Audit. This will in a way prepare for the 

external assessments which can be budgeted for in future.  

7. Risk management function 

 

  The audit committee is satisfied that: 

 

 Risk management has been fully embedded at the municipality.  

 The Audit Committee has noted the efforts of the risk unit in facilitating the risk management 

within the municipality.  

 Management is therefore responsible to manage their departmental risks and 

ensuring that the combined risk management is achieved and implemented 

successfully  

 

8. Performance management 

 

Part of the responsibilities of the audit committee includes the review of performance 

management. The audit committee has in terms of the performance of the municipality performed 

the following functions:  

The audit and performance committee reviewed the functionality of the performance 

management system and it appears to be functional, however there is a room for 
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improvement in so far as achievement of planned targets and compliance matters are 

concerned.  

 

10. Unauthorized, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditures  

 

The Unauthorized and Irregular Expenditure of the municipality was a concern as the Auditor General 

could not confirm completeness of the amount disclosed I the AFS. This means the amount could 

even be higher.  

One significant area that requires improvement is for management to effectively implement 

appropriate recourse and mitigation actions based on the requirements of sections 32, 171, 172 and 

173 of the MFMA. 

 

11. Evaluation of the draft annual financial statements 

 

The APC reviewed and noted the draft annual financial statements for financial year ended 30 June 

2020. An extension on compliance matters with regard to submission dates were also noted. The APC 

noted a number of gaps and issues to be addressed before submission on 31 October 2020.  

 The draft AFS were reviewed and there were errors identified and the APC urged 

management to commit to rectifying errors identified. The committee was impressed 

with the commitment by the management team as the municipality will be able to 

submit the draft AFS on time as per extension guidelines and regulations. 

  

The purpose of this review amongst others was to ensure, inter-alia:  

• Compliance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and MFMA.  

• Draft AFS are free from material misstatements and errors.  

• Reliability, integrity and quality of the financial information reported in the financial 

statements.  
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12.  Draft Audit Report(AGSA Report) and Overall 

Recommendations

 
 

Draft Management letter and Draft Audit report (19/20) 

The report was discussed first with the AG on the 28 April 2021 and on the 29 April 2021 with the AG 
and management. The AG presented their reasons for Disclaiming the municipality, however the 
municipality was not in agreement with certain paragraphs. The municipality concluded that they will 
not accept the Audit report. 

AG reasons for Disclaimer: Management did not implement proper record keeping in a timely 
manner to ensure that complete, relevant and accurate information is accessible and available to 
support financial reporting on the following components: 

 Property Plant and Equipment 

 Payables from exchange transactions 

 Employee cost & employee benefits obligation 

 VAT payables 

 General expenses 

 Irregular expenditure and Unauthorised 

 Grants 

 Receivables from exchange transactions 

 Debts impairment 

 Supply Chain Management 

 Cash and Cash equivalent  

 Commitments 
The AG also presented Uncorrected misstatements relating to the audit of the financial statements 
on various components. 

The municipality’s reasons for rejecting the Audit Report: 

 The AG did not consider/take into consideration covid 19 disturbances at the work 
place. 

 AG had agreed they will grant the municipality the opportunity to make adjustments 
on the AFS, but they later rejected the adjustments. 

 The AG continued to communicate the audit finding the same date management 
report was scheduled to be presented. 

 The AG didn’t understand the relation between the Valuation roll and the Billing 
report despite numerous municipal attempt to demonstrate how the two are 
aligned. 

 Inadequate communication between the auditee and the auditors. 
  

 
Recommendations: Urgent development of PAAP that will address the root causes. 
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APPENDIX K:  REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE AND BY 

SOURCE 

 

APPENDIX K (i): REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE BY VOTE 

 

 

2018/19

Actual Original 

Budget

Adjustments 

Budget

Actual Original 

Budget

Adjustments 

Budget

Property rates 25 105             44 359             28 994             26 742             -66% -8%

Service Charges - electricity revenue 78 015             104 139           73 020             97 589             -7% 25%

Service Charges - water revenue 36 419             46 120             31 417             62 665             26% 50%

Service Charges - sanitation revenue 7 104               26 778             14 170             10 713             -150% -32%

Service Charges - refuse revenue 9 221               21 461             11 143             14 300             -50% 22%

Rentals of facilities and equipment 203                  751                  180                  190                  -296% 5%

Interest earned - external investments 41                    49                    49                    205                  76% 76%

Interest earned - outstanding debtors 70 006             51 858             87 061             90 150             42% 3%

Fines 591                  2 591               1 434               1 786               -45% 20%

Agency services 2 578               2 890               2 890               2 343               -23% -23%

Transfers recognised - operational 47 670             67 624             67 427             50 881             -33% -33%

Other revenue –                    12 083             1 032               71                    -16998% -1360%

Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers 

and contributions)

276 954           380 702           318 816           357 634           -6.45% 10.85%

T K.2

0

R '000

Description

2019/20 2019/20 Variance

Variances are calculated by dividing the difference between actual and original/adjustments budget by the actual. This table is aligned to 

MBRR table A4.
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POST AUDIT ACTION PLAN 

 

AUDIT FINDING MANAGEMENT POSSIBLE 
SOLUTION 

START DATE END DATE RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICIAL 

Coaf 8: No evidence that recon 
for investment is reviewed 

Management should review all the 
reconciliations on a monthly basis 
and ensure that a proper keeping 
system is complete, relevant and 
accurate information is accessible 
and available to support financial 
and performance reporting and 
compliance. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 10: No-compliance with 
the Municipal Banking and 
Investment Policy 

Management should review the 
Municipal Banking and Investment 
Policy and ensure that it is 
implemented accordingly 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 59: Internal control 
deficiency - cash and cash 
equivalents 

Management should implement a 
proper record keeping system to 
ensure that complete, relevant, 
and accurate information is 
accessible and available to 
support financial and performance 
reporting and compliance with 
relevant laws and regulations. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 162: amount disclosed for 
petty cash more than maximum 
amount per policy 

Management should review the 
Petty Cash Policy and ensure that 
it is implemented accordingly 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 163: cash and cash 
equivalent: difference noted 
between current year 
comparative amount and prior 
year amounts 

Management should properly 
review the AFS prior to 
submission to the AGSA 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 190: cash and cash 
equivalent: council resolution 
not signed as evidence 
approval for overdraft 

Management should implement a 
proper record keeping system to 
ensure that complete, relevant, 
and accurate information is 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 
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accessible and available to 
support financial and performance 
reporting and compliance with 
relevant laws and regulations. 

Coaf 191: cash and cash 
equivalent council resolution 
not signed as evidence 
approval overdraft 

Management should ensure that 
all council resolutions are signed 
and dated timeously 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 159: Expenditure related 
cost - material limitation on 
journal testing 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor upon 
request. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 200 of 2020: Bulk 
purchase - prior period 
adjustment 

Management should ensure that 
the prior-year adjustments are 
performed considering the prior 
year audit findings to ensure 
completeness of the adjustments. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 201: Expenditure (Prior 
period adjustment) 

Management should ensure that 
transactions are recorded in the 
period in which they occur. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 202: Contracted services 
(Prior period adjustment) 

Management should ensure that 
the prior-year adjustments are 
performed considering the prior 
year audit findings to ensure 
completeness of the adjustments. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 212: Expenditure 
management payments not 
made within 30 days 

Management should ensure that 
all money owing by the 
municipality is paid within 30 days 
of receipt of invoices from 
suppliers as required by section 
65(2)(e) of the MFMA. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 214: non - compliance: 
Payments/withdrawals not 
signed by CFO or delegated 
person 

Management must ensure that 
each department monitors a 
spreadsheet which will indicate 
when the invoice was received by 
the department, date it was 
checked for accuracy, the date it 
was dispatch to creditors for 
payment. This will assist the 
municipality in identifying where 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 
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the gaps are and enable the 
municipality to improve on its 
processing of making payment 
within 30 days 

Coaf 215: Expenditure - 
Purchase orders not provided 
for audit 

Management should ensure 
that there are controls, to ensure 
that amounts presented and 
disclosed in the financial 
statements are accurate 
and agree to the 
underlying supporting financial 
reporting information.   

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 216: General expense - 
Expenditure - Limitation of 
identifying the misstatement of 
expenditure 

Management should ensure 
that there are controls, to ensure 
that amounts presented and 
disclosed in the financial 
statements are accurate 
and agree to the 
underlying supporting financial 
reporting information.   

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 216: General expense - 
Expenditure - Limitation of 
identifying the misstatement of 
expenditure 

Management should ensure 
that there are controls, to ensure 
that amounts presented and 
disclosed in the financial 
statements are accurate 
and agree to the 
underlying supporting financial 
reporting information.   

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 226.1: Bulk purchase - 
Limitation of identifying whether 
expenditure is recorded in the 
correct period 

Management should ensure 
that there are controls, to ensure 
that amounts presented and 
disclosed in the financial 
statements are accurate 
and agree to the 
underlying supporting financial 
reporting information.   

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 226.1: Bulk purchase - 
Limitation of identifying whether 
expenditure is recorded in the 
correct period 

Management should ensure 
that there are controls, to ensure 
that amounts presented and 
disclosed in the financial 
statements are accurate 
and agree to the 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 
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underlying supporting financial 
reporting information.   

Coaf 226.3: Contracted 
services - Expenditure: 
Limitation in identifying whether 
expenditure is recorded in the 
correct period 

Management should ensure 
that there are controls to monitors 
that amounts presented and 
disclosed in the financial 
statements are accurate 
and agree to the 
underlying supporting financial 
reporting information.   

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 227: Non-compliance - 
Deficiency noted with regards 
to approvals of purchase order 

Management should ensure that 
all purchase orders that are 
processed must be signed, 
approved and authorised. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 229: Contracted services - 
expenditure not recognized in 
the correct period 

Management should ensure that 
adequate review of AFS is 
completed prior to submission to 
AGSA 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 231: Expenditure - 
Differences noted between the 
amount recorded in the GL and 
invoices provided for audit 

Management should ensure that 
adequate review of AFS is 
completed prior to submission to 
AGSA 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 26: Limitation of scope on 
financial costs 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 109: Prior period 
adjustment - no evidence of 
correction of prior year 
misstatements 

Management should ensure that 
the prior-year adjustments are 
performed considering the prior 
year audit findings to ensure 
completeness of the adjustments. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 110: Incorrect disclosure 
for financial cost 

Management should ensure that 
adequate reviews is performed on 
disclosure notes to maintain that 
accurate information is presented. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 189: Debt Impairment - 
Limitation of scope on various 
supporting documents 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

M POLORI 
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provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter. 

Coaf 58: Difference between 
creditors aging and the note for 
payables from exchange 
transactions AFS 

Management should maintain that 
controls are in place to ensure that 
amounts presented and disclosed 
in the financial statements are 
accurate and agree to the 
underlying financial reporting 
information and that differences 
are followed and addressed. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 58: difference between 
creditors aging amounts and 
suppliers statement 

Management should maintain a 
proper reconciliation on a monthly 
basis between creditors aging 
analysis and creditors statement 
to ensure that there are no 
differences 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 100: Limitation of scope 
for RFI no 99 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 207: Limitation of scope 
for RFI no 99 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 102: Limitation of scope 
for RFI no 90 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 138: Difference between 
listing amount for debtors with 
credit balance and amount on 
statement for debtors 

Management should maintain and 
implement internal controls to 
ensure that reconciliations are 
performed timeously between 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 
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creditors listings and creditors 
balance as per statements. 

Coaf 52: Limitation of scope 
RFI 62 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf: 137: Difference between 
creditors aging and the 
statement from RJJ Projects 

Management should maintain a 
proper reconciliation on a monthly 
basis between creditors aging 
analysis and creditors statement 
to ensure that there are no 
differences 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 146: Difference between 
creditors aging and amounts in 
the external confirmation 
obtained from creditors 

Management should maintain a 
proper reconciliation on a monthly 
basis between creditors aging 
analysis and creditors statement 
to ensure that there are no 
differences 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 141: Transport 
department confirms it doesn’t 
own LTLM any amount, yet a 
statement from transport 
department was owed R2 857 
469 an understatement of 
payables 

Management should maintain a 
proper reconciliation on a monthly 
basis between creditors aging 
analysis and creditors statement 
to ensure that there are no 
differences 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 171: Duplication of 
amount  under payables from 
exchange transaction and 
contingent liabilities 

Management should ensure that 
controls are in place to ensure that 
amounts for payables for 
exchange transactions and 
contingent liabilities are presented 
and disclosed in accordance with 
the requirements of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 102: Limitation of scope 
RFI 90 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 
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engagement letter. 

Coaf 98: Limitation of scope 
RFI 100 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Coaf 35: Internal control 
deficiency: Limitation of scope 
commitments 

Management should ensure that 
the Commitment Register is 
developed, maintained and 
reviewed on a regular basis 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 
 

O SEPHOLA 

Debt Impairment The finding will be addressed 
during the preparation of Interim 
AFS, and submit to Internal Audit 
and Treasury for review. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 M POLORI 

CoAF 90: Unauthorised 
expenditure - Limitation of 
scope on unauthorized 
expenditure 

The finding will be addressed 
during the preparation of Interim 
AFS, and submit to Internal Audit 
and Treasury for review. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 94: Unauthorised 
expenditure - Understatement 
of unauthorised expenditure 

Sufficient provisions of items on 
the budget 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 94: Unauthorised 
expenditure - Misstatement of 
the opening balance of 
unauthorized expenditure 

Implementation of accounting 
systems control including 
budgeting/adjustment budgeting 
mechanisms to alleviate the non-
recording and enforce accurate 
recording of any expenditure over 
budget. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 94: Unauthorised 
expenditure - Inadequate 
disclosure of unauthorized 
expenditure 

Implementation of accounting 
systems control including 
budgeting/adjustment budgeting 
mechanisms to alleviate the non-
recording and enforce accurate 
recording of any expenditure over 
budget. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 11: Expenditure 
Management- Effective and 
appropriate steps were not 
taken to prevent irregular, 
unauthorized and fruitless and 

Implementation of accounting 
systems control including 
budgeting/adjustment budgeting 
mechanisms to alleviate the non-
recording and enforce accurate 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 
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wasteful expenditure. recording of any expenditure over 
budget. Unauthorised expenditure 
will be properly disclosed with 
opening balances, movements 
and closing balances 

CoAF 123.1: Fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure: Limitation 
in determining the 
misstatement of fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure. 

Replacement of old and 
dysfunctional infrastructure, 
transformers and water piping, 
powerlines etc. Efforts will be 
employed, like having done in the 
past, that, Advertisement for local 
suppliers encouraging them to 
register on CSD and attempt by all 
meant to be up to-date with their 
tax compliances 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 123.2: Fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure: Opening 
balance: Material misstatement 

Regular reconciliation of Creditors 
statements followed by 
appropriate classification of 
interest charged if any 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 213: Fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure: Interest 
not disclosed in the fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure 
register for the year ended 30 
June 2020 

Regular reconciliation of Creditors 
statements followed by 
appropriate classification of 
interest charged if any 

17/05/2021 31/02917/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 121: Reports of 
unauthorised, irregular, and 
fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure not submitted to 
the MEC for local government 
in the 
province and the Auditor- 
General. 

Regular reconciliation of Creditors 
statements followed by 
appropriate classification of 
interest charged if any, Efforts to 
be employed to update our UIF 
register accordingly 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 12 :Instances of 
unauthorised irregular and 
fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure were not 
investigated to determine if the 
disciplinary steps should be 
taken 

Reports to be sent regularly to the 
relevant recipients including LTLM 
Mayor before the 10th of each 
month. MPAC is now fully 
functional and has aready started 
investigating certain transactions 
for appropriate recommendations. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF:153:Difference noted 
between the schedule and the 

Management will ensure that all 
schedules provided in support of 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 
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financial statement the annual financial statements 
are reviewed and compared to the 
annual financial statements by an 
independent person to identify and 
correct differences before 
submission for audit 

CoAF 153:Incorrect 
presentation of prior year 
irregular identified in the current 
year. 

Allocate irregular expenditure to 
the correct period. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 153:Difference noted 
between the current year 
comparative amounts and the 
amounts per the prior year’s 
financial statements 

Ensure prior years amounts are 
reconciled and agreed as a 
comparative year in the current 
year financials before finalisation 
and submission of FS 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 35: Internal control 
deficiency: Limitation of scope 
on commitments 

Implementation of commitment 
register 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 31: Related parties: 
Scope Limitation: Request for 
information not submitted 

Implement a register for related 
party transactions. 

   

CoAF 91: Related parties: 
Understatement of other 
financial liabilities 

Implement a register for related 
party transactions. All disclosure 
requirements for related parties 
will be adhered to including 
opening balances, movements 
and closing balances. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 114: Related parties: 
Incomplete disclosure of related 
party transactions and balances 

Implement a register for related 
party transactions. All disclosure 
requirements for related parties 
will be adhered to. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 115: Related parties: 
Incomplete disclosure of related 
parties 

Implement a register for related 
party transactions. All disclosure 
requirements for related parties 
will be adhered to. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF124: Related parties: 
Incomplete disclosure of related 
party transactions and balances 

Implement a register for related 
party transactions. All disclosure 
requirements for related parties 
will be adhered to. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF186: Related parties: 
Incomplete disclosure of related 
party transactions and balances 

Implement a register for related 
party transactions. All disclosure 
requirements for related parties 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 
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will be adhered to. 

CoAF 61: Supply Chain 
Management – Municipal 
Supply Chain Management 
Regulation 36 not correctly 
applied in appointment of 
service providers. 

Such extension of scope shall be 
avoided in totality in future. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 61: Supply Chain 
Management – The winning 
provider's tax status not 
confirmed at the date of award. 

Thorough caution shall be 
observed for future appointments 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 61 – No evidence that 
the winning provider submitted 
a declaration of interest. 

Thorough caution shall be 
observed for future appointments 
that service providers declare their 
interest prior to awards. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 61 Supply Chain 
Management – No evidence 
that deviations from supply 
chain management processes 
was reported to council. 

Comprehensive SCM reports will 
be submitted to council on a 
monthly basis 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 61 Supply Chain 
Management – Incorrect 
amount for deviation disclosed 
in the notes to the annual 
financial statements. 

Before disclosure and on a 
monthly basis, reconciliations to 
schedules will be done to 
ascertain that the correct 
information is disclosed 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 61: Supply Chain 
Management Procurement of 
Covid 19 Material not 
economical 

Absolute care will be exercised to 
ensure that prices are not inflated 
by service providers 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 13:Procurement due to 
poor planning incorrectly 
classified as emergency 

Proper planning will be employed 
going forward, proper internal 
controls be implemented 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 28:Bids advertised for 
less than 30 days 

Management will ensure that 
before bids are advertised, the 
requirements of the supply chain 
management regulation are 
reviewed to ensure compliance 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 32: Limitation of scope Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 
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agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter 

CoAF 33:Limitation of scope Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 41:BAC not constituted in 
terms of regulations 

Management will review all the 
members of the various 
committees at the municipality to 
ensure that the committees are 
constituted in compliance with 
legislation 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 55:Internal control 
deficiency – Bidder incorrectly 
awarded BBEEE points 

Management will ensure that all B-
BEEE certificates provided are 
validated before points are 
awarded 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 56:Written price 
quotations were not obtained 
from at least three different 
bidders 

Management will review 
quotations received against the 
requirements of the supply chain 
management regulations by 
maintaining a checklist to prevent 
instances of non-compliance 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 66:Limitation of scope Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 80:Limitation of scope-
SCM 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 86: Limitation of 
scope:SCM 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 
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requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter 

CoAF 88: Awards made to 
suppliers whose tax matters are 
non-compliant 

Management will ensure that the 
tax compliance status of every 
supplier is confirmed, printed and 
attached to the received 
quotations/bids as evidence of 
confirmation of the tax status 
before the award, 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 103:Deviations not 
approved by the delegated 
official 

Strict implementation of SCM 
Policy shall be adhered to at all 
times. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 107:Written price 
quotations were not obtained 
from at least three different 
prospective municipality 

Management will implement an 
updated compliance checklist to 
ensure that all applicable 
compliance requirements are 
complied with. Furthermore, 
management will ensure that all 
treasury circulars are 
communicated with employees on 
a regular basis to ensure 
compliance thereto and tighten 
internal controls,. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 125: Procurement of 
Covid 19 Material not 
economical 

Management should ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 128:No approved 
deviation to select a supplier 
without lowest quotation 

Management will record deviations 
and including reasons why the 
expected supplier was selected 
and the deviation should be 
approved by the delegated official 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 131:Limitation of scope 
on close family members 

Implement a register for related 
party transactions. All disclosure 
requirements for related parties 
will be adhered to. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 170: Local content Management will, where 17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 
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legislatively applicable, 
standardise documents to be 
attached when sourcing quotation 
which must include the declaration 
of local production and content, 

CoAF 185:Limitation of scope Management will ensure that 
proper record keeping is 
maintained to ensure that 
requested information are 
provided to the auditor within the 
agreed upon timelines per the 
engagement letter 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 196:No evidence of 
submission of declaration 

Thorough caution shall be 
observed for future appointments 
that service providers declare their 
interest prior to awards. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

CoAF 225:Splitting to avoid 
complying with SCM process 

This practice shall be total avoided 
in future as stricter internal control 
measures are being implemented. 

17/05/2021 31/07/2021 K BANTSHO 

No sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence for the opening and 
closing balance of unauthorised 
expenditure due to the status of 
accounting records 

Management should ensure that 
the unauthorised expenditure 
register is developed, maintained 
and reviewed on a regular basis 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T MOSEKI, O SEPHOLA & K 
BANTSHO 

Final budget amounts for 
accumulated surplus, included 
in the statement of comparison 
of budget and actual amounts 
did not agree to the final 
approved budget. No 
explanations given for material 
differences between original 
and final budget 

Management should ensure that 
the annual financial statements 
are reviewed to ensure accuracy 
of the Statement of Comparative 
of Budgets and Actual Amounts. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T MOSEKI 

COAF 101 - Inability to confirm 
the completeness of revenue. 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF   133   -   Service   
charges   – Differences 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 
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between the Billing report, Trial 
Balance, General Ledger and 
Annual Financial Statement. 

going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

COAF 161 - Insufficient 
controls over the water meter 
reading and inability to confirm 
the accounted 
meter readings 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 150 - Internal control 
deficiency - insufficient details 
on Billing report resulting on a 
limitation 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 129: Inaccurate 
description of interest levied on 
overdue accounts. 

Management to engage further 
with the service provider to correct 
and to necessary adjustment. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 27: Limitation of scope 
on interest received. 

Management to engage further 
with the service provider to correct 
and to necessary adjustment. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 129: Inaccurate 
description of interest levied on 
overdue accounts. 

Management to engage further 
with the service provider to correct 
and to necessary adjustment. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 104: Limitation of Scope 
– Prior period error adjustment 

Management to engage further 
with the service provider to correct 
and to necessary adjustment. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 71 – Overstatement of 
revenue 

Management to engage further 
with the service provider to correct 
and to necessary adjustment. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 150 - Internal control 
deficiency - insufficient details 
on Billing report resulting on a 
limitation. 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 101 - Inability to confirm All post Billing Reports will be 31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 
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the completeness of revenue. downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

COAF 106: Accounting Policy 
for Grants not disclosed. 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

COAF 203: Internal control 
deficiency 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

– Limitation of scope on 
government grants, heritage 
assets, investment and cash 
and cash. 

All post Billing Reports will be 
downloaded on monthly basis 
going forward  and kept as trial 
audit for reference and 
accountability to any adjustment 
that might be done or journals as 
such. 

31/05/2021 31/07/2021 T B MOTJETJE 

The integrated development 
plan (IDP) objective 
included in the annual 
performance report was 
not reported in the 
manner consistent with 
the planned IDP 
objective included in the 
service delivery and 
budget implementation 
plan (SDBIP). 

Management will conduct 
Quarterly Departmental Reviews 
to verify the Performance 
Information 

30/06/2021 On going PMS Office 

The source information, 
evidence, and method of 
calculation for 

Management will conduct 
Quarterly Departmental Reviews 
to verify the Performance 

30/06/2021 On going PMS Office 
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measuring the planned 
indicators was not 
clearly defined and 
related systems and 
processes were not 
adequate to enable 
consistent measurement 
and reliable reporting of 
performance against the 
predetermined indicator 
definitions. In addition, 
the reported 
achievements included 
in the annual 
performance report were 
not reported in the 
manner consistent with 
the planned indicators 
and targets. As a result, 
limitations were placed 
on the scope of my work 
and I was unable to 
audit the reliability of the 
achievements as the 
actual level of 
achievement for the 
year was not quantified. 
Consequently, I was 
unable to determine 
whether any 
adjustments were 
required to the reported 
achievements for the 
following indicators; 

 

Information 

I was unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence for the 
related measures taken 
to improve performance 
as reported in the 

Management will convene 
Quarterly Departmental Reviews 
to improve quality of Evidence 

31/06/2021 Ongoing PMS Office 
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annual performance 
report for the indicators 
listed below. I was 
unable to confirm the 
reported achievement 
and the reported 
measures taken by 
alternative means. 
Consequently, I was 
unable to determine 
whether any 
adjustments were 
required to the reported 
measures taken to 
improve performance for 
the following indicators: 
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VOLUME 1 

 
PROFILE OF LEKWA-TEEMANE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 

Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality is situated in the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District 

Municipality in the South Eastern Region of the North West Province. The municipal area 

comprises of two major towns of: Christiana and Bloemhof, with Christiana as the municipal 

head office. The total geographical area of the municipality is 3,681.2560 square kilometres 

and borders the Vaal River on the eastern side. 

The municipality has an estimated population of 53 248 persons and 14 930 house-holds. The 

unemployment rate is estimated to be over 34% and the poverty rate estimated over 70%. 

The agricultural sector is the largest employer employing over 24%. 

 
Source: Statistics South Africa- Census 2011. 
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PROGRAMME MANAGER’S OVERVIEW 

 
I would like to take this opportunity to present to you the overview on the Agency’s 

performance for the year ended 30 June 2020. The entity measures its performance on the 

following key performance areas: sound governance; institutional development and 

transformation; financial viability and local economic development that will be further 

elaborated in the ensuing paragraphs. 

Sound Governance 

The Development Agency has for the third consecutive year been operating without the 

presence of a Board of Directors. This hampers progress on strategic decisions that could 

quicken the implementation of projects in Lekwa –Teemane for job creation and overall 

economic development. 

A set of financial statements and draft annual report were timeously submitted to the Auditor 

General in August 2019 and a mid-year assessment report was submitted in January 2020. 

The board of directors appointed in June 2019, has not yet resumed duties due to 

administrative issues on there being an existence of the previous Board of directors that was 

terminated unlawfully in 2017/18 financial year. The municipality is yet to resolve this crisis in 

an ordinary council sitting. This has directly hampered progress of the entity as it cannot 

operate without a fully functional Board according to the precepts of the Companies Act of 

2008. The resultant implications are that poverty alleviation remains unsolved in our municipal 

jurisdiction as no jobs can be created. 

Institutional Development and Transformation 

The entity currently is operating with a staff compliment of 3 individuals whom are on acting 

capacities on varied posts. This is as a result of 5 vacant posts, which may only be filled when 

the entity has self-sustainable projects generating revenue. Our pursuit is to see the 

implementation of such projects in order to further create jobs for these key positions for the 

monitoring of projects. The absence of a Board resulted in the entity failing to update policies, 

signing of performance agreements and reviving the website as all these key functions require 

oversight of a functional board. 

Financial Viability 

It is regrettable to note that the entity is currently not a going concern. This is due to the fact 

that the entity’s existing assets will not be unable to meet its financial obligations in the 

foreseeable future and continue its normal operations. This position is clearly set out in the 

AFS. Council availing land for projects may be the necessary life line for the entity to generate 

revenue and be sustainable. 

Local Economic Development 

The entity did not have any operational project in the financial year ending 30 June 2020. 

However the brickmaking yard remains intact awaiting the resumption of projects immediately 

when the board resumes their duties. 



 

286 
 

 

Conclusion 

2019-20 with the pandemic included was a very challenging year with the Board absence and 

no new projects being implemented. Another disclaimer of audit opinion was received for the 

2018-19 audit due to the lack of bank signatories for the entity’s accounts. 

We are of the hope that the board of directors will be reinstated in order for us to access 

funding and implement projects to create jobs, ensure economic development and the 

alleviation of poverty. 

I wish to extend my gratitude to the community of Lekwa-Teemane at large for the unwavering 

support and the parent Municipality for in kind contributions and the monetary grants. 

We look forward to the 2020-21 financial year and are of the hope that land for projects will be 

released by council and economic development will be realized in Lekwa-Teemane. 

 

 
Kealeboga 

Marian Chitima 

 

Acting Programme Manager 
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GOVERNANCE 
The Board of Directors of the LTLDA should subscribe to the letter and spirit of good corporate 

governance expressed in King Code III and the Code of Conduct for Directors referred to in 

section 93L of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (as amended). The Board should recognise 

the need to conduct the affairs of the municipal entity with integrity to ensure increased public 

confidence and the confidence of its parent municipality. It is the policy of the Board to actively 

review and enhance the entity’s systems of control and governance on a continuous basis to 

ensure that the entity is managed ethically and within prudently determined risk parameters. 

 

POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

 
The LTLDA received its mandate from the LTLM through the office of the Municipal Manager. 

The LTLM is represented on the board by the Chairperson of the LED Portfolio committee 

namely Hon Cllr Segola who exercises political oversight. The LTLDA relies on support from 

the LED Portfolio Committee as contained in the Service Level Agreement. The Finance and 

Administration Officers are responsible to provide corporate governance, financial 

sustainability and compliance support. 

 
POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 

 
LTLDA interacts with the LED Portfolio Committee for the oversight of its activities and 

functions. In respect of strategic and operational matters the LTLDA management should be 

accountable to the Board of Directors which stands in a fiduciary relationship with the 

company. 

 
The Board of Directors is directly accountable to council that is the 100 percent shareholder. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

The Lekwa-Teemane Local Development Agency is committed to: 

 
 The highest standards of integrity and behaviour in all its dealings with its stakeholders 

and society at large; 

 Carrying on business through fair commercial and competitive practices; 

 Eliminating discrimination and enabling employees to realise their potential through 

continuous training and development of their skills; 

 Being responsible towards environment and social issues and 

 Ensuring that each of its directors declare any direct or indirect personal or business 

interest that might adversely affect such director in the proper performance of their 

stewardship of the entity. 
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Programme 

Manager 

Admin Officer Finance Officer 

Receptionist/ 

Cleaner 

Project Officer - 

Agriculture, 
Agro-Processing 

and Fishing 

Project Officer - Project Officer - 
Tourism and 

Hospitality 

Mining and 

Manufacturing 

SMME's 

Development 
Clerk 

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
In accordance with its Code of Conduct which is consistent with Schedule1 of the Municipal 

Systems Act and the provisions of the Policy on Declarations of Interest of Directors of 

LTLDA. The Entity maintains a register of Directors’ Declarations. LTLDA ensures that a 

declaration register is also circulated at every Board and Board Committee meeting for the 

Directors to declare any interests in relation to every matter that is to be discussed at a 

particular meeting. In terms of the LTLDA’s Employee Code of Ethics and Terms and 

Conditions of Employment, all LTLDA employees are required to fill in declarations of 

interest covering shareholding in private companies, membership of close corporations, 

directorships held, partnerships and joint ventures, remunerative employment outside of the 

LTLDA, gifts and hospitality and the status of their municipal accounts. 

 
The Board of Directors of the LTLDA subscribes to the letter and spirit of good corporate 

governance expressed in King Code III and the Code of Conduct for Directors referred to in 

section 93L of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (as amended). The Board recognises the 

need to conduct the affairs of the municipal entity with integrity to ensure increased public 

confidence and the confidence of its parent municipality. It is the policy of the Board to 

actively review and enhance the entity’s systems of control and governance on a continuous 

basis to ensure that the entity is managed ethically and within prudently determined risk 

parameters. 

 
ORGANOGRAM 

The LTLDA staff organogram as at 30 June 2020 is reflected in the following diagram: 
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ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT, HR DEVELOPMENT, WELLNESS AND 
HEALTH AND SAFETY 

This KPA is measured in five areas: 
 Employment Equity 
 Staff Turnover 
 HIV/AIDS Policy Compliance 
 Occupational Health & Safety Compliance 
 Expenditure on training and development of staff 

 

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 
 

In employment equity of LTLDA looks as follows: 
 

 Black staff percentage – 100% of total staff complement is black. 
 Female staff – 50% of total staff is females. 
Black females in management position – 50% of total number of employees in 
management. At present 100% of the staff is black, 40% are females and 20% of the 
senior management team is made up of black woman. 

 

3.1. STAFF TURNOVER 

 

This KPA is measured in five areas: 
 Employment Equity 
 Staff Turnover 
 HIV/AIDS Policy Compliance 
 Occupational Health & Safety Compliance 
 Expenditure on training and development of staff 
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Staff Movement 
 

STAFF MOVEMENT AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL 

 
MALE 

FEMA 
LE 

MAL 
E 

FEMAL 
E 

 
MALE 

FEMAL 
E 

 
MALE 

 
FEMALE 

 

APPOINTMENTS          
0 

RESIGNATIONS         0 

DISMISALS         0 

RETIREMENTS         0 

ABSENTEESM         0 

TERMINATION/OTHER         0 

TOTAL         0 

 
 

3.2. HIV/AIDS POLICY COMPLIANCE 

 
The Lekwa-Teemane Local Development Agency has developed a draft staff wellness 

policy which needs to be approved by the Board of Directors. During the year under review 

no HIV/AIDS counselling sessions were conducted. 

 
3.3. OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY COMPLIANCE 

 
One Health & Health Compliance inspections were conducted by the Department of Labour. 

The Development Agency is making use a portion of the municipal building. Compliance 

certificates were issued to the Parent Municipality. Occupational health & safety legislation 

is pasted on the notice board. 

 
3.4. EXPENDITURE ON TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF STAFF 

 
No staff member attended training for the financial year ended June 2020. 
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3.5. INTRODUCTION TO THE PERSONNEL 

Employee Totals, Turnover and Vacancies 

Employees 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Turn-Over Rate 

 
Details 

Total appointment 
as of 

Terminations/Resigna 
tions 

beginning of 
financial 

during financial year 
No. 

year no.  

2013/2014 6 0 

2014/2015 0 1 

2015/2016 0 2 

2016/2017 0 1 

2017/2018 0 0 

2018/2019 0 0 
2019/2020 0 0 

 

3.6. POLICIES 

No policies were reviewed for this financial year (2019/2020). All policies that were 
approved, were adopted from the municipality. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description Year 1 Year 0 

 Employees Approved Employees Vacancies 

No. Post No. no. no. 

Top Management 1 1 1 0 

Middle management 3 5 0 5 

Clerk 1 1 1 0 

Administration/Receptio 
nist 1 1 1 0 

Totals 6 8 3 5 

 



 

292 
 

3.7. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 
 

The following principles continue to guide our employment equity initiatives: 

 
The LTLDA has adopted the Employment Equity Plan of the Parent Municipality. 

 

 The LTLDA undertakes an annual review of its EE process and general 

employment practices. 
 

 The Employment Equity Statistics are sourced to review progress and 

provide direction regarding progress in the implementation of the 

employment equity plan. 
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 To ensure focus, the Board’s Human Resources Committee also provide 

regular input to the strategies and initiatives regarding EE and its 

implementation in the organisation. 

Employment Equity Demographics Status for 2019/2020 
 

Staff Movement 
 

STAFF 

MOVEMENT 

 
AFRICAN 

 
COLOURED 

 
INDIAN 

 
WHITE 

 
TOTAL 

MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE  

Appointments         0 

Resignations         0 

Dismissals         0 

Retirements         0 

Absenteeism         0 

Termination/Other         0 

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 

Employment Equity Status-Demographics 
 

LEVELS AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL 

MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE MALE FEMALE  

Top 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Management 

Middle 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

management 

Clerk 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Housekeepers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 
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3.8. GENDER EQUITY 
 

LEVELS BLACK WHITE TOTALS 

 Male Female Male Female  

Top 0 1 0 0 1 

Management 

Middle 0 0 0 0 1 

management 

Clerk 1 0 0 0 0 

Administration 0 1 0 0 1 

TOTAL 1 2 0 0 3 

 

LEVELS POSITIONS 

Top 
Management CEO 

Middle management Finance Officer, Project Officer 

Clerk SMME Clerk 

Administration Cleaner/Receptionist 

 
The LTLDA currently has 100% Black staff, which exceeds the target of 80% provided in 
the Employment Equity Plan. The LTLDA currently has 50% female staff against the 
target of 50%. 

 

The LTLDA currently has 50% Black females in management positions against a target of 
50%. 

 

The LTLDA do not have any employee with physical disabilities.
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LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 

 
IDP 
development 
objectives 

Corpor 
ate 
objectiv 
es 

Baseline Key 
performanc 
e indicator 

Output 
indicator 

Budget Annual 
target 

 

Annual 
Action 
Target 

Reasons for 
Deviation 

POSSIBLE 
SOLUTIONS 

EVIDENCE 

Institutional 
Development 
and 
Transformati 
on 

Operate 
a well 
Administ 
ered 
Agency 

4 HR 
policies 
Adopted 

4 HR policies 
adopted by 
end June 
2020 

4HR Policies 
adopted 

n/a 4 HR 
policies 
adopted by 
end June 
2020 

None The entity is still 
waiting for the 
appointment of 
the board by the 
council. 

Pursue the 
municipality 
for the 
appointment 
of the board 

N/A 

Institutional 
Development 
and 
Transformati 
on 

Operate 
a well 
Administ 
ered 
Agency 

2 

Performanc 
e Contracts 
signed 

2 staff signed 
performance 
agreements 
by end June 
2020 

Signed 
performance 
contracts 

n/a 2 staff signed 
performance 
agreements 
by end July 
2020 

No 
performanc 
e 
agreement 
signed 

No board of 
directors, and he 
entity is short- 
staffed 

Appointment 
of board and 
staff 

N/A 

Institutional 
Development 
and 
Transformati 
on 

Operate 
a well 
Administ 
ered 
Agency 

3 staff 
member 
trained 

3 staff 
members 
trained by 
June 2020 

Number of 
staff trained 

opex 3 staff 
members 
trained by 
June 2020 

No staff 
member 
trained 

No projects Appointment 
of board and 
staff 

N/A 

Institutional 
Development 
and 
Transformati 
on 

Operate 
a well 
Administ 
ered 
Agency 

Website not 
updated 

4 updates on 
website by 
June 2020 

Website 
updated 

opex Website 
updated 4 
times by 
June 2020 

Update 
website 
new service 
provider 

No board of 
directors 

Appointment 
of the board 

N/A 
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IDP 
development 
objectives 

Corpor 
ate 
objectiv 
es 

Baseline Key 
performanc 
e indicator 

Output 
indicator 

Budget Annual 
target 

 

Annual 
Action 
Target 

Reasons for 
Deviation 

POSSIBLE 
SOLUTIONS 

EVIDENCE 

Sound 
Governance 

Relevan 
t policy 
impleme 
ntation 
and 
monitori 
ng 

Progress 
Report for 
previous 
Audit in 
place 

4 progress 
reports on 
audit action 
plan 
submitted to 
council June 
2020 

4 Progress 
reports 
submitted 

n/a 4 progress 
reports on 
audit action 
plan 
submitted to 
council June 
2020 

N/A No board of 
directors 

Appointment 
of board of 
directors 

N/A 

Sound 
Governance 

Relevan 
t policy 
impleme 
ntation 
and 
monitori 
ng 

No 
progress 
reports on 
resolution 
register 

4 progress 
reports on 
implementati 
on of 
resolutions 
submitted to 
council by 
June 2020 

Quarterly 
progress 
implementati 
on of 
resolutions 
taken 

n/a 4 progress 
reports on 
implementati 
on of 
resolutions 
submitted to 
council by 
June 2020 

N/A No resolutions 
were taken since 
the board was 
terminated 

Appointment 
of Board 

N/A 

Sound 
Governance 

Relevan 
t policy 
impleme 
ntation 
and 
monitori 
ng 

1 
performanc 
e report 

4 
performance 
reports 
submitted to 
the Board by 
June 2020 

Reports 
submitted 
quarterly 

n/a 4 
performance 
reports 
submitted to 
the Board by 
June 2020 

N/A No meetings 
were conducted 
due to the 
absence of the 
board 

Appointment 
of the board 
by the council 

N/A 

Sound 
Governance 

Relevan 
t policy 
impleme 
ntation 
and 
monitori 
ng 

Board 
committees 
established 

4 board and 
4 audit; 
committee 
meetings 
conducted by 
June 2020 

4 meetings 
conducted 
for each 
committee 

Opex 16 meetings 
conducted 
by June 2020 

N/A No meetings 
were conducted 
due to the 
absence of the 
board 

Appointment 
of the board 

N/A 
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IDP 
development 
objectives 

Corpor 
ate 
objectiv 
es 

Baseline Key 
performanc 
e indicator 

Output 
indicator 

Budget Annual 
target 

 

Annual 
Action 
Target 

Reasons for 
Deviation 

POSSIBLE 
SOLUTIONS 

EVIDENCE 

Sound 
Governance 

Relevan 
t policy 
impleme 
ntation 
and 
monitori 
ng 

Mid-year 
report 
submitted 

Submit a 
mid-year 
budget and 
performance 
assessment 
report to 
council by 
January 20 
2020 

1 
assessment 
report 

 Submit a 
mid-year 
budget and 
performance 
assessment 
report to 
council by 
January 2020 

Achieved N/A 1 report 
submitted 

Mid-year 

report 

Sound 
Governance 

Relevan 
t policy 
impleme 
ntation 
and 
monitori 
ng 

2018/19 
Annual 
Financial 
submitted 

Submit AFS 
for approval 
to council by 
20 August 
2019 

AFS 
submitted 
timeously 

opex Submit AFS 
for approval 
to council by 
20 August 
2019 

1 set of 
financials 
submitted 

n/a n/a Audited AFS 

2018/19 

Sound 
Governance 

Relevan 
t policy 
impleme 
ntation 
and 
monitori 
ng 

2018/19 
Annual 
Performanc 
e Report 
submitted 

Compile a 
Draft Annual 
report by 20 
August 2019 

Draft report 
submitted 
together with 
AFS 

Opex Compile a 
draft Annual 
report by 20 
August 2019 

1 draft 
annual 
report 
submitted 
2019 

n/a n/a Annual 

report 

2018/19 

Financial 
Viability 

Effective 
and 
efficient 
financial 
manage 
ment 
system 
and 
budget 
impleme 
ntation 

 2020/21 final 
budget 
approved by 
31 May 
2020 
and 
adoption of 
financial 
policies 

Approved 
Budget 

Opex 2020/21 
budget 
approved by 
the board 31 
May 2020 

n/a n/a Final Budget 
Approval by 
council 

2020/21 

Approved 

Budget 
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IDP 
development 
objectives 

Corpor 
ate 
objectiv 
es 

Baseline Key 
performanc
e indicator 

Output 
indicator 

Budget Annual 
target 

 

Annual 
Action 
Target 

Reasons for 
Deviation 

POSSIBLE 
SOLUTIONS 

EVIDENCE 

Financial 
Viability 

Effective 
and 
efficient 
financial 
manage 
ment 
system 
and 
budget 
impleme 
ntation 

 12 financial 
reports 
submitted to 
council by 
end June 
2020 

12 financial 
reports 
submitted 
and Circular 
71 reports 

 12 financial 
reports 
submitted to 
council by 
end June 
2020 

NO Lockdown  N/A 

Financial 
Viability 

Effective 
and 
efficient 
financial 
manage 
ment 
system 
and 
budget 
impleme 
ntation 

 Integrated 
financial 
management 
plan adopted 
end June 
2020 

1 integrated 
financial plan 

 Integrated 
financial 
management 
plan adopted 
end June 
2020 

n/a No board Appointment 
of the board 

N/A 

Financial 
Viability 

Effective 
and 
efficient 
financial 
manage 
ment 
system 
and 
budget 
impleme 
ntation 

Supplier 
database 

Advertise for 
supplier 
database 
information 
by end of 
June 2020 

Updated 
supplier 
database 

opex Constant 
supplier 
database 
information 
by end of 
June 2020 

N/A No projects Appointment 
of board 

N/A 
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IDP 
development 
objectives 

Corpor 
ate 
objectiv 
es 

Baseline Key 
performanc 
e indicator 

Output 
indicator 

Budget Annual 
target 

 

Annual 
Action 
Target 

Reasons for 
Deviation 

POSSIBLE 
SOLUTIONS 

EVIDENCE 

Financial 
Viability 

Effective 
and 
efficient 
financial 
manage 
ment 
system 
and 
budget 
impleme 
ntation 

SCM Policy Reports on 
the 
implementati 
on of the 
SCM policy 
MFMA 
section (63) 

4 Report on 
the 
implementati 
on of the 
SCM policy 

opex Submit report 
to council on 
SCM policy 
implementati 
on by 30 
June 2020 

Achieved N/A N/A Financial 

report 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Project 
identific 
ation 
and 
impleme 
ntation 

Economic 
Developme 
nt of 
Lekwa- 
Teemane 

4 reports on 
implementati 
on of projects 
submitted to 
council by 
June 2020 

Project 
implementati 
on reports 
submitted 

 4 reports on 
implementati 
on of projects 
submitted to 
council by 
June 2020 

N/A No projects were 
implemented 
because there is 
no board of 
directors 

Appointment 
of board 

N/A 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Project 
identific 
ation 
and 
impleme 
ntation 

Economic 
Developme 
nt of 
Lekwa- 
Teemane 

2 investment 
seminars 
conducted by 
June 2020 

Investor 
attraction to 
Lekwa - 
Teemane 

 2 investment 
seminars 
conducted by 
June 2020 

n/a No board of 
directors 

Appointment 
of board by 
council 

N/A 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Project 
identific 
ation 
and 
impleme 
ntation 

Brickmakin 
g Project 

Continuation 
of 
Brickmaking 
Project in 
Bloemhof 

Profitable 
Brickmaking 
Project 

opex Operational 
Brickmaking 
Project by 
June 2020 

N/A No projects 
because there is 
no board of 
directors 

Appoint board 
of directors 

N/A 
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IDP 
development 
objectives 

Corpor 
ate 
objectiv 
es 

Baseline Key 
performanc 
e indicator 

Output 
indicator 

Budget Annual 
target 

 

Annual 
Action 
Target 

Reasons for 
Deviation 

POSSIBLE 
SOLUTIONS 

EVIDENCE 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Project 
identific 
ation 
and 
impleme 
ntation 

Poultry 
/Farm 
Project in 
Christiana 

Continuation 
of Poultry & 
Farm Project 
in Christiana 

Profitable 
Poultry & 
Farming 
Project 

Opex Operational 
Poultry Farm 
Project by 
June 2020 

N/A No projects Appointment 
of board 

N/A 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Project 
identific 
ation 
and 
impleme 
ntation 

Bloemhof 
Mall 

Implementati 
on of 
Bloemhof 
Mall Project 

Bloemhof 
Mall 
Implementati 
on 

Opex SOD turning 
for Bloemhof 
Mall Project 
by 30 June 
2020 

N/A No board of 
directors 

Appointment 
of board of 
directors 

N/A 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Project 
identific 
ation 
and 
impleme 
ntation 

Packaging 
Project 

Implementati 
on of 
Packaging 
Project 

Operational 
Packaging 
Project 

Opex Implementati 
on of Potato 
Packaging 
project in 
Lekwa 
Teemane by 
30 June 2020 

N/A No projects Appointment 
of board 

N/A 

Local 
Economic 
Development 

Project 
identific 
ation 
and 
impleme 
ntation 

Skills 
Training 
Centre 

Implemented 
STC in 
Lekwa- 
Teemane 

Operational 
Skills 
Training 
Centre 

Opex Set up of a 
STC in 
Lekwa – 
Teemane by 
30 June 2020 

N/A No board of 
directors 

Appointment 
of board 

N/A 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

The LTLDA’s board monitors risk through the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee. The Committee is 

responsible for evaluating development proposals with a view to making recommendations for approval 

to the Board. This entails examining risks associated with the proposed projects such as the risk 

financing, risk returns and risk profiles. Further, and primarily, the Committee bears accountability for 

ensuring that, there is an effective risk management process and system within the organisation. This 

approach does not relieve the LTLDA Board of its accountability and responsibility in ensuring that, an 

adequate and effective risk management system and process is in place, as the Board is expected to 

exercise the duty of care, skill, and diligence identifying, assessing and monitoring risks as presented 

by the Development and Risk Committee. It recommends to the Board risk strategies and policies that 

need to be set, implemented and monitored. 

 
The LTLDA’s risk management strategy is guided by the principles of the enterprise-wide risk 

management system in terms of which all identified risk areas are managed systematically and 

continuously at the departmental level. The LTLDA has a risk register in place which is treated as a 

working risk management document of which the identified risks are constantly recorded and properly 

managed. The LTLDA’s management monitors and evaluates the implementation and efficiency of 

management’s controls and such actions identified as actions to improve current controls in the risk 

register. 

 

 

SYSTEM AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECIENCY 
This KPA is measured in the following area: 

 

 Clean Audits 

 Operating Budget Management 

 SCM compliance 

 GRAP Compliance 

 
 

 
5.1. CLEAN AUDITS 

 
During 2018/19 financial year the entity obtained a disclaimer due to pertinent issues such as the 

board of directors’ contracts being terminated by the parent company. The municipality must appoint 

new board of directors as a prerequisite to achieve clean audit for the entity. 
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5.2. OPERATING BUDGET MANAGEMENT 

 
This measures effective budget control of operating costs (indicated by budget variances). In respect 

of effective budget control of operating costs, a target of 100% over expenditure has been set. 

 
On the expenditure front no over-spending was incurred, however the under-recovery of revenue 

was due to slow implementation of projects. 

 

5.3. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE 

During the year under review the LTLDA have fully complied with SCM policy procedures. No written 

complaints or objections were received in relation to LTLDA’s tenders or contract awards in 

2019/2020. The LTLDA use the Supply Chain Management Policy of the Parent Municipality. During 

the period under review no tenders were awarded that exceeds R100 000. 

 

5.4. GRAP COMPLIANCE 

This target is determined annually as it pertains to the finance reporting of the entity at the end of the 

financial year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

303 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

304 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

305 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

306 
 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

307 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

308 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

309 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

310 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

311 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

312 
 

 

 



 

313 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

314 
 

 

 

 
 

 



 

315 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

316 
 

 

 

 



 

317 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

318 
 

 

 

 

 



 

319 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

320 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

321 
 

 



 

322 
 

 

 
 

 

 



 

323 
 

 

 

 

 



 

324 
 

 

 

 

 



 

325 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

326 
 

 

 

 

 
 



 

327 
 

 

 

 

 
 



 

328 
 

 

 

 

 



 

329 
 

 



 

330 
 

 

 



 

  

 

331 

 

 

 
 

Report of the auditor-general to the North West provincial 
legislature and the council on the Lekwa Teemane Development 
Agency 

Report on the audit of the financial statements  

Disclaimer of opinion 

1. I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the Lekwa Teemane Development 
Agency set out on pages 303 to 330, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 30 June 2020, the statement of financial performance, statement of 
changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of 
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

2. I do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the municipal entity. 
Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of 
opinion section of this auditor’s report, I have not been able to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial 
statements. 

Basis for disclaimer of opinion 

VAT receivable 

3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the VAT receivable 
due to the status of accounting records. I could not confirm the VAT receivable by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable determine whether any adjustment 
relating to the VAT receivable of R74 476 (2019: R66 577) as disclosed in note 5 to 
the financial statements was necessary. 

Payables from exchange transaction 

4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from 
exchange transaction due to the status of accounting records. I could not confirm the 
payables from exchange transactions by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to payables from exchange 
transactions of R1 867 829 (2019: R1 079 836) as disclosed in note 9 to the financial 
statements was necessary. 
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Sale of goods 

5. During 2019, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for revenue 
from sale of goods as the entity did not maintain adequate accounting records. I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment to revenue from sale of goods of          
R 51 652 as presented in the statement of financial performance was necessary. My 
audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019 was 
modified accordingly. I was still unable to confirm this revenue from sale of goods by 
alternate means. Consequently, my opinion on the current period’s financial 
statements is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the 
comparability of the current period’s figures. 

Employee related costs 

6. During 2019, the municipal entity did not have adequate system to ensure that 
payments made to employees were correctly accounted for, which resulted in 
overpayment to employees. Consequently, employee related cost as disclosed in the 
financial statements was overstated by R22 837 and other receivables was 
understated by R22 837. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period 
ended 30 June 2019 was modified accordingly. Consequently, my opinion on the 
current period’s financial statements is also modified because of the possible effect 
of this matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures. 

General expenses 

7. During 2019, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for general 
expenses as the entity did not maintain adequate accounting records. I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustment to general expenses of R755 503 as presented in 
the statement of financial performance was necessary. My audit opinion on the 
financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019 was modified accordingly. I 
was still unable to confirm these general expenses by alternate means. 
Consequently, my opinion on the current period’s financial statements is also 
modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the 
current period’s figures. 

Accumulated surplus 

8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for accumulated surplus 
due to the status of accounting records. I was unable to confirm the accumulated 
surplus by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustment to the accumulated surplus of R1 599 373 (2019: R243 460) as 
presented in the statement of financial position and the statement of changes in net 
assets was necessary. 

Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts 

9. GRAP 24, Presentation of budget information in the financial statements, requires the 
presentation of the budget information including a statement of comparing the budget 
and actual amounts as well as reasons for variances. I was unable to confirm the 
budget amounts in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts due 
being unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the municipal entity 
had an approved budget. 
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Irregular expenditure 

10. Section 125 of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 
56 of 2003) (MFMA) requires the disclosure of irregular expenditure incurred. The 
municipal entity made payments of R39 109 (2019: R49 555) in contravention with 
the supply chain management requirements and payments without an approved 
budget of R1 684 921 (2019: R1 596 048) in contravention of section 87(8) of the 
MFMA but did not disclose the resultant irregular expenditure in the notes to the 
financial statements. As the municipal entity did not quantify the full extent of irregular 
expenditure, it was impracticable to determine the irregular expenditure that should 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

11. During 2019, the municipal entity incurred interest of R32 226 which were not 
included in fruitless and wasteful expenditure disclosed. As this fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure incurred was still not disclosed fruitless and wasteful expenditure as 
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements was understated by R32 226 
(2019: R32 226). 

Related parties 

12. Contrary to the requirement of GRAP 20, Related party disclosures, the municipal 
entity did not disclose the relationship with its parent municipality and the related 
party transactions. I have not included the omitted information in this auditor’s report 
as it was impracticable to do so. 

13. The municipal entity did not correctly disclose remuneration paid to the accounting 
officer as required by GRAP 20, Related parties disclosures. As a result, the 
accounting officer’s emoluments as disclosed in note 20 of the financial statements 
was understated by R28 367. 

Change in accounting policies, estimates and errors 

14. The municipal entity did not disclose the change in accounting estimates or 
adjustments made to correct prior period in notes to the financial statements, as 
required by GRAP 3, Accounting policies, estimates and errors. The nature and the 
amount of the changes to estimates in the property, plant and equipment and the 
nature and amount of correction to general expenditure and the amount of the 
correction at the beginning of the earliest prior period were not disclosed. I was 
unable to quantify the impact of the omitted disclosure as it was impracticable to do 
so. 

Material uncertainty relating to going concern 

15. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter. 

16. I draw attention to note 22 to the financial statements, which indicates that the 
municipal entity incurred had an accumulated deficit of R1 599 373 for the year 
ended 30 June 2020 and, as of that date the municipal entity’s current liabilities 
exceeded its total assets by R1 597 273. These events or conditions, along with 
other matters as set forth in note 22, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that 
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may cast significant doubt on the municipal entity’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. 

Other matters 

17. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters. 

Unaudited disclosure notes 

18. In terms of section 125(2)(e) of the MFMA, the municpal entity is required to disclose 
particulars of non-compliance with the MFMA. This disclosure requirement did not 
form part of the audit of the financial statements and accordingly I do not express an 
opinion thereon. 

Unaudited supplementary schedules  

19. The supplementary information set out on pages 329 to 330 does not form part of the 
financial statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited 
these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon. 

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements 

20. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Companies 
Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act) and for such internal 
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
and financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

21. In preparing the and financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for 
assessing the municipal entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the 
municipal entity or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do 
so.  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial statements 

22. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financial statements in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and to issue an auditor’s report. However, 
because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of this 
auditor’s, I was not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a 
basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.  

23. I am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional 
accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code), as well 
as the other ethical requirements that relevant to my audit of the financial statements 
in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the IESBA code. 
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Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

Introduction and scope 

24. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 
(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report 
material findings on the reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report. I 
performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance. 

25. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based 
on the approved performance planning documents of the municipal entity. I have not 
evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators 
included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any 
disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information 
in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance 
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.  

26. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in 
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and 
reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected 
objectives presented in the annual performance report of the municipal entity for the 
year ended 30 June 2020: 

Objectives Pages in the annual 

performance report 

Development objective 4 – Local economic development  299 – 300 

 
27. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information 

was properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved 
performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine 
whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and 
assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether 
it was valid, accurate and complete. 

28. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information on any of the selected objectives of the municipal entities. 

Other matter 

29. I draw attention to the matter below.  

Achievement of planned targets  

30.Refer to the annual performance report on pages 295 to 300 for information on the 
achievement of planned targets for the year.  
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Report on audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 

31. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 
responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the municipal entity with 
specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not 
to gather evidence to express assurance.  

32. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as 
follows: 

Financial statements 

33. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material 
respects in accordance with the requirements of section 122(1) of the MFMA. 
Material misstatements identified by the auditors in the submitted financial 
statements were not adequately corrected and the supporting records could not be 
provided subsequently, which resulted in the financial statements receiving a 
disclaimer audit opinion. 

Strategic planning and performance management 

34. A multi-year business plan was not developed for inclusion in the budget, as required 
by section 87(5)(d) of MFMA. 

35. The annual performance objectives and indicators were not included in the multi-year 
business plan, as required by section 87(5)(d)(iii) of MFMA and 93B(a) of the 
Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA). 

Expenditure management 

36. Money owed by the municipal entity was not always paid within 30 days, as required 
by section 99(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

37. Reasonable steps were not taken to ensure that the municipal entity implements and 
maintains an effective system of expenditure control, including procedures for the 
approval and payment of funds, as required by section 99(2)(a) of the MFMA. 

38. An adequate management, accounting and information system was not in place 
which recognised expenditure when it was incurred, as required by section 99(2)(c) 
of the MFMA. 

39. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, in contravention of 
section 95(d) of the MFMA. The irregular expenditure incurred was not disclosed as 
indicated in the basis for qualification paragraph. 

40. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure of 
R25 527 as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, in contravention of 
section 95(d) of the MFMA. The majority of the disclosed fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure was caused by interest charged due to late payment of suppliers. 

41. Expenditure was incurred without an approved budget, in contravention of section 
87(8) of the MFMA. 
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Consequence management 

42. Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by the municipal entity was 
not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, as required 
by regulation 75(1) of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations. 

Procurement and contract management 

43. Contracts were extended or modified without the approval of a properly delegated 
official, in contravention of Supply Chain Management (SCM) regulation 5. 

44. The performance of some of the contractors or providers was not monitored on a 
monthly basis, as required by section 116(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

45. The contract performance and monitoring measures and methods were not sufficient 
to ensure effective contract management, as required by section 116(2)(c) of the 
MFMA. 

Other information 

46. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report which includes the director’s 
report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate as 
required by the Companies Act. The other information does not include the financial 
statements, the auditor’s report thereon and those selected objectives presented in 
the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in this 
auditor’s report.  

47. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance 
information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I 
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

48. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements and the selected objectives presented in the annual 
performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

49. As a result of the disclaimer of opinion expressed on the financial statements, I do 
not conclude on material misstatements of the other information relating to the 
financial statements. If, based on the work I have performed relating to the audit of 
performance information and compliance with legislation, I conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact.  

Internal control deficiencies 

50. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 
objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported 
below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the 
basis for disclaimer of opinion and the findings on compliance with legislation 
included in this report. 
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 Failure by the municipal leadership to appoint the functional board of directors during 
the year resulted in the lack of oversight function to prevent misstatements in the 
financial statements and compliance with laws and legislations. This resulted in the 
entity not having audit committee and functional internal audit during the financial 
year. Furthermore, the municipal entity did not deliver on its mandate due to absence 
of the board.  

 Management did not properly implement controls over daily and monthly processing 
and reconciling of transactions. There is a lack of segregation of duties as most of 
the responsibilities have been entrusted with one person which has contributed to the 
misstatements identified in financial statements and compliance with laws and 
regulations. In addition, management did not develop proper filling and record 
management system that ensures ease retrieval of documentation to support 
financial statements and compliance as in when the information is needed to 
substantiate financial and compliance reports. 

 
 

 
Rustenburg 

 
28 February 2021 

 

 

 

           

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


